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We are commutted

to enhancing our customers’ quality of life by
meeting their expectations for reliability and value in an
environmentally responsible way, every day.

Safe, Reliable and Competitively Priced Service
Customer Satisfaction
Growth
Quality
Valuing Employees
Corporate Citizenship
Superior Return
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Conserve to Preserve
1s a comprehensive strategy
that effectively
aligns the nterests of our
customers, our company
and the state and
helps each of us achieve
our goals.

2%

NNNNNNNNNNNNN

http://www.shareholder.com/visitors/dynamicdoc/document.cfm?DocumentlD=2078&CompanylD=NJR&PIN=&Page=1&Zoom=1x&PrintWidth=682&print=... ~ 4/175



11/7/2016 2007 Annual Report - Printing All Pages

FINAMNCIAL PERFORMANCE
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Forward-Looking Statements—wWhile forward-looking statements about MIR's expectations made throughout this repart are based on infarmation currently
available and on reasonable assumptions, actual results could be materially different. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of future earnings.

For more information, please refer to NJR reports that are periodicially filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the section of this document
entithed “Forward-Looking Statements.”

*The performance graph shows a comparison of the S-year cumulative return assuming $100 invested on September 30, 2002, in Mew Jersey Resources Stock,
the Company Peer Group, the Standard & Poor's (5&P) Wtilities Index and the S&P 500 Index. Cumulative total return includes reinvestmant of dividends

**The 19 companies in the Company Peer Group noted above are as fellows: AGL Resources, Atmes Energy, Chesapeake Utilities, NiSource, Consolidated
Edison, Dominion, Laclede Gas, Mational Fuel Gas, Nicor, Northwest Matural Gas, ONEQK, PPEL, Piedmont Natural Gas, Public Service Enterprise Group, SCANA,
Sempra, South lersey Industries, Vectren and WiGL Holdings. NJR includes the performance of the Company Peer Group because the Company Peer Group has a
higher percentage of natural gas utility and combination natural gas and electric utility companies operating in the same region a4 MIR and having comparable
size and market capitalization to that of NJR, as compared with the SEP Utilities Index.

o Azsumes Dividends Reinvested

JERSEY RESOURCES
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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

To Our Shareowners

In his writings, famed nineteenth century author Edward Everett
Hale often captured the conscience of America. He once said, |
am only one, but still | am one. | cannot do everything, but still |
can do something; and because | cannot do everything, | will not
refuse to do the something that | can do." These words still reso-
nate with us today.

The courage and will to stand up and do “something”—to do
what is right—speaks to the essence of the human spirit and the
desire to help others. It is this call to action that drives New Jersey
Resources. As a shareowner, you have placed your confidence in
us, and we will continue to do our best to reward your trust by
meeting the needs of all our stakeholders every day and ensuring
a better, brighter tomorrow for generations to come. That is our
pledge. That is our promise.

Over the past year there has been a robust debate about our
environment and critical issues such as greenhouse gases, car-
bonemissions and climate change, And there has been a renewed
focus on the role we all play in protecting and presenving the
wealth and beauty of the earth’s limited natural resources.

While the challenges associated with the pursuit of environmen-
tal stewardship are daunting, we cannot sit idly by and assume
that someone else will answer the call. We all have the responsi-
bility “to do the something that we can do.” The time 1o act is
now. We are fully committed to doing all that we can to conserve
energy, reduce our carbon footprint and preserve our quality of
ife and to help our customers do the same,

Fiscal 2007 marked an important time in the history of our com-
pany. We remained committed to our core principle of providing

3

safe, reliable service, even as the world around us continued to
change. We recognize that these changes reflect the new reali-
ties of the world in which we live and work.

Qur nation continues 1o use maore and more energy and produce
mare and more carbon emissions. The United States, which rep-
resents just 5 percent of the world's population, is responsible for
25 percent of the world's greenhouse gases that are produced by
human activity. This fact makes it imperative that we become
maore aggressive and creative in our approach to the way we do
business and serve our customers,

In every challenge, however, there is opportunity. Guided by our
team of talented employees, this year we took a bold and visionary
step to help our customers Conserve to Preserve™ The umbrella
for our commitment 1o environmental stewardship, Conserve to
Preserve is a comprehensive strategy—a new way of doing busi-
ness—that effectively aligns the interests of our customers, our
company and the state and helps each of us achieve our goals,

Tegether with our regulators, we launched our Conservation
Incentive Program (CIP) to protect the company from variations
in usage and give us the opportunity to do more to help custom-
ers save energy and money.

In March, we were the first business to join with Governor
Jon 5. Corzine in support of the state's goal to reduce carbon emis-
sions 20 percent by 2020. To help meet our commitment, over the
next five years we will purchase 100 percent of our electricity
needs through the Board of Public Utilities” CleanPower Choice
renewable energy program, convert aur fleet to hybrid, dual fuel
and high-efficiency vehicles, improve the efficiency of our facilities

AMNUAL REPORT 2007
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and increase our participation in the United States Environmental
Protection Agency's WasteWise and Gas STAR programs.

Just as important, we are also working to help our customers do
the same. Our "Planting for Our Future” campaign offers custom-
ers a simple and direct way to offset some of the carbon they emit
through their daily actions. Through our partnership with The
Conservation Fund, customers can purchase trees at a cost of $5
each to reduce their carbon footprint. And we will make their
commitment go even further by matching their contributions up
to $250,000 over the next five years. Together, we have the poten-
tial to plant 100,000 trees with the opportunity to offset 130,000
tons of carbon emissions, With our customers, we have already
purchased over 12,000 trees since the launch of this campaign.

These are just a few of the many examples of the successful part-
nerships we have formed this year in an effort to better serve our
customers, communities and state. Joined by our common inter-
ests and shared goals, and with each of us doing our part, we
can, and are, making a meaningful difference that is producing
positive results today, tomorrow and for future generations.

This past year, we overcame many challenges and achieved many
milestones. But for all that we accomplished one thing is clear:
our performance is a result of the collective efforts of our more
than 800 dedicated employees and their never-ending pursuit of
excellence based upoen a common vision. Through our aligned
interests and respective contributions, we have made a meaning-
ful and lasting difference for our customers, our state and our
future. Fiscal 2007 was a testament 10 our commitment to ser-
vice and the proud partnerships we share.

|'il1.‘|||-.'j;1| l |HJ.‘|I|‘

As we celebrated our companys 55 years of dedicated service
and the 25th anniversary of being listed on the Mew York Stock
Exchange, we were proud to be able to increase our dividend by

4
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5.6 percent, to an annual rate of $1.52 per share. This was the
12th consecutive year that we have been able to increase our
annual dividend rate. In addition, we recently increased our share
repurchase program by 1 million shares.

With the finalization of the audit of our financial statements for
the fiscal year, we determined that the change in value of certain
of our derivative instruments associated with our unregulated
subsidiaries should be reflected in the consolidated statements
of income for each period rather than as a component of other
comprehensive income on our balance sheet. As a result, we
restated certain historical financial statements. Importantly, the
company’s day-to-day operations, liquidity, past and future cash
flowes and the overall strength of our financial profile are not
impacted by this accounting change.

Consolidated earnings based on Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) were $65.3 million, or $2.34 per basic share,
compared with $221.9 million, or $7.96 per basic share, a year
ago. Excluding unrealized gains or losses related to this accounting
change results in Net Financial Earnings of $88.4 million, or $3.17
per basic share, this year compared with $78.5 million, or $2.82
per basic share, last year. Net Financial Earnings is a non-GAAP
measure. For a discussion of this non-GAAP financial measure,
please see our Form 10-K, Item 7. For a reconciliation to net
income, the most comparable GAAP measure, please see aur
Form 8-K filed on Decemnber 11, 2007.

Results at NJR Energy Services (NJRES), our unregulated wholesale
enerqy senvices company, on a GAAP basis were $21.3 million,
compared with $188.4 million last year. Excluding the unrealized
gains or losses related to the accounting changes, Met Financial
Earnings were $40.1 million compared with $28.7 million |ast year,

MNIR Home Services (MIRHS), our unregulated retail subsidiary
which provides heating, ventilating and air-conditioning (HVAC)

7175
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Forbes
Platinum 400

For the fifth consecutive year, NJR was
named to the Forbes Platinum List of the

400 Best Big Companies in America.

The E.PA

Environmental
Duality Award
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was presented to NJNG for helping to improve
the environmental quality of the region and increase
public involvement in environmental action

through Conserve to Preserve.
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TOP PICTURED L-R

Kathleen T. Ellis
Senior Vice President—Corporate Affairs
New Jersey Resources
Senior Vice President—Marketing
New Jersey Natural Gas

Craig A. Lynch
Vice President—Energy Delivery

New Jersey Natural Gas
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Mariellen Dugan
Vice President and General Counsel
New Jersey Resources

Glenn C. Lockwood
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
New Jersey Resources
President
NJR Home Services
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Vice President—Marketing and Business Intelligence
New Jersey Natural Gas

Ginger P. Richman
Vice President
NJR Energy Services
Mark R. Sperduto

Vice President—Requlatory Affairs
New Jersey Natural Gas

Rhonda M. Figueroa

Corporate Secretary
New Jersey Resources
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services, expanded its market base this year to include commercial
customers, At the same time, NJRHS continued to increase
productivity and maintain high levels of customer service and
satisfaction. In fiscal 2007, NIRHS recorded earnings of $2.6
million, compared with $1.7 million last year.

Supported by steady customer growth and the CIF, New Jersey
Matural Gas (NING), our core business, recorded a solid overall
performance. We added 8,421 new customers, with approxi-
mately one-third coming from conversions. Our total customer
count now exceeds 478,000.

The CIP is designed to address fluctuations in NJNG's margin and
customers’ bills resulting from changing weather and usage pat-
terns. Through the CIF, we were able to provide customers with
up-front Basic Gas Supply Service (BGSS) savings of $10.6 million
and an estimated £37.6 million in commodity savings.

We were also able to take other steps to address price volatility,
Using our effective hedging strategy and storage management
cost controls, we provided our customers with refunds totaling
more than $70 million and expect to hold the line on prices head-
ing into the 2007-2008 winter heating season.

In addition, through our incentive programs developed in part-
nership with the New lersey Board of Public Utilities (BPU) and
the Department of the Public Advocate, Division of Rate Counsel
(Rate Counsel), we saved customers $36.8 million, while provid-
ing a gross margin of $8.1 million. Since their inception in 1992,
these programs have saved customers more than $338 million,
or approximately 4 percent annually.

Additionally, we were, once again, recognized for our record of
consistent financial performance and customer service. For the
fifth consecutive year, NIR was named to the Forbes Platinum
400 list of best publicly traded companies in America. 1.0, Power

5

and Associates rated our company the best among the states
natural gas utilities in both residential and business customer sat-
isfaction. For the 15th consecutive yvear we had the fewest num-
ber of complaints per 1,000 custormers with the BPU of any of
the state’s major electric and natural gas utilities. And we were
honored by the United States Environmental Protection Agency
with an Environmental Quality Award for our efforts to educate
customers about energy efficiency and conservation through
Conserve 1o Preserve, These results reflect the core principles of
aur company—innovative leadership, customer satisfaction and
consistent perfarmance—and are a source of pride for us all.

Because of our sound strategy and talented team of employees
with their focus on the fundamentals of our business, we are
well positioned to meet our customers” needs and fulfill gur share-
owners’ expectations today and for the future,

Our Strategy for the Future

We are proud of what we have accomplished this year. We also
recognize that oppaortunities for profitable growth lie ahead. As
we continue to build upon our progress, we plan to focus our
efforts on the following areas:

DELIVERING COMSISTENT FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE. Following a dis-
ciplined and focused business model, we have developed a repu-
tation for consistent financial results, By maintaining a strong
financial profile, we are able to access the resources and capital
necessary to invest in our systern, serve our customers and pur-
sue strategies to enhance the value of our company.

INVESTING IN OUR INFRASTRUCTURE AND EXPANDING OUR CUSTOMER
BASE TO SUPPORT OUR GROWTH STRATEGY. This year, we expect to
invest over $271 million in our distribution system to add appromi-
mately 8,100 new customers and aver $53 millien to upgrade
our existing infrastructure, maintain compliance with federal
pipeline integrity standards and implement special projects to

AMNUAL REPORT 2007
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ensure safety and reliability. This investment of substantial capital
is consistent with our most important responsibility of providing
customers with safe, reliable and competitively priced service. It
also reflects our confidence that our invested capital will receive
a fair return through the regulatory process.

EXPANDING OUR WHOLESALE AND RETAIL ENERGY SERVICES. Relying
on our experienced team and expanding NIRES' portfolio of
transportation and storage capacity assets into new markets,
our wholesale energy services business continues 1o Qrow.
MNIRHS will continue to focus on growing its market share,
expanding its service contracts and offering new products and
services, while maintaining the same high level of customer ser-
vice and satisfaction.

IDENTIFYING INVESTMENT OPPORTUNITIES IN MIDSTREAM ASSETS. TO
build on our platform for continued growth, we expanded our
emphasis on identifying appropriate opportunities to invest in
midstrearn assets such as storage facilities. In March, we
entered into a joint venture with Spectra Energy to develop the
Steckman Ridge natural gas storage field in southwestern
Pennsylvania. This facility, expected to be in service in fiscal
2009, will have the capacity to store up to 12 billion cubic feet
of natural gas to reliably serve markets in the Mid-Atlantic and
Northeast regions.

MAINTAINING AN AGGRESSIVE AND FORWARD-LODKING STRATEGY.
With Conserve to Preserve off to a strong start, we will continue
to build upen our existing programs and roll out new ones to
help make conservation and energy efficiency easy for our cus-
tomers. This year we will help customers evaluate potential
energy savings in their homes through the state’s Home
Performance with Energy Star program. Qur Conserve to Preserve
Dashboard is an online resource that allows residential customers
to track, on an ongoing basis, the impact conservation has on
their energy usage. And for our commercial customers, Conserve

&
HEW JERSEY RESOURCES

to Preserve Business Online provides 24-hour access to tools and
information that underscore the value of conservation and
energy efficiency improvements. Visit njliving.com to access all
of our Conserve to Preserve resources and offerings.

WORKING WITH REGULATORS TO MEET THE NEEDS OF QUR CUISTOMERS
Under the leadership of the BPU, New Jersey has earned a well-
deserved national reputation for its clean energy policies. We will
continue to work with the BPU and Rate Counsel to build a con-
structive relationship based on the common goal of providing
safe, reliable service to our customers. We will also play an active
role in achieving the state’s goal of reducing carbon emissions
and enacting a comprehensive new Energy Master Plan.

STRENGTHENING OUR COMMUNITIES. As a proud member of the
communities we serve, we share a vested interest in the revital-
ization of our urban areas and the vitality of our neighborhoods.
We will continue our efforts to improve the properties of the
three former manufactured gas plants in our service territory and
empower future generations through such programs as Project
Venture, Energy for Education and Volunteers Inspiring Service In
Our Neighborhoods (VISION).

As a responsible corporate citizen and with the support of our
dedicated and caring employees, we expanded our partnership
with Interfaith Meighbars, which since 1996, has provided 15
deserving families with homes of their own, to revitalize neighbor-
hoods in Asbury Park through the Westside Redevelopment Plan.

Through our VISIOM program, our employees, retirees and their
families donated aver 3,500 hours of service to area nonprofit
organizations to help strengthen our communities and lend a
helping hand where it is needed most.

Additionally, the compassion and generasity of our New Jersey
Resources family cannot go unrecognized. Through our annual

13/175
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New Jersey’s
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according to its 2007 Gas Utility Residential

Customer Satisfaction Survey.
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New Jersey Resources

Stephen D. Westhoven
Vice President—Energy Trading
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William G. Foley
Treasurer
New Jersey Resources
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employee charity drive, over $118,000 was raised to benefit 82
charitable organizations throughout our service territory.

The contributions of the women and men of our company are
immeasurable. Every day they do their best, and every day they
make a difference. They are the reason we are able to accomplish
all that we do. Iwould especially like to recognize the members of
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 1820, which
represents the majority of our employees, They are a true partner
in the growth of our cormpany and the results we have achieved.

Let me also express my gratitude to and respect for the members
of our Board of Directors and especially recognize Gary W, Wolf,
whao will be retiring from the Board this year after more than 11
years of invaluable service. Their active participation, leadership
and expertise are tremendous assets that guide our company
and greatly contribute to our growth and performance.

This year, we were saddened by the passing of a longtime rmem-
ber of our NJR family, retired New Jersey Resources president and
€00, Thomas B. Toohey. Tom was an outstanding leader who
served our company with distinction. He took great pride in his
waork and his family. For nearly three decades, he shared his tal-
ents with us and helped build our company into ane of the most
respected in our industry. Tom's legacy and influence will be with
us always.

On behalf of our entire company, | want to extend my sincere
appreciation to all of our customers for the opportunity to be of
service. | would like to recognize all of the community leaders,
policymakers and state regulators for their partnership. And |
would like to thank all of our shareowners for investing in New
Jersey Resources,

Our Annual Shareowners Meeting will be held at 10:30 a.m. on
Woednesday, January 23, 2008, at Georgian Court University in

7

Lakewood, New Jersey. | hope you will be able to join us. As
always, | appreciate your feedback and welcome your comments
on how we are doing. You can write, call or send me an e-mail at
Imd .'J'-.‘\'"Eb@'[].[E‘.\L}U-’LE‘S.LCI'].

Working together, we have set a new standard of accomplish-
ment and excellence. We will continue to provide the leadership,
service and performance our company is known for, and we will
continue to do our part to conserve and preserve our natural
resources. Our customers, shareowners, communities and chil-
dren deserve nothing less.

We believe our efforts today are the foundation for a better and
greener tomorrow and that, through our combined actions, in
countless ways, we can change the world.

As always, we appreciate the trust you have placed in us, and we
will continue to give our very best to reward your confidence

with proven results.

Thank you for your support,

KR He. rrmca

Laurence M. Downes
Chairman and CEQ

AMNUAL REPORT 2007
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Through Conserve to Preserve™ in partoership with The Conservation Fund, New Jersey Rew"\ ces has Iaunched E
; tree plammg programy "F'Ie_mti."lg farﬁyr Future,” that gives each of our cuatomers the gpﬂm ity to reduce their..
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If every New Jersey Natural Gas customer planted just one tree, we could remove half a millien tons of carbon diexide
from the atmosphere. That is like eliminating the carbon footprint of every man, woman and child in Boonton,
Barnegat and Bradley Beach. Coupled with the company’s commitment to match donations up to 10,000 trees per
year, the effect is even greater. In less than one year, we've planted more than 12,000 trees on over 26 acres of
protected forests in New Jersey and beyond. Imagine the impact of replicating this commitment—one tree for every
customer—year after year.

Planting for Our Future gives us all the rare opportunity to make a small, personal commitment to environmental

stewardship and to magnify the impact of our actions by joining with thousands of our neighbars to, quite literally,
plant a forest.
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NJR will match up to
$250.000 of customer
donations over five years as
part of a tree planting
campaign,“Planting for
Our Future.”
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“1 captured
the sun and the wind.”

For centuries, human beings have looked to the sun and wind for their energy potential. Windmills were built
to grind grain and pump water, and homes were built to draw in maximum heat from the sun. Today, the power of
the wind and the sun is being captured ever more effectively and has increasingly become a source of reliable energy
that is both clean and sustainable.

This year, New Jersey Resources became the single largest consumer of renewable energy through the New Jersey
Board of Public Utilities* CleanPower Choice Program and was recagnized as the state's Clean Power Purchaser of the
Year. By purchasing 100 percent of our electricity from renewable energy sources, we will eliminate over 4,000 tons
of CO, emissions from the atmosphere annually.

‘and obtain renewable energy for their electricity usage,
New Jersey's CO, emission: ¢
coal-fired power plant for

Corzine's goal of a 20 percent
Best of all, when we invest in ren

we also unleash the economic po
conservation and economic vitality ¢
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NJR will purchase
100 percent of our electric needs
through the Board of Public
Utilities” CleanPower Choice
program. 'his will completely
eliminate our carbon emissions
[rom electricity.

&9
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It's as simple as opening the curtains to the sun, or turning down a thermostat, but the impacts of energy conservation
can be long-lasting and significant. Whether the choice is to lower your thermostat when you leave home 'or wash
your clothesiincold water to e hot water usage, small changes can make a big difference.

Over the past year, since receiving approval for an innovative new rate design which allows us to encourage and
reward conservation, Mew lersey Natural Gas has aggressively promoted the be of energy efficienay through
Conserve to Preserve. We remain committed to giving our customers the tools they need to make wise energy
decisions that save money and precious natural resources. J

Working together we have helped our customers save 34.6 million therms of natural gas, and more than $37.6 millign.
Addltlﬂl‘lally, by using less energy, our customers have uced their CO, emissions by more than 225,000 tons—a
reductlon equivalent to taking 39,299 cars off New Jersey's roads.

As Wwe.continue to educate our customers about the many good reasons to consérve, we are encouraged by their

efforts. While the world cannot be changed by one person or one act in one.day, over time the thoughtful dé

'made by.many will ha'-'& a cumulative i impact that can substantially improve the quality of the aipwe "t':re;ﬂ'ne,..the:" 3
" 3 —water we drink .. gild ﬁht evensave a glacier. .

e, -r*'

k;’ e
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Last year, NJNG offered
simple solutions to
help our customers conserve
energy and reduce carbon
emissions by more than

225,000 tons.

sa
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NIR"S CORPORATE FROFILE

MING'S SERVICE TERRITORY

MORRIS COUNTY

MIDDLESEX COUNTY
MONMOUTH COUNTY

OCEAN COUNTY

New Jersey Resources

Is setting the standard for reliability as a leader in the natural
gas industry. Our more than 800 dedicated employees are the
driving force behind our commitment to provide reliability,
value and comfort to our customers every day. New lersey
Matural Gas, our principal subsidiary, is one of the fastest-grow-
ing local distribution companies in the United 5tates. Other
operating subsidiaries of the NJR family of companies include
MJR Energy Services and NIR Home Services.

New Jersey Natural Gas

Serves over 478,000 customers in New Jersey’s Monmouth and
Ocean counties and parts of Morris and Middlesex counties
Since 1952, customers have counted on us for the natural gas
that keeps homes warm and businesses running. Through our
service area’s outstanding demographics, Mew Jersey Natural
Gas has maintained an average annual customer growth rate
of about 2.5 percent over the past 10 years. We are also a
leader in the off-system and capacity-release markets.

MIR'S MARKETS SERVED

NIR Energy Services

Provides unregulated wholesale energy services to customers in
New lersey, states from the Gulf Coast to New England and
Canada. We provide outstanding customer service and expert
management of natural gas storage and capacity assets to help
customers maintain their competitive edge. Our natural gas
supply, pipeline capacity and storage management services
include storage positions in the Guif Coast, Appalachia, Mid-
Continent and Canada,

NIR Home Services

Provides expert home appliance service, sales and installations
to customers primarily in New Jerseys Monmouth and Ocean
counties and parts of Morris and Middlesex counties. We offer
comprehensive appliance service contracts and related prod-
ucts and services, including installing, servicing and repairing
natural gas furnaces, hot water heaters, grills, outdoor lights
and electric central air conditioning equipment. Our team of
skilled, certified technicians offers unparalleled care and service
for our customers’ comfort at home

More information about New Jersey Resources family of companies is available on our Web site at njiiving.com.
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Qur 2007 Form 10-K includes financial statements
far NIR. It also includes detailed information about
each of our subsidiaries and the competitive envi-
ronments of our businesses, properties we own

and other matters.

All publicly held companies in the United States
are required to file a Form 10-K report with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SECH every
year. Our Form 10-K is requared by the rules and
regulations of the SEC to contain mnformation in
addition to the financial information included
in our previous annual reports to shareocwners,
We are supplying cur 2007 Form 10-K (with-
out exhibits) consistent with our commitment
1o provide wansparency and full disclosure 1o
aur shareowners.

The 2007 Form 10-K is amended, supplemented
and wpdated by any amendment that we may
file, and by all of the quarterly reports on Form
10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K we file
with the SEC during the year, We urge you 1o
read all such reports. Copies may be obtained
as described under Request for Documents on the
inside back cover of this Annual Report.
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PRESENTING OUR 2007 FORM 10-K

FORM 10-K OVERVIEW
This Annual Report is not a part of, and should
not be considered to be included in, our 2007
Form 10-K. Use the listing below, which includes
highlights of the 2007 Form 10-K, to help you
find infarmation easily. & comprehensve Table of
Contents with the page number for each item can
be found on page "i."

PART I: & DESCRIPTION OF MIR

BUSINESSES INCLUDES:

= Detailed descriptions of NIR subsidiaries

= The regulatory cutlock for the utility business

= Risk factors related to our business

- Description of properies owned and
operated by MR

= Legal proceedings

PART Il: MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION
OF RESULTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ITEMS 5 AND & INCLUDE:

= Quarterly dividend and stock price information
= Selected financial data for NIR

= Operational statistics for MING

24
HEW JERSEY RESOURCES

ITEMS 7 AND 74 INCLUDE:

~ Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finan-
cial Condition and Results of Operations, which
provides a discussion of changes in earnings and
cash flows aver the past three years

= Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About
Market Risk

ITEMS & AND 9 INCLUDE:

= Financial staternents and footnotes for MR

= Reports of independent auditors

= Supplementary financial information (unaudited)

= Management's reports on internal control over
financial reporting and disclosure controls and
procedures

PART 1lI: INFORMATION ABOUT BOARD MEMBERS,

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND AUBITORS

= Information about members of the Board of
Directors, executive compensation and ac-
counting fees i incorporated by reference

to NIR's proxy statement

PART IV: EXHIBITS AND SIGNATURES INCLUDE:

= #n index of exhibits

= Signatures of members of the Board of
Directors and certain afficer
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007
OR
] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
FOR THE TRANSITIOM PERIOD FROM TO
Commission file number 1-8359

NEW JERSEY RESOURCES CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

New Jersey 22-2376465
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
1415 Wyckotf Road, Wall, New Jersey 07719 732-938-1480
(Address of principal (Registrant’s telephone number,
executive offices) including area code)
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12 (b) of the Act:
Common Stock - $2.50 Par Value New York Stock Exchange
(Title of each class) (Mame of each exchange on which registered)
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12 (g) of the Act:
None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act.
Yes: [ No: []
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of
the Act.
Yes: [] No: [=]

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or
15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
Registrant was required to file such repons), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past
90 days.

Yes: [¥] No: []

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation 5-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of the Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy information
statements incorporated by reference in Part Il of this Form 10-K ar any amendment to this Form 10-K. []

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a
non-accelerated filer. See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer: [ Accelerated filer: [ MNon-accelerated filer: [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act)

Yes: [] No:

The aggregate market value of the Registrant's Common Stock held by nonaffiliates was $1,383,871,739 based
an the closing price of $50.05 per share on March 31, 2007.

The number of shares outstanding of $2.50 par value Common Stock as of December 7, 2007 was 27,753,340.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareowners (Proxy Statement)
to be held January 23, 2008, to be filed on or about December 21, 2007, are incorporated by reference into Part |
and Part Il of this report.
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New Jersey Resources
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INFORMATION CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this report, including, without limitation, statements as to
management expectations and beliefs presented in ltem 1.-Business Segments, under the captions
“Matural Gas Distribution-General;-Throughput;-Seasonality of Gas Revenues;-Gas
Supply;-Regulation and Rates;-Competition™; “Energy Services”; “Retail and Other";
“Enwvironment,” and Item 3.-"Legal Proceedings,” and in Part Il including “Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Item 7, and
“Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk™ in Item 7A are forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-
looking statements can also be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “may,”
“intend,” “expect,” "believe” or “continue” or comparable terminclogy and are made based upon
management’s expectations and beliefs concerning future developments and their potential effect
upon New Jersey Resources Corporation (NJR or the Company). There can be no assurance that
future developments will be in accordance with management's expectations or that the effect of
future developments on the Company will be those anticipated by management.

The Company cautions readers that the assumptions that form the basis for forward-looking
statements regarding customer growth, customer usage, financial condition, results of operations,
cash flows, capital requirements, market risk and other matters for fiscal 2008 and thereafter include
many factors that are beyond the Company's ability to control or estimate precisely, such as
estimates of future market conditions, the behavior of other market participants and changes in the
debt and equity capital markets. The factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from
NJR's expectations include, but are not limited to, those discussed in Risk Factors in Item 14, as
well as the following:

= weather and economic conditions;

demographic changes in the New Jersey Natural Gas (NJNG) service territory;
the rate of NJMNG customer growth;

volatility of natural gas commodity prices and its impact on customer usage, NJR Energy
Services'(NJRES) operations and on the Company's risk management efforts;

changes in rating agency requirements and/or credit ratings and their effect on availability
and cost of capital to the Company;

commercial and wholesale credit risks, including creditworthiness of customers and
counterparties;

the ability to obtain governmental approvals and/or financing for the construction,
development and operation of certain non-regulated energy investments;

risks associated with the management of the Company's joint ventures and partnerships;

the impact of governmental regulation (including the regulation of rates);

fluctuations in energy-related commodity prices;

conversion activity and other marketing efforts;

actual energy usage of NJNG's customers;

the pace of deregulation of retail gas markets;

access to adequate supplies of natural gas;
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INFORMATION CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS (Continued)

the regulatory and pricing policies of federal and state regulatory agencies;

the ultimate outcome of pending regulatory proceedings, in particular, the base rate case
filing;

changes due to legislation at the federal and state level;

the availability of an adequate number of appropriate counterparties in the wholesale energy
trading market;

sufficient liquidity in the wholesale energy trading market and continued access to the capital
markets;

the disallowance of recovery of environmental-related expenditures and other regulatory
changes;

environmental-related and other litigation and other uncertainties;

the effects and impacts of inflation on NJR and its subsidiaries operations;

change in accounting pronouncements issued by the appropriate standard setting bodies,
and

terrorist attacks or threatened attacks on energy facilities or unrelated energy companies.

While the Company periodically reassesses material frends and uncertainties affecting the
Company's results of operations and financial condition in connection with its preparation of
management’s discussion and analysis of results of operations and financial condition contained in
its Quarterly and Annual Reports, the Company does not, by including this statement, assume any
obligation to review or revise any particular forward-looking statement referenced herein in light of
future events.
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New Jersey Resources
Part |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 the Company used what is commonly referred to as
“critical-terms-match” (CTM) criteria to qualify its derivative instruments used in energy transactions
at NJRES and MNJR Energy as cash flow hedges under the guidance of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as
amended and interpreted, (SFAS 133). During fiscal 2007 management of the Company became
aware that staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC"), in a speech, had raised
questions that some registrants may have inappropriately been applying the CTM approach. As a
result, the Company commenced a study to reanalyze how it documented CTM for its derivative
instruments treated as cash flow hedges. Based on this analysis, the Company concluded that it
had incorrectly applied cash flow hedge accounting to these derivative instruments.

The Company's conclusion that it had incorrectly applied cash flow hedge accounting results in
recognizing as par of Gas purchases and Operating revenues, as appropriate, in the Consolidated
Statements of Income the impact of the change in fair value of NJRES' and NJR Energy's derivative
assets and liabilities that had previously been recorded as part of Accumulated other
comprehensive income (OCI), which is a compenent of Commen Stock Equity. These changes in
fair value, referred to as unrealized gains or losses, impact the Consclidated Statements of Income
only and have no change on the economic value associated with the underlying forecasted
transactions. There was no impact on reported cash flow from operations or liquidity, and this
change will not result in any future change to cash flow from operations or liguidity.

For more information, see ftem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis, and ltem 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Dala-As Restated and Note 2. Restatement of Consolidated Financial
Statements.

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

New Jersey Resources Corporation (NJR or the Company) is a New Jersey corporation formed
in 1982 pursuant to a corporate reorganization. The Company is an energy services holding
company providing retail and wholesale energy services to customers in New Jersey and in states
from the Gulf Coast to New England regions and Canada. The Company is an exempt holding
company under section 1263 of the Energy Policy Act of 2005. NJR's subsidiaries and businesses
include:

* Mew Jersey Natural Gas (NJNG), a local natural gas distribution company that provides
regulated retail natural gas service to approximately 478,000 residential and commercial
customers in central and northern New Jersey and participates in the off-system sales and
capacity release markets. NJNG is regulated by the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities
(BPU) and comprises the Company's Natural Gas Distribution segment.

* MJR Energy Services (NJRES) is the Company's principal non-utility subsidiary. It maintains
and transacts around a portfolio of physical assets consisting of natural gas storage and
transportation contracts. Also, NJRES provides wholesale energy management services to
other energy companies. NJRES comprises the Company's Energy Services segment.
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* The Retail and Other operations segment, which includes the following companies:

* NJR Retail Holdings (Retail Holdings), an unregulated affiliate that consolidates the
Company's unregulated retail operations. Retail Holdings consists of the following wholly
owned subsidiaries:

* NJR Home Services (MJRHS), a company that provides heating ventilation and
cooling (HVAC) service repair and contract services.

* MNJR Plumbing Services (NJRPS), a company that provides plumbing services for
our HVAC business.

+ Commercial Realty & Resources (CR&R), a company that holds and develops
commercial real estate.

+ NJR Energy Investments (NJREI), formerly known as MJR Capital Services, formed as an
unregulated affiliate to consolidate the Company's unregulated energy-related and real
estate investments. NJREI includes the following wholly owned subsidiaries:

+ MNJR Energy Holdings, including NJR Energy, which invests primarily in energy-
related ventures through its subsidiary, NJNR Pipeline (Pipeling), which holds the
Company's 5.53 percent interest in Iroquois Gas and Transmission System, LP
(lIroquois).

= MNJR Steckman Ridge Storage Company, which holds the Company’s 50 percent
combined interest in Steckman Ridge GP, LLC and Steckman Ridge, LP (collectively,
Steckman Ridge), a natural gas storage facility that is being developed with a
partner in western Pennsylvania.

+ MNJAR Investment, a company that makes and holds certain energy-related
investments, primarily through equity instruments of public companies.

* NJR Service (Service), an unregulated company that provides shared administrative
services, including corporate communications, financial and administrative, internal audit,
legal, human resources and technology for NJR and all subsidiaries of NJR.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company operates within three primary business segments: Natural Gas Distribution,
Energy Services and Retail and Other.

The Natural Gas Distribution segment consists of regulated energy and off-system, capacity
and storage management operations. The Energy Services segment consists of unregulated
wholesale energy operations. The Retail and Other segment consists of appliance repair, sales and
installation services, natural gas and natural gas-related investments, commercial real estate
development and other corporate activities.
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NATURAL GAS DISTRIBUTION
General

NJMG provides natural gas service to approximately 478,000 customers. Its service territory
encompasses 1,436 square miles, covering 104 municipalities with an estimated population of
1.3 million people.

NJNG's service territory is in New Jersey's Monmouth and Ocean counties and parts of Morris
and Middlesex counties. It is primarily suburban, with a wide range of cultural and recreational
activities and highlighted by approximately 100 miles of New Jersey coastline. It is in close
proximity to New York City, Philadelphia and the metropolitan areas of northern New Jersey and is
accessible through a network of major roadways and mass transportation. NJNG added 8,421 and
10,159 new customers and added natural gas heat and other services to another 770 and 874
existing customers in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively. NJNG's current annual growth rate of
approximately 1.8 percent is expected to continue with projected additions in the range of
approximately 16,000 to 19,000 new customers over the next two years. This customer growth
would represent approximately $4.0 to $4.3 million in new annual utility gross margin, respectively,
as calculated under NJNG's Conservation Incentive Program (CIP) tariff.

In assessing the potential for future growth in its service area, NJNG uses information derived
from county and municipal planning boards that describes housing developments in various stages
of approval. Furthermore, builders in NJNG's service area are surveyed to determine their
development plans for future time periods. NJNG has also periodically engaged outside consultants
to assist in its customer growth projections. In addition to customer growth through new
construction, NJNG's business strategy includes aggressively pursuing conversions from other
fuels, such as electricity and oil. It is estimated that approximately 35 percent of NJNG's projected
customer growth will consist of conversions. NJNG will also continue to pursue off-system sales
and nonpeak sales as part of its overall growth strategy.

Throughput

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, operating revenues and throughput by customer
class were as follows:

Operating Revenues Throughput
(Thousamds) (Bef)

Residential $ 584727 58% 418  41%
Commercial and other 132113 13 9.4 9
Firm transportation 36,794 4 8.6 8
Total residential and commercial 753,634 75 59.8 58
Interruptible 7,141 1 6.5 6
Total system 760,775 76 66.3 64
Incentive programs 244813 24 365 36
Total $1,005,588 100% 102.8 100%
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In fiscal 2007, no single customer represented more than 10 percent of total MJNG operating
revenue.

Seasonality of Gas Revenues

As a result of the heat-sensitive nature of NJNG's residential customer base, therm sales are
significantly affected by weather conditions. Specifically, customer demand substantially increases
during the winter months when natural gas is used for heating purposes. Weather conditions
directly influence the volume of natural gas delivered. The relative measurement of the impact of
weather is in degree-days. Degree-day data is used to estimate amounts of energy required to
maintain comfortable indoor temperature levels based on each day's average temperature. A
degree-day is the measure of the variation in the weather based on the extent to which the average
daily temperature falls below 65 degrees Fahrenheit. Each degree of temperature below 85 degrees
Fahrenheit is counted as one heating degree-day. Mormal heating degree-days are based on a
20-year average, calculated based upon three reference areas representative of NJNG's service
territory.

For reporting periods through September 30, 2006, the impact of weather on the level and
timing of NJNG's revenues, gross margin and cash flows had been affected by a weather-
normalization clause (WNC), which provided for a revenue adjustment if the weather varied by more
than one-half of 1 percent from normal. However, the WNC did not capture declines in customer
usage related to customer conservation measures. The accumulated adjustment from one heating
season (i.e., October-May) was billed or credited to customers in subsequent periods.

Effective October 1, 2006 the BPU authorized the CIP pilot program, which decoupled the link
between customer usage and NJNG's utility gross margin, allowing NJNG to encourage its
customers to conserve energy. During the three-year term of the pilot, the existing WNC is
suspended and replaced with the CIP tracking mechanism, which addresses utility gross margin
variations related to both weather and customer usage. Recovery of such utility gross margin is
subject to additional conditions including an earnings test and an evaluation of Basic Gas Supply
Service-related savings achieved. Under the CIP pilot program, if NJNG does not file for a rate
review with the BPU within two years, the return on equity for the earnings test will decline from
10.5 percent to 10.25 percent.

Based upon increases in MJNG's operating, maintenance and capital costs, NJNG petitioned
the BPU, on Novernber 20, 2007, to increase base rates for delivery service by approximately
$58.4 million, which includes a return on equity component of 11.375 percent. This petition is
consistent with NJNG's objectives of providing safe and reliable service to its customers and
earning a market-based return on its requlated investments. Based upon statutory time frames and
potential regulatory lag, it is unlikely that any modification to its delivery rates would become
effective during fiscal 2008.

For additional information regarding the CIF see Management's Discussion and
Analysis-Natural Gas Distribution Operations and Note 3. Regulation in the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Gas Supply
Firm Natural Gas Supplies

NJMG's gas supply portfolio consists of long-term (over seven months), winter-term (for the five
winter months) and short-term contracts. In fiscal 2007, NJNG purchased gas from 92 suppliers
under contracts ranging from one day to four years. In fiscal 2007, NJNG purchased approximately
14.6 percent of its natural gas from Southwest Energy, L.P Mo other supplier provided more than
7 percent of NJNG's natural gas supplies. NJNG believes the loss of any one or all of these
suppliers would not have a material adverse impact on its results of operations, financial position or
cash flows. NJNG believes that its supply strategy should adequately meet its expected firm load
over the next several years.

Firm Transportation and Storage Capacity

In order to take delivery of firm natural gas supplies, which ensures the ability to reliably
service its customers, NJNG maintains agreements for firm transportation and storage capacity with
several interstate pipeline companies. NJNG receives natural gas at eight city gate stations located
in Middlesex, Morris and Passaic counties in New Jersey.

The pipeline companies that provide firm transportation service to MJNG's city gate stations,
the maximum daily deliverability of that capacity in dekatherms (dths) and the contract expiration
dates are as follows:

Maximum dail

Pipeline deliverability (dths) Expiration

Texas Eastern Transmission, L.P 370,738 Various dates between 2008 and 2023
Iroquois Gas Transmission System, L.P. 20,468 2012

Tennessee Gas Pipeline Co. 35,894 Various dates between 2008 and 2013
Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corp. 22,531 Various dates between 2008 and 2014
Columbia Gas Transmission Corp. 10,000 2009

458,631

The pipeline companies that provide firm contract transportation service to NJNG and supply
the above pipelines are ANR Pipeline Company, Tennessee Gas Pipeline, Dominion Transmission
Corporation and Columbia Gulf Transmission Company.

In addition, NJNG has storage and related transportation contracts that provide additional
maximum daily deliverability to MJNG's city gate stations of 102,941 dths from storage fields in its
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Mortheast market area. The storage suppliers, the maximum daily deliverability of that storage
capacity and the contract expiration dates are as follows:

Maximum dail
Pipeline dellverability (dths) Expiration
Texas Eastern Transmission, L.P 94,557 Various dates between 2008 and 2013
Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corp. 8,384 2009
102,941

MJNG also has upstream storage contracts, maximum daily deliverability and contract
expiration dates as follows:

Maximum dai
Company deliverability (diths) Expiration
ANR Pipeling Company 40,000 2010
Daminion Transmission Corporation 103,714 Various dates between 2011 and 2012
Central NY Qil & Gas (Stagecoach) 47,065 Various dates between 2008 and 2011
190,779

ANR, Dominion and Stagecoach utilize NJNG's transportation contracts to transport gas from
their storage fields to MJNG's city gate.

Peaking Supply

To manage its winter peak day demand MJMNG maintains two liquefied natural gas (LNG)
facilities with a combined deliverability of 150,000 dths per day, which represents approximately
19 percent of its estimated peak day sendout. See ftem 2. Properties-NJING for additional
information regarding the LNG storage facilities.

Basic Gas Supply Service

Wholesale natural gas prices are, by their very nature, volatile. NJNG has mitigated the impact
of volatile price changes on customers through the use of financial derivative instruments, which are
part of its financial risk management program, its storage incentive program and its Basic Gas
Supply Service (BGSS) clause. BGSS is a BPU-approved clause designed to allow for the recovery
of natural gas commodity costs. The clause also requires all New Jersey natural gas utilities to
make an annual filing by each June 1 for review of BGSS rates and to request a potential rate
change to be effective the following October 1. The BGSS also is designed to allow each natural
gas utility to provisionally increase residential and small commercial customer BGSS rates up to
5 percent on December 1 and February 1 on a self-implementing basis, after proper notice and
BPU action on the June filing. Such increases are subject to subsequent BPU review and final
approval. Decreases in the BGSS tariff can be implemented upon five days notice to the BPU.

On June 1, 2007, NJNG filed its annual review and revision of its BGSS for fiscal 2008
proposing a self-implementing decrease, which would offset increases related to the Societal
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Benefits Clause (SBC) and the Weather NMormalization Clause (WNC). On October 3, 2007, the BFU
approved changes to the Company's BGSS on a provisional basis. These rate changes, as well as
other regulatory actions, are discussed further in Note 3. Regulation in the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Future Natural Gas Supplies

NJNG expects to meet the natural gas requirements for existing and projected firm customers
into the foreseeable future. If NJNG's long-term natural gas requirements change, NJNG would
renegotiate and restructure its contract portfolio components to better match the changing needs of
its customers.

Regulation and Rates
State

NJMG is subject to the jurisdiction of the BPU with respect to a wide range of matters such as
rates, the issuance of securities, the adequacy of service, the manner of keeping its accounts and
records, the sufficiency of natural gas supply, pipeline safety, compliance with affiliate standards
and the sale or encumbrance of its properties.

See Note 3. Regulation in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information regarding NJNG's rate proceedings.

Federal

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) regulates rates charged by interstate
pipeline companies for the transportation and storage of natural gas. This affects NJNG's
agreements for the purchase of such services with several interstate pipeline companies. Any costs
associated with these services are recoverable through the BGSS.

Competition

Although its franchises are nonexclusive, NJNG is not currently subject to competition from
other natural gas distribution utilities with regard to the transportation of natural gas in its service
territory. Due to significant distances between NJNG's current large industrial customers and the
nearest interstate natural gas pipelines, as well as the availability of its transportation tariff, NJNG
currently does not believe it has significant exposure to the risk that its distribution system will be
bypassed. Competition does exist from suppliers of oil, coal, electricity and propane. At the present
time, however, natural gas enjoys an advantage over alternate fuels in over 95 percent of new
construction due to its efficiency and reliability. As deregulation of the natural gas industry
continues, prices will be determined by market supply and demand but, although NJNG believes
natural gas will remain competitive with alternate fuels, no assurance can be given in this regard.

The BPU, within the framework of the Electric Discount and Energy Competition Act (EDECA),
approved a stipulation among various parties to fully open NJNG's residential markets to
competition, restructure its rates to segregate its BGSS and delivery (i.e., transportation) prices and
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expand an incentive for residential and small commercial customers to switch to transportation
service. On September 30, 2007, NJNG had 9,229 residential and 4,875 commercial and industrial
customers utilizing the transportation service. Based on its current and projected level of
transportation customers, NJNG expects to use its existing firm transportation and storage capacity
to fully meet its firm sales contract obligations.

Under an order issued in January 2002 from the BPU, BGSS can be provided by suppliers
other than the state's natural gas utilities. BGSS must be provided by the state's natural gas utilities
in the absence of any third-party suppliers.

ENERGY SERVICES

NJRES provides unregulated, wholesale energy services, including base load natural gas,
peaking and balancing services, utilizing physical assets it controls through natural gas pipeline and
storage contracts, as well as asset management services. NJRES' business footprint extends to
customers in states from the Gulf Coast and Mid-Continent regions to the New England region and
Canada.

MNJRES has built a portfolio of customers including local distribution companies, industrial
companies, electric generators and retail aggregators. Sales to these customers have allowed
MNJRES to leverage its transportation and storage capacity and manage sales to these customers in
an aggregate fashion. This allows NJRES to extract additional value from its portfolio of storage and
transportation contracts.

MJRES focuses on creating value from underutilized natural gas assets, which are typically
amassed through contractual rights to natural gas transportation and storage capacity. NJRES has
developed a portfolio of storage and transportation capacity in the Northeast, Gulf Coast,
Mid-Continent, and Appalachian regions of the United States and eastern Canada. These assets
become more valuable as their underlying prices change between these geographic locations and
over time. NJRES seeks to optimize this process on a daily basis as market conditions change by
evaluating all the natural gas supplies, transportation and opportunities to which it has access, to
find the most profitable alternative for serving its various commitments. This enables NJRES to
capture geographic pricing differences across these various regions as the price for delivered
natural gas changes with respect to market conditions.

NJRES participates in natural gas storage transactions where it seeks to identify pricing
differences that occur over time, as prices for future delivery periods at many locations are readily
available. For example, NJRES may generate gross margin by locking in the differential between
purchasing natural gas at a low current or future price and, in a related transaction, selling that
natural gas at a high current or future price, all within the constraints of its contracts and credit
policies. Through the use of transportation and storage services, NJRES is able to generate gross
margin through pricing differences that occur over the duration of time the assets are held.

MNJRES' portiolio management customers include nonaffiliated utilities and electric generation
plants. Services provided by NJRES include optimization of underutilized natural gas assets and
basic gas supply functions,
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MNJRES also participates in park-and-loan transactions with pipeline counterparties, where
NJRES will borrow natural gas when there is an opportunity to capture arbitrage value. In these
cases, MJRES evaluates the economics of the transaction to determine if it can capture pricing
differentials in the marketplace in order to be able to generate gross margin. In evaluating these
transactions NJRES will compare the fixed fee it will pay and the resulting spread it can generate to
the amount it will receive to sell the borrowed gas to another counterparty in relation to the cost it
will incur to purchase the gas at a later date for return back to the pipeline. When the transaction
allows NJRES to generate gross margin, NJRES will fix the gross margin by economically hedging
the transaction with natural gas futures.

Generally, NJRES' financial futures and swaps contracts (derivative instruments) are accounted
far at fair value while its commodity contracts for future delivery meet the “normal purchase normal
sale” scope exception of SFAS 133. Under the normal purchase normal sale scope exception of
SFAS 133 the commodity contract is accounted for under accrual accounting. For each derivative
instrument accounted for at fair value, which represent economic hedges designed to protect the
values of forecasted natural gas purchases, sales and transportation, the change in fair value is
recognized in the income statement during the period the derivative instrument is economically
hedging the underlying transaction.

Accounting for derivative instruments at fair value may result in significant movements between
reporting periods depending on the underlying change in price. As a result, the Company may be
subject to extreme volatility in earnings, while the underlying economic impacts of the transaction
will remain the same when the derivative instruments are settled and the forecasted transactions
occur. To better understand the NJRES business, the Company believes that “net financial
earnings” are a better indicator of the results of NJRES, as this removes any potential volatility
associated with changes in fair value, commonly referred to as unrealized gains and losses, until
the forecasted transaction is settled. Met financial eamnings are not based on generally accepted
accounting principles of the United States (GAAP). See ftem 7. Management's Discussion and
Analysis for a definition of net financial earnings and a reconciliation to the appropriate GAAP
financial measure.

In fiscal 2007, NJRES had one customer, Washington Gas Light Company, who represented
more than 10 percent of its total revenua. Management believes that the loss of this customer
would not have a material effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows as an
adequate number of alternative counterparties exist,

RETAIL AND OTHER
Retail and Other operations consist primarily of the following unregulated affiliates:
« MJRHS, which provides service, sales and installation of appliances;

* NJR Energy, an investor in energy-related ventures through its subsidiary, Pipeline, which
consists primarily of its 5.53 percent equity investment in Iroquois, which is a 412-mile natural
gas pipeline from the Mew York-Canadian border to Long Island, Mew York; NJR Investment,
which makes certain energy-related equity investments,
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MJR Steckman Ridge Storage Company, which holds the Company's 50 percent equity
method investment in Steckman Ridge. Steckman Ridge is a partnership, jointly owned and
contralled by subsidiaries of the Company and subsidiaries of Spectra Energy Corporation,
that will build, own and operate an anticipated 20 Bef natural gas storage facility in western
Pennsylvania. Steckman Ridge is currently under construction and commercial operation is
expected during fiscal 2009. The total project cost is estimated at approximately $250 million,
with the Company committed to fund $125 million. As of September 30, 2007, the investment
in Steckman Ridge, which includes capitalized carrying costs, is approximately $56.7 million.
MJR anticipates that Steckman Ridge will be able to obtain financing for construction and
development on a non recourse basis, thereby reducing the total funding commitment
required by NJR; however, there can be no assurance that this will occur;

CR&R, which holds and develops commercial real estate. As of September 30, 2007, CR&R's
real estate portfolio consisted of 83 acres of undeveloped land in Monmouth and Atlantic
counties and a 56,400-square-foot office building on 5 acres of developed land in Monmouth
County with a total net book value of $17.2 million. In fiscal 2005, CR&R changed its strategy
with regard to its 52 acres of undeveloped land in Atlantic County.

In conjunction with this change in strategy, CR&R estimated its fair value and compared that
to its book value. Accordingly, CR&R recognized a pre-tax impairment charge of $3.9 million
in fiscal 2005. See Note 1. Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies—Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion
of this change in strategy with regard to the Atlantic County land. The net book value of this
undeveloped land is $2.1 million as of September 30, 2007. CR&R's 31 acres of
undeveloped land in Monmouth County, which has a net book value of $6.1 million as of
September 30, 2007, will be developed based on market conditions. The specific time frame
for development is currently unknown.

In November 2006, CR&R sold approximately 15 acres of land for approximately $1.8 million,
which resulted in pre-tax gain on sale of $300,000. As the sale included a lease-back
provision with NJRHS of certain portions of buildings to be constructed on the acreage,
CR&R will recognize the pre-tax gain over the 10-year term of the lease beginning in fiscal
2008; and

Service, which provides shared administrative services to the Company and all its
subsidiaries.

See ltem 2. Properties—Retail and Other for additional information regarding CR&R's remaining
real estate assets,

ENVIRONMENT

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to legislation and regulation by federal, state and
local authorities with respect to environmental matters. The Company believes that it is in
compliance in all material respects with all applicable environmental laws and regulations.
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MJNG is responsible for the environmental remediation of three manufactured gas plant (MGP)
sites, which contain contaminated residues from former gas manufacturing operations that ceased
at these sites by the mid-1950s and in some cases, had been discontinued many years earlier. In
September 2007, NJNG updated an environmental review of the MGP sites, including a review of
potential liability related to the investigation and remedial action of these sites. Based on this review,
NJMG estimated that the total future expenditures to remediate and monitor the three MGP sites for
which it is responsible will range from $105.3 million to $164.8 million.

NJNG's estimate of these liabilities is based upon known facts, existing technology and
enacted laws and regulations in place when the review was completed. Where available information
is sufficient to estimate the amount of the liability, it is NJNG's policy to accrue the full amount of
such estimate. Where the information is sufficient only to establish a range of possible liability, and
no point within the range is more likely than the other, it is NJNG's policy to accrue the lower end
of the range. As a result, NJNG has recorded an MGP remediation liability and a corresponding
Regulatory asset of $105.3 million on the Consolidated Balance Sheet; however, actual costs may
differ from these estimates. MJNG will continue to seek recovery of these costs through its
remediation rider. See lfem 3. Legal Proceedings and Nofe 13. Commitments and Confingent
Liabifities in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements for information with respect to
environmental matters and material expenditures for the remediation of the MGP sites.

CR&R is the owner of certain undeveloped land in Monmouth and Atlantic counties, New
Jersey, with a net book value at September 30, 2007, of $8.2 million. These lands are regulated by
the provisions of the Freshwater Wetlands Protection Act (Wetlands Act), which restricts building in
areas defined as “freshwater wetlands™ and their transition areas. Based upon a third-party
environmental engineer's delineation of the wetland and transition areas in accordance with the
provisions of the Wetlands Act, CR&R will file for a Letter of Interpretation from the New Jersey
Department of Environmental Protection (NJOEP) as parcels of land are selected for development. If
the NJDEP reduces the amount of developable yield from CR&R's current estimates, a writedown of
the carrying value of the undeveloped land may be required.

Taking into consideration the environmental engineer's revised estimated developable yield for
undeveloped acreage, the Company does not believe that a write-down of the carrying value of the
Monmouth and Atlantic counties land was necessary as of September 30, 2007.

Although the Company cannot estimate with certainty future costs of environmental
compliance, which, among other factors, are subject to changes in technology and governmental
regulations, the Company does not presently anticipate any additional significant future expenditure
for compliance with existing environmental laws and regulations, other than for the remediation of
the MGP sites discussed in Note 13. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities in the accompanying
Consclidated Financial Statements, which would have a material effect upon the capital
expenditures, results of operations or competitive position of the Company or its subsidiaries.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, the Company and its
subsidiaries had 808 and 766 employees. Of those employees, NJNG had 388 and 370 union
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employees and NJRHS had 80 and 84 union employees, respectively. In 2003, NJNG and NJRHS
reached collective bargaining agreements with local 1820 of the International Brotherhood of
Electrical Workers (IBEW), AFL-CIO expiring in December 2008 and April 2007, respectively. In

April 2007, the NJRHS Agreement was extended until April 2010. The labor agreements cover wage
increases and other benefits during the term of the agreements. The Company considers its
relationship with employees, including those covered by collective bargaining agreements, to be
good.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

When considering any investment in our securities, investors should consider the following
information, as well as the information contained under the caption “Forward Looking Statements,”
in analyzing our present and future business performance. While this list is not exhaustive, our
management also places no [:I-I'il::Ii‘ih.r or likelihood based on their description or order of
presentation.

Financial Risks
Ability to access the financial markets

MNJR relies on access to both short-term and long-term credit as a significant source of liquidity
for capital requirements not satisfied by its cash flow from operations. Any deterioration in NJR's
financial condition could hamper its ability to access the credit markets or otherwise obtain debt
financing. Because certain state regulatory approvals may be necessary in order for MJNG to incur
debt, NJNG may not be able to access credit markets on a timely basis.

External events could also increase the cost of borrowing or adversely affect the ability to
access the financial markets. Such external events could include the following:

* economic weakness in the United States or in the regions where NJR operates:
* financial difficulties of unrelated energy companies;

= capital market conditions generally;

= market prices for natural gas;

= the overall health of the natural gas utility industry; and

« fluctuations in interest rates.

Restrictions on the ability to access financial markets could affect management's ability to
execute NJR's, NJRES' and NJNG's business plan. An inability to access capital may limit the
ability to pursue improvements or acquisitions that NJR, or its subsidiaries, may otherwise rely on
for future growth.
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Credit rating downgrades could increase financing costs, limit access to the financial markets and
negatively affect NJNG

The debt of NJMG is currently rated by the rating agencies Moody's Investor Services, Inc. and
Standard & Poor's as investment grade. If such ratings are downgraded below investment grade,
borrowing costs could increase, as will the costs of maintaining certain contractual relationships.

Lower credit ratings could also adversely affect relationships with state regulators, who may be
unwilling to allow NJNG to pass along increased costs to its natural gas customers.

NJRES"® ability to conduct its business is dependent upon the creditworthiness of NJR

If the ability of NJR to issue parental guarantees, or if NJR suffers a reduction in its credit and
borrowing capacity, the business prospects of NJRES, which rely on the creditworthiness of NJR,
would be adversely affected. NJRES would possibly be required to comply with various margin or
other credit enhancement obligations under its trading and marketing contracts, and it may be
unable to continue to trade or be able to do so only on less favorable terms with certain
counterparties.

Debt covenants may impact financial condition if triggered

MNJR and NJNG's long-term debt obligations contain financial covenants related to
debt-to-capital ratios and interest coverage ratios. The failure to comply with any of these covenants
could result in an event of default which, if not cured or waived, could result in the acceleration of
outstanding debt obligations or the inability to borrow under certain credit agreements. Any such
acceleration would cause a material adverse change in MJR or NJNG's financial condition.

An effective system of internal control is not mainfained, leading to material weaknesses in internal
control over financial reporting

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires NJR's management to make an
assessment of the design and effectiveness of internal controls. It also requires NJR's independent
registered public accounting firm to audit the design and effectiveness of these controls and to form
an opinion on both management’s assessment and the effectiveness of these controls.
Management's ongoing assessment of these controls may identify areas of weakness in control
design or effectiveness, which may lead to the conclusion that a material weakness in internal
control exists. NJR's independent public registered accounting firm may also identify control
deficiencies which may lead to identification of a material weakness in internal control. As of
September 30, 2007, management concluded that NJR had a material weakness in internal control
over financial reporting and that, as a result, its internal control over financial reporting was not
effective.

Because MJR concluded that its internal control over financial reporting is not effective and
because its independent registered public accountants issued an adverse opinion on the
effectiveness of its internal controls over financial reporting, and to the extent NJR identify future
weaknesses or deficiencies, NJR may not be able to produce reliable financial statements, which
could result in a loss of investor confidence and a decline in its stock value. In addition, should
NJR not be able to produce reliable financial statements, it could limit NJR's and NJNG's ability to
access the capital markets.
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As described in Item 9A of this report, NJR is committed to the remediation of the material
weakness referred to above as well as the continued improvement of its overall system of internal
control over financial reporting. Management is in the process of actively addressing and
remediating this material weakness in internal control over financial reporting, but there can be no
assurance that its corrections will be sufficient or fully effective, or that it will not discover additional
material weaknesses in its internal controls and procedures in the future. While NJR's system of
internal controls is reviewed periodically, there exist inherent limitations to control effectiveness.

Hedging activities of the Company designed fo protect against commodity and financial market risks
may cause fluctuations in reported financial results and NJR's stock price could be adversely
affected as a result.

Although the Company uses derivatives, including futures, forwards, options and swaps, to
manage commodity and financial market risks, the timing of the recognition of gains or losses on
these economic hedges in accordance with GAAP does not always match up with the gains or
losses on the items being hedged. The difference in accounting can result in volatility in reported
results, even though the expected profit margin is essentially unchanged from the dates the
transactions were consummated.

Operational Risks
NJNG's operations are subject to cerain operaling risks

NJNG's operations are subject to all operating hazards and risks incidental to handling, storing,
transporting and providing customers with natural gas, including explosions, pollution, release of
toxic substances, fires, storms and other adverse weather conditions and hazards, each of which
could result in damage to or destruction of facilities or damage to persons and property. If any of
these events were to occur, NJR could suffer substantial losses. Moreover, as a result, NJR has
been, and likely will be, a defendant in legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordinary
course of business. Although NJR maintains insurance coverage, insurance may not be sufficient to
cover all material expenses related to these risks.

Major changes in the supply and price of natural gas may affect financial resuls

While NJNG expects to provide for the demand of its customers for the foreseeable future,
factors impacting suppliers and other third parties, including increased competition, further
deregulation, transportation costs, transportation availability and drilling for new natural gas
resources, may impact the supply and price of natural gas. NJNG actively hedges against the
fluctuation in the price of natural gas by entering into forward and financial contracts with third
parties. Should these third parties fail to perform, it may result in a loss that could have a material
impact on the financial position, cash flows and statement of operations of NJR.

NJNG and NJRES rely on third parties to supply natural gas

NJNG's ability to provide natural gas for its present and projected sales will depend upon its
suppliers’ ability to obtain and deliver additional supplies of natural gas, as well as NJNG’s ability to
acquire supplies directly from new sources. Factors beyond the control of NJNG, its suppliers and
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the independent suppliers who have obligations to provide natural gas to certain NJNG customers,
may affect NJNG’s ability to deliver such supplies. These factors include other parties’ contral over
the drilling of new wells and the facilities to transport natural gas to NJNG's city gate stations,
competition for the acquisition of natural gas, priority allocations, impact of severe weather
disruptions to natural gas supplies, the regulatory and pricing policies of federal and state
regulatory agencies, as well as the availability of Canadian reserves for export to the United States.
Energy deregulation legislation may increase competition among natural gas utilities and impact the
quantities of natural gas requirements needed for sales service.

MNJRES also relies on a firm supply source to meet its energy management obligations for its
customers. Should NJRES' suppliers fail to deliver supplies of natural gas, there could be a material
impact on its cash flows and statement of operations.

The use of derivative conlracts in the normal course of NJRES' business could result in financial
losses that negatively impact results of operations

MJRES uses derivatives, including futures, forwards, options and swaps, to manage commodity
and financial market risks. NJRES could recognize financial losses on these contracts as a result of
volatility in the market values of the underlying commaodities or if a counterparty fails to perform
under a contract. In the absence of actively quoted market prices and pricing information from
external sources, the valuation of these financial instruments can involve management's judgment
or use of estimates. As a result, changes in the underlying assumptions or use of alternative
valuation methods could adversely affect the value of the reported fair value of these contracts.

Infiation and increased natural gas costs could adversely impact NJNG's customer base and
customer collections and increase its level of indebtedness

Inflation has caused increases in certain operating and capital costs. NJR has a process in
place to continually review the adequacy of NJNG's rates in relation to the increasing cost of
providing service and the inherent regulatory lag in adjusting those rates. The ability to control
expenses is an important factor that will influence future results.

Rapid increases in the price of purchased gas may cause NJNG to experience a significant
increase in short-term debt because it must pay suppliers for gas when it is purchased, which can
be significantly in advance of when these costs may be recovered through the collection of monthly
customer bills for gas delivered. Increases in purchased gas costs also slow collection efforts as
customers are more likely to delay the payment of their gas bills, leading to higher-than-normal
accounts receivable. This situation also results in higher short-term debt levels and increased bad
debt expense.

Changes in weather conditions may affect earnings and cash flows

Weather conditions and other natural phenomena can have an adverse impact on earnings and
cash flows. Severe weather conditions can impact suppliers and the pipelines that deliver gas to
NJMNG's distribution system. Extended mild weather, during either the winter period or summer
period, can have a significant impact on demand for and the cost of natural gas. While NJR
believes the CIP will mitigate the impact of weather on its gross margin, unusual weather conditions
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may still have an impact on its earnings. The CIP will not mitigate the impact of unusual weather
conditions on its cash flows.

Changes in customer growth may affect earnings and cash flows

NJMG's ability to increase its utility firm gross margin is dependent upon the new construction
housing market, as well as the additional conversion of customers to natural gas from other fuel
sources. Should there be a slowdown in these markets there could be an adverse impact an
NJNG’s utility firm gross margin, earnings and cash flows.

The cost of providing pension and posfemployment health care benefits to eligible former employees
is subject to changes in pension fund values and changing demographics and may have a material
adverse effect on NJR's financial results

NJR has two defined benefit pension plans and two postemployment health care plans (OPEB)
for the benefit of substantially all full-time employees and qualified retirees. The cost of providing
these benefits to eligible current and former employees is subject to changes in the market value of
the pension and OPEE fund assets and changing demographics, including longer life expectancy of
beneficiaries, an expected increase in the number of eligible former employees over the next five
years and increases in health care costs.

Any sustained declines in equity markets and reductions in bond yields may have a material
adverse effect on the value of NJR's pension and OPEB funds. In these circumstances, NJR may
be required to recognize an increased pension and OPEB expense or a charge to the statement of
operations to the extent that the pension and OPEB fund values are less than the total anticipated
liability under the plans.

NJRES® earnings and cash flows are dependent upon an asset optimization strategy of its physical
assets with financial transactions

MJRES' earnings and cash flows are based, in part, on its ability to optimize its portfolio of
contractual-based natural gas storage and pipeline assets. The optimization strategy involves
utilizing its physical assets to take advantage of differences in natural gas prices between
geographic locations and/or time periods. Any change among various pricing points could affect
these differentials, which in turn could affect NJRES’ earnings and cash flows.

NJRES is exposed lo market risk and may incur losses in wholesale services

The commodity, storage and transportation portfolios at MJRES consist of contracts to buy and
sell natural gas commodities, which are settled by physical delivery.

If the values of these contracts change in a direction or manner that NJRES does not
anticipate, the value of NJRES' portfolio could be negatively impacted. NJRES employs a value at
risk (VaR) model over these portfolios. VaR is defined as the largest likely potential loss in portfolio
value and is usually measured in terms of time to unwind or settle contractual positions. NJRES'
portfolio of positions as of September 30, 2007, had a VaR of $1.3 million based on a 95 percent
confidence interval and employing a 1-day holding period, and $5.8 million, based on a 99 percent
confidence interval and employing a 10-day holding period.
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Accounting results may not be indicative of the risks NJRES is faking or the expected economic
results due to changes in accounting for energy services

Although NJRES enters into various contracts to economically hedge the value of its energy
assets and operations, there can be no assurance that the hedge is operating effectively as
intended and will continue to do so. Any uncontemplated change in the underlying item being
hedged to that of a different or unforecasted position could result in a substantial negative impact
to NJRES’ and NJR's, financial condition, statement of operations or statement of cash flows.

NJNG and NJRES rely on storage and transportation assels that they do not own or control to deliver
natural gas

NJNG and NJRES depend on natural gas pipelines and other storage and transportation
facilities owned and operated by third parties to deliver natural gas to wholesale markets and to
provide retail energy services to customers. If transportation is disrupted, or if storage capacity is
inadequate, including for reasons of force majeure, the ability of NJNG and NJRES to sell and
deliver their products and services may be hindered. As a result, they may be responsible for
damages incurred by their customers, such as the additional cost of acquiring alternative supply at
then-current market rates.

Investing through partnerships or joint ventures decreases NJR's ability to manage risk

MNJR and its subsidiaries have utilized joint ventures for certain non-regulated energy
investments, including Steckman Ridge and Iroquois, and although they currently have no specific
plans to do so, NJR and its subsidiaries may acquire interests in other joint ventures in the future.
In these joint ventures, NJR and its subsidiaries may not have the right or power to direct the
management and policies of the joint ventures and other participants may take action contrary to
their instructions or requests and against their policies and objectives. In addition, the other
participants may become bankrupt or have economic or other business interests or goals that are
inconsistent with those of NJR and its subsidiaries. If a joint venture participant acts contrary to the
interests of NJR or its subsidiaries, it could harm NJR's financial condition, results of operations or
cash flows,

Regulatory and Legal Risks

NJR is subject to governmental regulalion. Compliance with current and future regulatory
requirements and procurement of necessary approvals, permits and certificates may result in
substantial costs to NJR

MJR and its subsidiaries are subject to substantial regulation from federal, state and local
regulatory authorities. They are required to comply with numerous laws and regulations and to
obtain numerous authorizations, permits, approvals and certificates from governmental agencies.
These agencies regulate various aspects of their business, including customer rates, services and
natural gas pipeline operations.

MNJR and its subsidiaries cannot predict the impact of any future revisions or changes in
interpretations of existing regulations or the adoption of new laws and regulations applicable to
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them. Changes in regulations or the imposition of additional regulations could influence their
operating environment and may result in substantial costs to them.

Risks related to the regulation of NJNG could affect the rates it is able fo charge, its costs and its
profitability

MNJNG is subject to regulation by federal, state and local authorities. These authorities regulate
many aspects of NJNG’s distribution operations, including construction and maintenance of
facilities, operations, safety, rates that NJNG can charge customers, rates of return, the authorized
cost of capital, recovery of pipeline replacement and environmental remediation costs and
relationships with its affiliates. NJNG's ability to obtain rate increases, including base rate increases,
extend its incentive programs and maintain its current rates of return depends on regulatory
discretion. There can be no assurance that NJNG will be able to obtain rate increases, continue its
incentive programs or continue receiving its currently authorized rates of return.

Significant regulatory assets recorded by NJNG couwld be disallowed for recovery from customers in
the future

NJNG records regulatory assets on its financial statements to reflect the rate-making nature
and regulatory decision making of the BPU as allowed by current accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The creation of a regulatory asset allows for the deferral
of costs, absent a recovery mechanism to charge its customers in rates approved by the BPU that
NJMNG would normally charge to expense on its income statement. Primary regulatory assets that
are subject to BPU approval include the underrecovery of BGSS and Universal Service Fund (USF)
costs, remediation costs associated with its MGP sites, the CIP WNG, the New Jersey Clean Energy
program and pension and other postemployment plans. If there were to be a change in regulatory
position surrounding the collection of these deferred costs there could be a material impact on
NJNG's financial position, operations and cash flows.

NJR's charter and bylaws may delay or prevent a transaction that stockholders would view as
favorable

The certificate of incorporation and bylaws of NJR, as well as New Jersey law, contain
provisions that could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing an unsolicited change in
control of NJR, which may negatively affect the market price of the common stock or the ability of
stockholders to participate in a transaction in which they might otherwise receive a premium for
their shares over the then current market price. These provisions also may have the effect of
preventing changes in management. In addition, the board of directors is authorized to issue
preferred stock without stockholder approval on such terms as the board of directors may
determine. The holders of common stock will be subject to, and may be negatively affected by, the
rights of any preferred stock that may be issued in the future. In addition, NJR is subject to the New
Jersey Shareholders’ Protection Act, which could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change
of control of NJR.
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NJR and its subsidiaries may be unable fo obtain governmental approvals, property rights andfor
financing for the construction, development and operation of its non-requlated energy investments

Construction, development and operation of energy investments, such as natural gas storage
facilities and pipeline transportation systems, is subject to federal and state regulatory oversight and
require ceriain property rights and approvals, including permits and licenses for such facilities and
systems. NJR, its subsidiaries, or its joint venture partnerships may be unable to obtain, in a
cost-efficient or timely manner, all such needed property rights, permits and licenses in order to
successfully construct and develop its non-regulated energy facilities and systems. Successful
financing of NJR's energy investments will reguire participation by willing financial institutions and
lenders, as well as acquisition of capital at favorable interest rates. If NJR and its subsidiaries do
not obtain the necessary regulatory approvals and financing, their equity investments could become
impaired and such impairment could have a materially adverse effect on NJR's financial condition,
results of operations or cash flows.,

Environmental Risks

NJR costs of compliance with present and future environmental laws are significant and could
adversely affect its cash flows and profitability

MNJR's operations are subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental statutes, rules
and regulations relating to air quality, water quality, waste management, natural resources and site
remediation. Compliance with these laws and regulations may require NJR to expend significant
financial resources to, among other things, conduct site remediation and perform environmental
monitoring. If NJR fails to comply with applicable environmental laws and regulations, even if it is
unable to do so due to factors beyond its control, it may be subject to civil liabilities or criminal
penalties and may be required to incur significant expenditures to come into compliance.
Additionally, any alleged violations of environmental laws and regulations may reguire NJR to
expend significant resources in its defense against alleged violations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

NJNG (All properties are located in New Jersey)

NJNG owns approximately 6,600 miles of distribution main, 6,500 miles of service main, 213
miles of transmission main and approximately 491,000 meters. Mains are primarily located under
public roads. Where mains are located under private property, NJNG has obtained easements from
the owners of record.

Additionally, NJNG owns and operates two LNG storage plants in Stafford Township, Ocean
County, and Howell Township, Monmouth County. The two LNG plants have an aggregate
estimated maximum capacity of approximately 150,000 dth per day. These facilities are used for
peaking natural gas supply and emergencies.

NJNG owns four service centers located in Rockaway Township, Morris County, Atlantic
Highlands and Wall Township, Monmouth County; and Lakewood, Ocean County. These service
centers house storerooms, garages, gas distribution and administrative offices. NJNG leases its
headquarters and customer service facilities in Wall Township, customer service offices in Asbury
Park, Monmouth County, and a service center in Manahawkin, Ocean County. These customer
service offices support customer contact, marketing, economic development and other functions.

Substantially all of NJNG's properties, not expressly excepted or duly released, are subject to
the lien of an Indenture of Morigage and Deed of Trust to BNY Midwest Trust Company, Chicago,
lllinois, dated April 1, 1952, as amended by 31 supplemental indentures (Indenture), as security for
NJNG's bonded debt, which totaled approximately $195 million at September 30, 2007, In addition,
under the terms of the Indenture, MJNG could have issued up to approximately $493 million of
additional first mortgage bonds as of September 30, 2007.

Retail and Other (All properties are located in New Jersey)

At September 30, 2007, CR&R owned 83 acres of undeveloped land and a 56,400-square-foot
office building on 5 acres. See Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies-Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets in the accompanying Consoclidated Financial Statements for a discussion of a
change in strategy with regard to CR&R's 52 acres of Atlantic County land.

See ltem 1. Environment for a discussion of regulatory matters concerning undeveloped land
owned by CR&R.

MNJRHS leases service centers in Town of Dover, Morris County, and Tinton Falls, Monmouth
County.
Capital Expenditure Program

See ltem 7. Management Discussion and Analysis—Cash Flows for a discussion of anticipated
fiscal 2008 and 2009 capital expenditures for each business segment.
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Manufactured Gas Plant Remediation

NJNG is responsible for the remedial cleanup plan of three Manufactured Gas Plant (MGP)
sites, dating back to the late 1800s and early 1900s, which contain contaminated residues from
former gas manufacturing operations. NJNG is currently involved in administrative proceedings with
the New Jersey Department of Enwvironmental Protection (NJDEP) with respect to two of the sites,
as well as participating in various studies and investigations by outside consultants to determine the
nature and extent of any such contaminated residues and to develop appropriate programs of
remedial action, where warranted, under Administrative Consent Orders or Memoranda of
Agreement with the NJDER

NJMG may, subject to BPU approval, recover its remediation expenditures, including carrying
costs, over rolling 7-year periods pursuant to a remediation adjustment clause (RAC) approved by
the BPU. In October 2007, the BPU approved $14.7 million in eligible costs to be recovered
annually for those MGP remediation expenditures actually incurred through September 30, 2006. As
of September 30, 2007, $85.1 million of previously incurred remediation costs, net of recoveries
from customers and insurance proceeds, are included in Regulatory assets on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet.

In September 2007, NJNG updated an environmental review of the MGP sites, including a
review of potential liability for investigation and remedial action. Based on this review, NJNG
estimated that total future expenditures to remediate and monitor the three MGP sites for which it is
responsible will range from approximately $105.3 million to $164.8 million. NJNG’s estimate of these
liabilities is based upon known facts, existing technology and enacted laws and regulations in place
when the review was completed. However, NJNG expects actual costs to differ from these
estimates. Where it is probable that the cost will be incurred, but the information is sufficient only to
establish a range of possible liability, and no point within the range is more likely than any other, it
is NJNG's policy to accrue the lower end of the range.

Accordingly, NJNG has recorded an MGP remediation liability and a corresponding Regulatory
asset of $105.3 million on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The actual costs to be incurred by
MNJMNG are dependent upon several factors, including final determination of remedial action,
changing technologies and governmental regulations, the ultimate ability of other responsible
parties to pay and any insurance recoveries.

NJNG is presently investigating the potential settliement of alleged Natural Resource Damage
claims that might be brought by the NJDEP concerning the three MGP sites. NJDEP has not made
any specific demands for compensation for alleged injury to groundwater or other natural
resources. NJNG's evaluation of these potential claims is in the early stages, and it is not yet
possible to quantify the amount of compensation, if any that NJDEP might seek to recover. NJNG
anticipates that any costs associated with this matter would be recoverable through the RAC.

NJNG will continue to seek recovery of MGP-related costs through the RAC. If any future
regulatory position indicates that the recovery of such costs is not probable, the related cost would
be charged to income in the period of such determination. However, because recovery of such
costs is subject to BPU approval, there can be no assurance as to the ultimate recovery through
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the RAC or the impact on the Company's results of operations, financial position or cash flows,
which could be material.

BPU Order Regarding Long Branch Mass Tort Litigation-Related Costs

Beginning in July 2003, a series of complaints were filed in the New Jersey Superior Court
against NJNG, the Registrant and other parties. The complaints were, as of February 2004,
designated as a Mass Tort Litigation (the Mass Tort Litigation). Among other things, the complaints
alleged personal injuries, wrongful death, survivorship actions, property damage and claims for
medical monitoring stemming from the operation and remediation of the former MGP site in Long
Branch, Mew Jersey.

In December 2005, a confidential settlement between NJNG and the plaintiffs in the Mass Tort
Litigation was finalized and approved by the New Jersey Superior Court. A separate lawsuit (the
Lawsuit) was filed by NJNG for declaratory relief against Kemper Indemnity Insurance Company
(Kemper) arising from Kemper's refusal to honor its obligations related to the Mass Tort Litigation
under insurance policies procured by NJNG that were intended to limit NJNG's liability for third
party claims for bodily injury and property damage, legal defense costs and remediation costs
arising from environmental contamination and remediation at the former MGP sites in Long Branch
and Toms River, New Jersey.

The Lawsuit was settled in January 2007. Pursuant to the terms of the settlement, NJNG
received a payment (the Settlement Payment) in the amount of $12.8 million from Kemper and
certain of its affiliates. The Seftlement Payment was made in exchange for a general release of all
claims asserted in the Lawsuit; no portion of the Settlement Payment was allocated to any particular
claim.

Pursuant to the RAC, NJNG sought to recover the remaining litigation and settlement costs
related to the Mass Tort Litigation and the Lawsuit. Under a written order by the BPU, dated
October 3, 2007, approving a stipulation among NJNG, the BPU and the State of New Jersey
Department of the Public Advocate, Division of Rate Counsel, NJNG will be allowed to recover
litigation and settlement costs related to the Mass Tort Litigation and the Lawsuit to the extent that
such costs exceed 34.0 million. $4.0 million is the portion of the costs NJNG incurred to litigate and
settle the Mass Tort Litigation and the Lawsuit that is reasonably reflective of and attributable to
personal injury claims. Personal injury claims are not recoverable under the RAG. The pre-tax
settlement charge of $4.0 million was recognized in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 and is reflected
in Operations and maintenance expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

General

The Company is party to various other claims, legal actions and complaints arising in the
ordinary course of business. In the Company's opinion, other than as disclosed in this ltem 3, the
ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on its financial condition,
results of operations or cash flows.
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None

ITEM 4A. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

Officer
Office Name Age  Since
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer Laurence M. Downes 50 1986
Senior Vice President, Corporate Affairs and Marketing Kathleen T. Ellis 54 2004
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Glenn C. Lockwood 46 1990
Senior Vice President, Energy Services, NJNG and NJRES Joseph P. Shields 50 1996
Vice President and General Counsel Mariellen Dugan 41 2005
Vice President, Customer Services, NJNG Kathleen F. Kerr 43 2005
Vice President, Energy Delivery, NJNG Craig A. Lynch 46 2005
Vice President, Marketing and Business Intelligence, NJNG Thomas J. Massaro, Jr. 41 2004
Vice President, Internal Auditing, Service George C. Smith, Jr. 50 2004
Vice President, Regulatory Affairs, NJNG Mark R. Sperduto 49 2005
Vice President, Corporate Services, Service Deborah G. Zilai 54 1996
Corporate Secretary Rhonda M. Figueroa 48 2005
Director of Government Affairs and Chief of Staff Linda B. Kellner 48 2006
Treasurer William G. Foley 51 2007

There is no arrangement or understanding between the officers listed above and any other
person pursuant to which they were selected as officers. The following is a brief account of their
business experience during the past five years:

Laurence M. Downes, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Downes has held the position of Chairman of the Board since September 1996. He has
held the pasition of President and Chief Executive Officer since July 1985. From January 1990 to
July 1885, he held the position of Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.

Kathleen T. Ellis, Senior Vice President, Corporate Affairs and Marketing

Ms. Ellis has held the position of Senior Vice President, Corporate Affairs since December 2004
and has held the position of Senior Vice President, Corporate Affairs and Marketing of NJNG since
July 2007. From December 2002 to November 2004, she held the position of Director of
Communications for the Governor of the State of New Jersey, and from August 1998 to
December 2002, she held the position of Manager of Communications and Director, State
Governmental Affairs for Public Service Electric and Gas Company (PSE&G), a combined gas and
electric utility company based in Newark, N.J.
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Glenn C. Lockwood, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Lockwood has held the position of Chief Financial Officer since September 1995 and the
added position of Senior Vice President since January 1996. From January 1994 to
September 1995, he held the position of Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer.
From January 1990 to January 1994, he held the position of Assistant Vice President, Controller and
Chief Accounting Officer.

Joseph P. Shields, Senior Vice President, Energy Services, NJRES and NJNG

Mr. Shields joined NJNG in 1983 and has been Senior Vice President, NJRES since
January 1996. As head of the energy services business unit, he is responsible for natural gas
supply acquisitions, negotiating transportation agreements and maonitoring natural gas control
activities as well as regulated wholesale marketing activity for NJNG.

Mariellen Dugan, Vice President and General Counsel

Ms. Dugan has held the position of Vice President and General Counsel since December 2005.
Prior to joining NJR, from February 2004 to November 2005, she held the position of First Assistant
Attorney General for the State of New Jersey, and from February 2003 to February 2004, she held
the position of Chief of Staff, Executive Assistant Attorney General of the State of New Jersey. From
July 1989 to January 2003, Ms. Dugan was Of Counsel to the law firm of Kevin H. Marino BC. in
Newark, MNJ.

Kathleen F. Kerr, Vice President, Customer Services, NJNG

Mrs. Kerr joined NJNG as Vice President, Customer Services in January 2005. Before joining
MNJMG, Mrs. Kerr was Director of Customer Service for PSE&G from April 2002 to December 2004.
Prior thereto, she held various senior management level positions at PSE&G in customer services
and other areas from April 1985 to December 2004.

Craig A. Lynch, Vice President, Energy Delivery, NJING

Mr. Lynch has held the position of Vice President, Energy Delivery, NJNG, since
Movember 2005. He joined NJNG in 1984 and is responsible for all aspects of NJNG's distribution,
transmission, and utility operations. Prior to his current position, Mr. Lynch held the position of
Director-Distribution, NJNG from July 1997 to October 2005. His duties were focused on the
operation of the distribution system, ensuring that the expansion and maintenance of the system
satisfied all federal, state, county and municipal regulations and conformed to all of NJNG's
procedures and practices in an efficient and economical manner.

Thomas J. Massaro, Jr., Vice President, Marketing and Business Intelligence, NJNG

Mr. Massaro has held the position of Vice President, Marketing and Business Intelligence, since
July 2007 and was the Treasurer at NJNG from September 2006 through September 2007. He is
responsible for the marketing function for NJNG. He joined MJNG in June 1989 as a Management
Engineer and has held several senior management positions in marketing, operations and customer
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service, including President of NJRHS from Movember 2004 to June 2005, and Director of
Operations at NJRHS from January 2004 to November 2004,

George C. Smith, Vice President, Internal Auditing, Service

Mr. Smith joined NJR in 1984 as an Associate Auditor. He has held the position of Vice
President, Internal Auditing since January 2004. In his prior role as Director of Internal Audit from
1998 to 2004, he redefined the internal audit function at NJR, implementing a new approach to
identify and analyze controls and related processes.

Mark R. Sperduto, Vice President, Regulatory Affairs, NJING

Mr. Sperduto joined NJNG in March 2005 and is responsible for the regulatory affairs strategy
and supports initiatives on key issues such as price stability and improved service. Previously,
Mr. Sperduto held the positions of Issues Manager—Financial and Director-Corporate Issues at
PSE&G from November 2001 to March 2005 and held various positions there from August 1991 to
November 2001. Mr. Sperduto started his career on the staff of the New Jersey Board of Public
Utilities, holding various positions with the agency from 1980 to 1991.

Deborah G. Zilai, Vice President, Corporate Services, Service

Mrs. Zilai has held the position of Vice President, Corporate Services since June 2005. She
joined New Jersey Resources in June 1996 after a twenty-year career at International Business
Machines Corporation, where she held various management positions. Her current responsibilities
include technology, human resources and supply chain management. From June 1996 to
May 2005, she served as Vice President, Information Systems and Services.

Rhonda M. Figueroa, Corporate Secretary

Ms. Figueroa has held the position of Corporate Secretary since March 2006. Her
responsibilities include serving as the secretary to the Board of Directors of NJR and its subsidiaries
as well as on various internal committees. She also serves as the Company's registered agent and
keeper of records. Ms. Figueroa joined NJR in 1981, From November 2005 to March 2008 she held
the position of Assistant Corporate Secretary, from August 2002 to November 2005, she held the
position of Manager of Business Transformation, and from August 2001 to August 2002, she held
the position of Manager of Marketing Services for NJRHS.

Linda B. Kellner, Director of Government Affairs and Chief of Staff

Ms. Kelliner has held the position of Chief of Staff since February 2001 and the position of
Director of Government Affairs since January 2003. She curmrently is responsible for state and
federal legislative activities impacting the energy industry, community relations as they relate to the
Company's environmental remediation projects, the corporate-wide Diversity initiative and
preparation of communications for the NJR Board of Directors. From January 2000 to January 2003,
she held the position of Manager of Government Affairs and from October 1995 to December 1999,
she served as Manager of Policy Analysis.
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William G. Foley, Treasurer

Mr. Foley joined New Jersey Resources in September 2007 and is responsible for the
management and leadership of the corporate treasury and investor relations functions. He held the
position of Director of Energy Derivatives at Societe Generale Bank from September 2005 to
August 2007, at ABN AMRO Bank from October 2004 to August 2005 and at Deutsche Bank from
January 2001 to September 2004 and was responsible for trading and marketing natural gas
derivatives. From August 1984 through June 1995 he held various positions in finance and treasury,
including Assistant Treasurer at CSX Corporation (CSX). His responsibilities at CSX included risk
management, investor relations and cash management. In addition, Mr. Foley has taught as an
adjunct professor at Rutgers Business School.
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MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

NJR's Common Stock is traded on the Mew York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol NJR.
As of September 30, 2007, NJR had 13,736 holders of record of its common stock.

MJR's common stock high and low sales prices and dividends paid per share were as follows:

[ 2007 2006 Dividends Paid
] High | Low | High | Low | 2007 | 2006
Fiscal Quarter '

First $53.16 | $4B8.46 | $46.95 | 540.68 | $.36 $.34
Second $51.10 | $46.30 | 54596 | 54149 | $.38 $.36
Third $56.45 | $49.80 | $47.38 | 54285 | 5.38 5.36
Fourth $52.70 | $45.50 | $51.39 | $46.34 | $.38 $.36

In 1996, the NJR Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 1 million of the
Company's commaon shares. Since 1996, the repurchase plan has been expanded several times
and, as of September 30, 2007, the Company has 8,147 shares of its common stock still available
for repurchase. On November 14, 2007, the NJR Board of Directors authorized an increase to the
plan to permit the repurchase, in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions, of
1 million shares, bringing the total permitted repurchases to 4.5 million shares as of that date.

The following table sets forth NJR's repurchase activity for the quarter ended September 30,

2007
Maximum Number
(or Approximate
Total Number of Dollar Value) of
Total Number Shares (or Units) Shares (or Units)
of Shares Average Price Purchased as Part That May Yet Be
(or Units) Paid per Share of Publicly Announced Purchased Under the
Period Purchased {or Unit) Plans or Programs Plans or Programs
o7 - 713107 - - - 348,147
8/1/07 - 8/31/07 - - 5 348,147
9/1/07 - 9/30/07 340,000 48.74 340,000 8,147
Total 340,000 48.74 340,000 8,147

The Chief Executive Officer's annual certification regarding the Company’s compliance with the
NYSE's corporate governance listing standards was submitted to the NYSE in fiscal 2007.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATISTICS

(Thousands, excep! per share data)

Fiscal Years Ended Septemibar 30, 2007 2006'" 2005 20047 20037
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Operating Revenues $3,021,765 $3,271,229 $3,184,582 52,545,908 $2,554,368
Operating Expenses
Gas purchases 2,621,575 2,639,489 2914387 2,236,501 2,219,242
Operation and maintenance 136,601 121,384 108,441 101,118 101,438
Regulatory rider expenses 37,605 28,587 31,594 9,540 4,592
Depreciation and
amortization 36,235 34,753 33,675 32,449 31,965
Energy and other taxes 62,499 58,632 56,211 49,908 46,639
Total Operating Expenses 2,894,515 2,882,845 3,144,308 2,429,516 2,403,876
Operating Income 127,250 388,384 40,274 116,392 150,492
Other income 4,294 4,725 4814 3,864 1,085
Interest charges, net 27,613 25,669 20,474 15,395 13,992
Income before Income Taxes 103,931 367,440 24614 104,861 137,585
Income tax provision 40,312 147,349 7,832 40,663 55,392
Equity in earnings, net of tax 1,662 1,817 1,753 1,101 568
Net Income $ 65281 % 221908 § 18535 & 65299 § 82761
Total Assets $2,230,745 $2,398,928 $2,330,248 51,861,979 51,584,775
CAPITALIZATION
Common stock equity $ 644,797 $ 621662 $ 438052 $ 467917 $ 418,941
Long-term debt 383,184 332,332 317,204 315,887 257,899
Total Capitalization $1,027,981 $ 953,994 § 755256 & VB3804 § 676,840
COMMON STOCK DATA
Earnings per share-Basic $ 234 % 7896 § 067 & 237 § 3.05
Earnings per share-Diluted $ 233 3 790 % 066 & 233 8§ 3.01
Dividends declared per share $ 1.52 % 144 § 136 & 130 § 1.24

M See "Restaterment of Prior Years Financial Statements™ at the beginning of Part I, ltem | and Note 2, "Restatement of
Consolidated Financial Statements” in Notes to Consolidated Financigl Staterments of the Farm 10-K,

@ The Selected Financial Dafa for years ended September 30, 2004 and 2003 have been restated to reflect adjustments to
a change in accounting for certain denvative instruments as further described in the “Restaterent of Prior Years Financial
Statements™ at the beginning of Parf 1, lfem 1.
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NJNG OPERATING STATISTICS

Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2007 2006 2006 2004 2003
Operating Revenues ($ in thousands)

Residential $ 584,727 5 598,274 §$ 568,324 $495866 3433634

Commercial and other 132,113 172,465 143,211 118326 99,587

Firm transportation 36,794 28,656 29,566 28,987 34,682
Total residential and commercial 753,634 799,395 741,101 644,179 567,903
Interruptible 7,141 12,134 14,377 9,575 8,406
Total system 760,775 811,529 755,478 653,754 576,309
Incentive programs 244,813 327,245 382,802 275148 183,569
Total Operating Revenues $1,005,588 51,138,774 $1,138,280 $928902 $759,878
Throughput (Bcf)

Residential 41.8 39.4 43.7 441 46.2

Commercial and other 9.4 10.4 1.3 10.9 10.9

Firm transportation 8.6 7.4 7.6 8.4 10.4
Total residential and commercial 59.8 57.2 62.6 63.4 67.5
Interruptible 6.5 7.2 9.7 8.9 7.4
Total system 66.3 64.4 72.3 72.3 74.9
Incentive programs 36.5 38.4 52.4 47.1 35.8
Total Throughput 102.8 102.8 124.7 119.4 110.7
Customers at Year-End

Residential 435,169 429 834 418,646 410,005 397,584

Commercial and other 28,916 28,914 28,878 27,718 26,313

Firm transportation 14,104 12,874 15,246 16,387 19,867
Total residential and commercial 478,189 471,622 462,770 454110 443,764
Interruptible 45 48 47 63 o
Incentive programs 26 35 39 35 25
Total Customers at Year-End 478,260 471,705 462,856 454,208 443,840
Interest Coverage Ratio 6.03 763 6.38 7.38 7.65
Average Therm Use per Customer

Residential 960 8920 1,045 1,079 1,178

Commercial and other 5,710 5,084 5,443 5,646 6,182
Degree-days 4,481 4,387 4,927 4810 5,354
Weather as a Percent of Normal 94% 90% 102% 899% 111%
Number of Employees 548 516 518 539 551

H
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Forward-looking and Cautionary Statements

From time to time, we may make statements thal may constitute “forward-looking statements”
within the meaning of the “safe-harbor" provisions of the Private Securilies Litigation Reform Act of
1995. These statements are based on our then current expectations and are subject to a number of
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those addressed in the
forward-looking statements. Information concerning forward-looking statements is set forth on page 1
of this annual report and are incorporated herein and the risk factors that may cause such
differences are summarized in ltem 1A beginning on page 11 and are incorporated herein.

Restatement of Prior Fiscal Year Periods

The following “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations" gives effects to the restatement discussed in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

During fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 the Company used what is commonly referred to as
“critical-terms-match” (CTM) to qualify its derivative instruments used in energy transactions at
NJRES and NJR Energy as cash flow hedges under the guidance of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as
amended and interpreted, (SFAS 133). During fiscal 2007, management of the Company became
aware that staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC"), in a speech, had raised
questions that some registrants may have inappropriately been applying the CTM approach. As a
result, the Company commenced a study to reanalyze how it documented CTM for its derivative
instruments treated as cash flow hedges. Based on this analysis, the Company concluded that it
had incorrectly applied cash flow hedge accounting to these derivative instruments.

The Company's conclusion that it had incorrectly applied cash flow hedge accounting results in
recognizing as part of Gas purchases and Operating revenues, as appropriate, in the Consolidated
Statements of Income the impact of the change in fair value of NJRES' and NJR Energy's derivative
assets and liabilities that had previously been recorded as part of Accumulated other
comprehensive income (OCI), which is a component of Common Stock Equity. These changes in
fair value, referred to as unrealized gains or losses, impact the Consolidated Statements of Income
only and have no change on the economic value associated with the underlying forecasted
transactions. There was no impact on reported cash flow from operations or liquidity, and this
change will not result in any future change to cash flow from operations or liquidity.

Management’'s Overview

Mew Jersey Resources Corporation (NJR or the Company) is an energy services holding
company providing retail natural gas service in New Jersey and wholesale natural gas and related
energy services to customers in states from the Gulf Coast and Mid-Continent regions to the New
England region and Canada through its two principal subsidiaries, New Jersey Natural Gas (NJNG)
and NJR Energy Services (NJRES).

Comprising the Natural Gas Distribution segment, NJNG is a natural gas utility which provides
regulated retail natural gas service in central and northern New Jersey and also participates in the

az
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off-systemn sales and capacity release markets. MJNG is regulated by the Mew Jersey Board of
Public Utilities (BPU).

NJRES maintains and transacts around a portfolio of physical assets consisting of natural gas
storage and transportation contracts. In addition, NJRES provides wholesale energy services to
non-affiliated utility and energy companies. NJRES comprises the Energy Services segment.

The Retail and Other segment includes NJR Home Services (NJRHS), which provides service,
sales and installation of appliances; NJR Energy (MJRE), an investor in energy-related ventures,
most significantly through MJNR Pipeline which holds the Company’'s 5.53 percent interest in
Iroquois Gas and Transmission Systemn, LP (Iroguois), a 412-mile natural gas pipeline from the New
York-Canadian border to Long Island, New York and NJR Steckman Ridge Storage Company,
which, in March 2007, acquired a 50 percent equity ownership interest in Steckman Ridge GRE LLC
and Steckman Ridge, LP (collectively, Steckman Ridge), an estimated 20 billion cubic foot (Bcf)
natural gas storage facility that is being jointly developed and constructed with a partner in western
Pennsylvania; NJR Investment, which makes energy-related equity investments; Commercial Realty
and Resources (CR&R), which holds and develops commercial real estate; and NJR Service
Company, which provides support services to the various NJR businesses.

MNet income and assets by business segment are as follows:

(8 v thousands) o0r 2008 205
Net Income
Matural Gas Distribution $44,480 68% $ 46870 21% 553,376 288%
Energy Services 21,298 33 188372 85 (62,805) (339)
Retail and Other 497 (1) (13,334) (6) 27,964 151
Total $65,281 100% $221,908 100% $ 18,535 100%
% in thousanas) 2007 2006 2005
Assets
Matural Gas Distribution $1,568,895 70% $1,586,934 66% 51,581,758 68%
Energy Services 482,404 22 714,867 30 621,471 27
Retail and Other 179,446 8 a7 127 4 127,019 5
Total §$2,230,745 100% %$2398928 100% $2330,248 100%

MJRES and MJR Energy account for certain of its derivative instruments (financial futures,
swaps and options) used to economically hedge the forecasted purchase, sale and transportation
of natural gas at fair value, as required under SFAS 133.

The change in fair value of derivative instruments at NJRES and NJR Energy over periods of
time, referred to as unrealized gains or losses, can result in substantial volatility in reported net
income under generally accepted accounting principles of the United States of America (GAAP).
Included in Met income in the table above are unrealized (losses) and gains in the Energy Services
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segment of $(18.9) million, $160.3 million and $(79.3) million, after taxes, for the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Included in Met income above are unrealized (losses) and gains in the Retail and Other
segment of $(4.2) million, $(16.9) million and $21.5 million, after taxes, for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Unrealized losses and gains at NJRES are the result of changes in the fair value of financial
derivative instruments used to economically hedge future natural gas sales, purchases and
transportation. They are the result of changes in the market-price of natural gas futures and basis
swaps.

NJR Energy records unrealized losses and gains with respect to the change in fair value of the
long-term financial natural gas swaps that are used to economically hedge a long-term natural gas
sale contact,

Natural Gas Distribution Segment

Natural Gas Distribution operations have been managed with the goal of growing profitably
through several key initiatives including:

= Working with the BPU and New Jersey Department of the Public Advocate, Division of Rate
Counsel (Rate Counsel), for the development of the decoupling of the impact of customer
usage on utility gross margin, which has allowed for the implementation of the Conservation
Incentive Program (CIP). The CIP allows NJMG to promote conservation programs to its
customers while maintaining protection of its utility gross margin associated with reduced
customer usage. CIP usage differences are calculated annually and are recovered one year
following the end of the CIP usage year;

Managing its customer growth, which is expected to total approximately 1.8 percent annually;

Generating eamings from various BPU-authorized gross margin-sharing incentive programs;

Managing the volatility of wholesale natural gas prices through a hedging program designed
to keep customers’ prices as stable as possible; and

Assessing the market and timing with respect to filing for a base rate increase, which takes
into account many factors, including, but not limited to, earning a reasonable rate of return
on the investments that have been constructed in the gas distribution system, as well as
recovery of all prudently incurred costs in order to provide reliable service throughout
NJNG's service territory.

Based upon increases in NJNG's operating, maintenance and capital costs, NJNG petitioned the
BPU, on November 20, 2007, to increase base rates for its natural gas delivery service by
approximately $58.4 million, including a return on equity component of 11.375 percent. This base
rate review filing is consistent with MJMG's objectives of providing safe and reliable service to its
customers and earning a market-based return. Based upon statutory time frames and potential
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regulatory lag, it is unlikely that any modification to its delivery rates would become effective during
fiscal 2008.

In conducting MJNG's business, management focuses on factors it believes may have
significant influence on its future financial results. NJNG's policy is to work with all stakeholders,
including customers, regulators and policymakers, to achieve favorable results. These factors
include the rate of NJNG's customer growth in its service territory, which can be influenced by
general economic conditions as well as political and regulatory policies that may impact the new
housing market. A portion of NJNG's customer growth comes from the conversion market, which is
influenced by the delivered cost of natural gas compared with competing fuels, interest rates and
other economic conditions.

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, the impact on weather was mitigated
by a Weather Normalization Clause (WNC). The WNC, however, did not capture lower customer
usage per degree-day. To mitigate this, NJNG obtained approval of the CIP effective as of
October 1, 2006. Therefore, for fiscal 2007, the impact of weather and usage on NJNG's utility
gross margin was significantly mitigated due to the CIR

The CIP is a three-year pilot program designed to decouple the link between customer usage
and NJMG's utility gross margin to allow NJNG to encourage its customers to conserve energy. For
the term of the pilot the existing WNC has been suspended and replaced with the CIP tracking
mechanism, which addresses utility gross margin variations related to both weather and customer
usage in comparison to established benchmarks. Recovery of such utility gross margin variations is
subject to additional conditions including an earnings test, which includes a return on equity
component of 10.5 percent, and an evaluation of Basic Gas Supply Service (BGSS)-related savings
achieved. To encourage energy efficiency, MJNG is also required to administer programs to further
customer conservation efforts over the term of the pilot. As of September 30, 2007 and 2006, the
obligation to fund these conservation programs was recorded at its present value of $1.4 million
and $1.8 million, respectively on the Consclidated Balance Sheets. An annual filing for the CIP must
be made in June of each year, coincident with NJNG's annual BGSS filing.

NJNG's operating expenses are heavily influenced by labor costs, large components of which
are covered by a negotiated collective bargaining agreement that expires in the first quarter of fiscal
2009. Labor-related fringe benefit costs may also influence NJNG's results.

As a regulated company, NJNG is required to recognize the impact of regulatory decisions on
its financial statements. As a result, significant costs are deferred and treated as regulatory assets,
pending BPU decisions regarding their ultimate recovery from customers. The most significant costs
incurred that are subject to this accounting treatment include manufactured gas plant (MGP)
remediation costs and wholesale natural gas costs. Actual remediation costs may vary from
management's estimates due to the developing nature of remediation requirements, regulatory
decisions by the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (MJDEP) and related
litigation. If there are changes in the regulatory position on the recovery of these costs, such costs
would be charged to income in the period of such determination.
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Due to the capital-intensive nature of NJMG's operations and the seasonal nature of its working
capital requirements, significant changes in interest rates can also impact NJNG's results.

Energy Services Segment

MNJRES provides unregulated wholesale energy services, including base load natural gas,
peaking and balancing services, utilizing physical assets it controls through natural gas pipeline
transportation and storage contracts, as well as providing asset management services to customers
in states from the Gulf Coast and Mid-continent regions to the Appalachian and Northeast regions
and Canada.

MNJRES incorporates the following elements to provide for growth, while focusing on
maintaining a low-risk operating and counterparty credit profile:

* Providing natural gas portfolic management services to nonaffiliated utilities and electric
generation facilities;

* Leveraging transactions for the delivery of natural gas to customers by aggregating the
natural gas commeodity costs and transportation costs in order to minimize the total cost
required to provide and deliver natural gas to NJRES' customers by identifying the lowest
cost alternative with the natural gas supply, transportation availability and markets to which
MJRES is able to access through its business footprint and contractual asset portfolio;

* |dentifying and benefiting from variations in pricing of natural gas transportation and storage
assets due to location or timing differences of natural gas prices to generate gross margin;
and

* Managing hedging programs that are designed to mitigate adverse market price fluctuations
in natural gas transportation and storage commitments.

NJRES views “financial margin” as its key financial measurement metric. NJRES' financial
margin represents revenues eamed from the sale of natural gas less costs of natural gas sold,
transportation and storage, and excludes any accounting impact from the change in fair value of
derivative financial instruments designed to hedge the economic impact of its transactions that have
not been settled, which represent unrealized gains and losses.

MNJRES has built a portfolio of customers including local distribution companies, industrial
companies, electric generators and retail aggregators. Sales to these customers have allowed
NJRES to leverage its transportation and storage capacity and manage sales to these customers in
an aggregate fashion. This strategy allows NJRES to extract more value from its portfolio of natural
gas storage and pipeline transportation capacity through the arbitrage of pricing differences as a
result of locational differences or over different periods of time.

MNJRES also focuses on creating value from underutilized natural gas assets, which are typically
amassed through contractual rights to natural gas transportation and storage capacity. NJRES has
developed a portfolio of natural gas storage and transportation capacity in states in the Mortheast,
Gulf Coast, Mid-continent and Appalachian regions and eastern Canada. These assets become
more valuable when prices change between these areas and across time periods. NJRES seeks to
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optimize this process on a daily basis as market conditions change by evaluating all the natural gas
supplies, transportation and opportunities to which it has access, to find the most profitable
alternative to serve its various commitments. This enables NJRES to capture geographic pricing
differences across these various regions as delivered natural gas prices change as a result of
market conditions. NJRES focuses on earning a financial margin on a single original transaction
and then utilizing that transaction, and the changes in prices across the regions or across time
periods, as the basis to further improve the initial result.

In a similar manner, NJRES participates in natural gas storage transactions where it seeks to
identify pricing differences that occur over time, as prices for future delivery periods at many
different locations, commonly referred to as delivery points, are readily available. For example,
NJRES generates financial margin by locking in the differential between purchasing natural gas at a
low current or future price and, in a related transaction, selling that natural gas at a high current or
future price, all within the constraints of its credit and contracts policies. Through the use of
transportation and storage services, NJRES is able to generate financial margin through pricing
differences that occur over the duration of time the assets are held.

NJRES' portfalio management customers include nonaffiliated utilities and electric generation
plants. Services provided by NJRES include optimization of underutilized natural gas assets and
basic gas supply functions.

NJRES also participates in park-and-loan transactions with pipeline counterparties, where
MNJRES will borrow natural gas when there is an opportunity to capture arbitrage value. In these
cases, MJRES evaluates the economics of the transaction to determine if it can capture pricing
differentials in the marketplace in order to be able to generate financial margin. In evaluating these
transactions NJRES will compare the fixed fee it will pay and the resulting spread it can generate to
the amount it will receive to sell the borrowed gas to another counterparty in relation to the cost it
will incur to purchase the gas at a later date for return back to the pipeline. When the transaction
allows NJRES to generate a financial margin, NJRES will fix the financial margin by economically
hedging the transaction with natural gas futures.

In conducting its business, NJRES mitigates risk by following formal risk management
guidelines, including trading limits, approval processes, segregation of duties, and formal contract
and credit review and approval procedures. NJRES continuously monitors and seeks to reduce the
risk associated with various counterparties credit exposure. The Risk Management Committee
(RMC) of MNJR, oversees compliance with these established guidelines.

Retail and Other Segment

In the Retail and Other segment, NJR utilizes a subsidiary, MJR Energy Holdings, to develop its
investments in natural gas “mid-stream’ assets. Mid-stream assets represent natural gas
transportation and storage facilities. NJR believes that acquiring, owning and developing these
mid-stream assets, which generally have a regulated rate or tariff structure, can provide a significant
growth opportunity for the Company. To that end, NJR has acquired an interest in Iroquois and
Steckman Ridge, which is currently under development, and is actively pursuing other potential
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opportunities that meet its investment and development criteria. Other businesses in the Retail and
Other segment include NJRHS, which provides service, sales and installation of appliances to over
149,000 customers, is focused on growing its installation business and expanding its service
contract customer base, and CR&R, which seeks additional opportunities to enhance the value of
its undeveloped land.

The financial results of Retail and Other consist primarily of the operating results of NJRHS and
equity in earnings attributable to the Company's equity investment in Iroquois as well as to
investments made by NJR Energy, an investor in other energy-related ventures through its operating
subsidiaries.

Az of September 30, 2007, NJR has invested §55 million in the Steckman Ridge natural gas
storage facility. Project costs related to the development of the storage facility are expected to be
approximately $250 million of which NJR is responsible for 50 percent, or $125 million. NJR expects
that Steckman Ridge will be able to secure non-recourse financing for the construction and
development of its facilities, thereby reducing the expected funding obligation of NJR.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Application of these accounting
principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosures of contingencies during the reporting
period. The Company regularly evaluates its estimates, including those related to the calculation of
the fair value of derivative instruments, unbilled revenues, provisions for depreciation and
amortization, regulatory assets, income taxes, pension and postemployment benefits other than
pensions and contingencies related to environmental matters and litigation. NJR bases its estimates
on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying
value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. In the normal course
of business, estimated amounts are subsequently adjusted to actual results that may differ from
estimates.

Regulatory Accounting

MJNG maintains its accounts in accordance with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
(FERC) Uniform System of Accounts as prescribed by the BPU. As a result of the ratemaking
process, NJNG is required to follow Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71,
Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation (SFAS 71), and consequently, the
accounting principles applied by NJNG differ in certain respects from those applied by unregulated
businesses. NJNG is required under SFAS 71 to recognize the impact of regulatory decisions on its
financial statements. NJNG's BGSS requires NJNG to project its natural gas costs and provides the
ability, subject to BPU approval, to recover or refund the difference, if any, of such actual costs as
compared with the projected costs included in prices through a BGSS charge to customers. Any
underrecovery or overrecovery is recorded as a Regulatory asset or liability on the Consolidated
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Balance Sheets and reflected in the BGSS charge to customers in subsequent years. NJNG also
enters into derivatives that are used to hedge natural gas purchases, and the offset to the resulting
fair value of derivative assets or liabilities is recorded as a Regulatory asset or liability on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

As of September 30, 2007, NJR adopted SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postemployment Plans, which requires that the funded status of its
pension and OPEB plans be fully recognized on the balance sheet. The liability relating to NJNG's
unrecognized prior service costs is offset by an increase to Regulatory assets as of September 30,
2007, as these unrecognized prior service costs have historically been recovered in rates charged
to customers. In addition to the BGSS and deferred pension costs, other regulatory assets consist
primarily of remediation costs associated with MGP sites, the CIP the WNC, the New Jersey Clean
Energy Program and the Universal Service Fund Program, all of which are subject to BPU approval
and are recorded as a Regulatory asset or liability on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. If there are
changes in future regulatory positions that indicate the recovery of such regulatory assets is not
probable, the related cost and carrying costs would be charged to income in the period of such
determination.

Derivatives

Derivative activities are recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended (SFAS 133), under which NJR records the fair
value of derivatives held as assets and liabilities. NJR's unregulated subsidiaries record changes in
the fair value of its derivative instruments in Gas purchases or Operating revenues, as appropriate,
on the Consolidated Statements of Income. NJR also has certain derivative instruments that qualify
as cash flow hedges. Under SFAS 133, the changes in fair value of derivatives gualifying as cash
flow hedges are recorded, net of tax, in Other comprehensive income, which accumulates as a
component of Common stock equity.

NJNG's derivatives that are used to manage price risk of its natural gas purchasing activities
are recoverable through its BGSS, subject to BPU approval. Accordingly, the offset to the change in
fair value of these derivatives is recorded as a Regulatory asset or liability on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

NJR has not designated any derivatives as fair value hedges as of September 30, 2007 and
2006.

In providing its unregulated wholesale energy services, NJRES enters into physical contracts to
buy and sell natural gas. These contracts qualify for the “normal purchase normal sale” scope
exception under SFAS 133 in that they provide for the purchase or sale of natural gas that will be
delivered in quantities expected to be used or sold by NJRES over a reasonable period of time in
the normal course of business. Accordingly, NJRES records the related liabilities incurred and
assets acquired under these contracts when title to the underlying commeodity passes.

The fair value of derivative instruments is determined by reference to quoted market prices of
listed contracts, published quotations or quotations from independent parties. NJRES' portiolio is
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valued using a combination of proprietary modeling methods and the most currently available
market pricing and data. Should there be a significant change in model assumptions, or in the
underlying market prices or data, or should certain contracts fail to meet the normal purchase
normal sale scope exception of SFAS 133, NJRES may experience a significant impact on its

financial position, results of operations and cash flows. The valuation methods have remained
consistent for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Environmental Costs

At the end of each fiscal year, NJNG updates the environmental review of its MGP sites,
including a review of its potential liability for investigation and remedial action, based on assistance
from an outside consulting firm. From this review, NJNG estimates expenditures that will be
necessary to remediate and monitor these MGP sites. NJNG's estimate of these liabilities is
developed from then currently available facts, existing technology and presently enacted laws and
regulations.

Where it is probable that the cost will be incurred, but the information is sufficient to establish
only a range of possible hiability, and no point within the range is more likely than any other, it is
NJNG's policy to accrue the lower end of the range. Since management believes that recovery of
these expenditures, as well as related litigation costs, is possible through the regulatory process, in
accordance with SFAS 71, it has recorded a regulatory asset corresponding to the accrued liability.

The actual costs to be incurred by NJNG are dependent upon several factors, including final
determination of remedial action, changing technologies and governmental regulations, the ultimate
ability of other responsible parties to pay, the impact of litigation and any insurance recoveries. If
there are changes in future regulatory positions that indicate the recovery of all or a portion of such
regulatory asset is not probable, the related cost and carrying costs would be charged to income in
the period of such determination. As of September 30, 2007 and 2006, $85.1 million and
$83.7 million of previously incurred remediation costs, net of recoveries from customers and
insurance proceeds received, is included in Regulatory assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet,
respectively.

If there are changes in the regulatory position surrounding these costs, or should actual
expenditures vary significantly from estimates in that these costs are disallowed for recovery by the
BPU, such costs would be charged to income in the period of such determination.

Fostemployment Employee Benefits

MNJR's costs of providing postemployment employee benefits are dependent upon numerous
factors including actual plan experience and assumptions of future experience. Postemployment
employee benefit costs, for example, are impacted by actual employee demographics including
age, compensation levels and employment periods, the level of contributions made to the plans
and the return on plan assets. Changes made to the provisions of the plans may also impact
current and future postemployment employee benefit costs. Postemployment employee benefit
costs may also be significantly affected by changes in key actuarial assumptions, including
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anticipated rates of return on plan assets, health care cost trends and discount rates used in
determining the projected benefit abligations (FBO). In determining the PBO and cost amounts,

assumptions can change from period to period and could result in material changes to net

postemployment employee benefit periodic costs and the related liability recognized by NJR.
MNJR's postemployment employee benefit plan assets consist primarily of U.S. equity securities,

international equity securities and fixed-income investments, with a targeted allocation of

53 percent, 18 percent and 29 percent, respectively. Fluctuations in actual market returns, as well
as changes in interest rates, may result in increased or decreased postemployment employee

benefit costs in future periods. Postemployment employee benefit expenses are included in
Operations and maintenance expense on the Consolidated Staterments of Income.

The following is a summary of a sensitivity analysis for each actuarial assumption:

Pension Plans

Estimated Estimated
Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) {Decrease)
Increase/ on PBO to Expense
Actuarial Assumptions (Decrease) (Thousands) (Thousands)
Discount rate 1.00% S5(13,128) $(1,434)
Discount rate (1.00)% 5 16,264 $ 1,490
Rate of return on plan assets 1.00% nfa § (912)
Rate of return on plan assets (1.00)3% n/a $ 912
Other Postemployment Benefits
Estimated Estimated
Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease)
Increase/ on PBO to Expense
Actuarial Assumptions (Decrease) (Thousands) (Thousands)
Discount rate 1.00% $(7,169) B(721)
Discount rate (1.00)% & 9,038 % 866
Rate of return on plan assets 1.00% nfa $(254)
Rate of return on plan assets (1.00)% n/a $ 254
Estimated Estimated
Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) {Decrease)
Increase/ on PBO to Expense
Actuarial Assumptions (Decrease) (Thousands) (Thousands)
Health care cost trend rate 1.00% $ 8,493 $1.440
Health care cost trend rate (1.00)%  %(6,850) $(1,142)
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New Accounting Standards

For a detailed description of New Accounting Standards see Note 1. Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.

Results of Operations
Consolidated

Net income decreased 70.6 percent to $65.3 million in fiscal 2007 and increased
1,087.2 percent to $221.9 million in fiscal 2006. The fluctuations are based on comparisons to the
same prior fiscal year period. The fiscal 2007 results were $2.34 per basic share and $2.33 per
diluted share, compared with the fiscal 2006 results of $7.96 per basic share and $7.90 per diluted
share. Changes in Net income were primarily driven by unrealized (losses) and gains at NJRES and
NJR Energy. Combined unrealized (losses) and gains, which were primarily due to the change in
the fair market value of financial derivative instruments as a result of market conditions for the
purchase and sale of natural gas, were $(23.1) million, $143.4 million and $(57.8) million, after
taxes, for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Natural Gas Distribution Operations

MJMG is a local natural gas distribution company that provides regulated retail energy services
to approximately 478,000 residential and commercial customers in central and northern New Jersey
and participates in the off-system sales and capacity release markets.

NJMG's business is seasonal by nature, as weather conditions directly influence the volume of
natural gas delivered. Specifically, customer demand substantially increases during the winter
months when natural gas is used for heating purposes. As a result, NJNG receives most of its gas
distribution revenues during the first and second fiscal quarters and is subject to variations in
earnings and working capital during the year.

The Electric Discount and Energy Competition Act (EDECA) provides the framework for New
Jersey's energy markets, which are open to competition from other energy suppliers. Currently,
NJNG’s residential markets are open to competition, and its rates are segregated between BGSS
(natural gas commodity) and delivery (i.e., transportation) components. NJNG earns no utility gross
margin an the commaodity portion of its natural gas sales. NJNG earns utility gross margin through
the delivery of natural gas to its customers. Under an existing order from the BPU, BGSS can be
provided by suppliers other than the state’s natural gas utilities.
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NJNG's financial results are as follows:

{Thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Utility Gross Margin

Operating revenues $1,005,588 $1,138,774 51,138,280

Less:

Gas purchases 687,201 B47,276 846,373

Energy and other taxes 56,475 52,908 50,517

Regulatory rider expense 37,605 28,587 31,5594
Total Utility Gross Margin § 224,307 $ 210,003 § 209,796
Utility Gross Margin

Residential and commercial $ 186,183 % 178732 5 179,374

Transportation 29,350 22,850 23,209
Total Utility Firm Gross Margin 215,533 201,582 202,583

Incentive programs 8,125 7,403 6,092

Interruptible 649 1,018 1,121
Total Utility Gross Margin $ 224,307 $ 210,003 § 209,796
Operation and maintenance expense 97,006 84,907 76,626
Depreciation and amortization 35,648 34,146 32,903
Other taxes not reflected in utility gross

margin 3,125 2,921 2,857
Operating Income § 88528 5 838029 § 97408
Other income 3,468 3,448 3,144
Interest charges, net 21,182 16,456 14,283
Income tax provision 26,334 28,151 32,883
Met Income $ 44480 § 46870 $ 53376

The following table summarizes total throughput in billion cubic feet (Bcf) of natural gas by type
through the MJNG distribution system:

{Bef) 2007 2006 2005
Throughput
Residential and commercial 51.2 498 550
Transportation 8.6 7.4 7.6
Total Firm Throughput 598 572 626
Incentive programs 36.5 384 524
Interruptible 6.5 7.2 9.7
Total Throughput 102.8 1028 124.7
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Utility Gross Margin

NJNG's utility gross margin is defined as natural gas revenues less natural gas purchases,
sales tax, a Transitional Energy Facilities Assessment (TEFA) and regulatory rider expenses.
Management believes that utility gross margin provides a more meaningful basis than revenue for
evaluating utility operations since natural gas costs, sales tax, TEFA and regulatory rider expenses
are included in operating revenue and passed through to customers and, therefore, have no effect
on utility gross margin. This definition of utility gross margin may not be comparable to the
definition of gross margin used by others in the natural gas distribution business and other
industries.

Matural gas costs are charged to operating expenses on the basis of therm sales at the prices
in NJNG's BGSS tariff, approved by the BPU. The BGSS tariff rate includes projected natural gas
costs, net of supplier refunds, the impact of hedging activities and credits from non-firm sales and
transportation activities. Any underrecoveries or overrecoveries from the projected amounts are
deferred and reflected in the BGSS tariff rate in subsequent years.

Sales tax was calculated at & percent of revenue for fiscal year 2005, as well as through
July 14, 2006. On July 15, 2006, the sales tax was raised to 7 percent of revenue, and was
calculated at 7 percent for all of fiscal 2007. The sales tax calculation excludes sales to
cogeneration facilities, other utilities, off-system sales and federal accounts.

TEFA, which is included in Energy and other taxes on the Consolidated Statements of Income,
is calculated on a per-therm basis and excludes sales to cogeneration facilities, other utilities and
off-system sales. TEFA represents a regulatory allowed assessment imposed on all energy
providers in the state of New Jersey, as TEFA has replaced the previously used utility gross receipts
tax formula.

Regulatory rider expenses consist of recovery of state-mandated programs and the remediation
adjustment clause costs. These expenses are offset by corresponding revenues and are calculated
on a per-therm basis.

NJMG's Operating revenues decreased by $133.2 million, or 11.7 percent, and Gas purchases
decreased by $160.1 million, or 18.9 percent, for fiscal year 2007. Unlike fiscal 2006 and 2005,
which remained flat at approximately $1.1 billion, the change in operating revenue from fiscal 2007
as compared to fiscal 2006 is the net effect of:

« a decrease due to BGSS customer refunds of $55.1 million and $21.3 million, inclusive of
sales tax refunds of $3.6 million and $1.3 million, in December 2006 and March 2007,
respectively, as a result of lower cost of gas purchases achieved through a successful natural
gas commodity purchasing strategy and declining wholesale natural gas market prices;

* a decrease in off-system revenue of $81 million as a result of a 20 percent decrease in the
average off-system price of natural gas from $9.405 per dth for fiscal 2008 to $7.513 per dth
for fiscal 2007 coupled with a 5 percent decrease in sales volume from 38.4 bcf in fiscal
2006 to 36.5 bef in fiscal 2007;
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= the effect of the non-weather portion of CIP accrual totaling $8.3 million, as a result of lower
customer usage per degree-day; and

= growth in the number of residential sales customers of 5,335 from fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2007
along with an increase in the number of commercial and industrial transport customers of
595 from fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2007.

The changes for fiscal 2006, as compared with fiscal 2005, were due primarily to:

* an increase in operating revenues associated with firm sales of $83.3 million due primarily to
BGSS rates being adjusted in fiscal 2006 to provide provisional rate relief to NJNG in light of
the volatile wholesale natural gas market; fully offset by

* a decrease due to a BGSS customer refund of approximately $23.7 million, which is inclusive
of a sales tax refund of $1.3 million, as a result of lower cost of gas purchases achieved

through a successful natural gas commodity purchasing strategy and declining wholesale
natural gas market prices; and

* a decrease in off-system revenue in the amount of $55.6 million, which was primarily the
result of a 27 percent decrease in volume sold from 52 .4 bef in 2005 to 38.4 bef in 20086,
partially offset by a 13.2 percent increase in the average ofi-system price of natural gas from
$8.23 per dth for fiscal 2005 to $9.405 per dth for fiscal 2006.

Gas purchases decreased 18.9 percent to $687.2 million in fiscal 2007 from $847.3 million in
fiscal 2006. This decrease was due primarily to the following:

* a 23.5 percent decrease in the average price of natural gas from $8.830 per dth in fiscal
2006 to $6.758 per dth in fiscal 2007;

= credits to the cost of gas of $51.5 million and $19.9 million as a result of the BGSS customer
refunds in December 2006 and March 2007 respectively; and

* a 20 percent decrease in the average off-system price of natural gas from $9.405 per dth in
fiscal 2006 to $7.513 per dth in fiscal 2007, in conjunction with a 5 percent decrease in
off-system sales of 1.9 bcf,

Gas purchases increased less than 1 percent to $847.3 million in fiscal 2006, as compared with
fiscal 2005. The $903,000 increase in fiscal 2006 was due primarily to increased average gas prices
offset by decreased volumes purchased.

Energy tax and TEFA, which are presented as both components of Revenues and Operating
Expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income, totaled $56.5 million, $52.9 million and
$50.5 million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. This increase in fiscal 2007 as compared
with fiscal 2006 is due primarily to the change in the sales tax rate from 6 percent to 7 percent, as
applied to NJNG’s operating revenue, and was partially offset by reduced revenues, as a result of
customer refunds. The increase in sales tax and TEFA in fiscal 2006 was due primarily to an

increase in operating revenue from firm sales to 799 million in fiscal 2006 from $741 million in
fiscal 2005.
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Regulatory rider expenses totaled $37.6 million, $28.6 million and $31.6 million in fiscal 2007,
20086, and 2005, respectively. The increase in regulatory rider expenses in fiscal 2007 is due
primarily to an increase in the USF rider rate in Movember, 2006 in conjunction with an increase in
firm throughput sales as a result of customer growth. The decrease in regulatory rider expenses in
fiscal 2006 is a direct result of the decrease in firm throughput through the NJNG natural gas
distribution system.

Utility gross margin is comprised of three major categories:

= Utility Firm Gross Margin, which is derived from residential and commercial customers who
receive natural gas service from NJNG through either sales or transportation tariffs;

= Incentive programs, where revenues generated or savings achieved from BPU-approved
off-systemn sales, capacity release, Financial Risk Management (defined in Incentive
Programs, below) or storage incentive programs are shared between customers and NJNG;
and

= Utility gross margin from interruptible customers who have the ability to switch to alternative
fuels and are subject to BPU-approved incentives.

Utility Firm Gross Margin

For fiscal years 2006 and 2005, Utility firm gross margin from residential and commercial
customers was impacted by the WNC, which provided for a revenue adjustment if the weather
varied by more than one-half percent from normal weather (i.e., 20-year average). The accumulated
adjustment from one heating season (i.e., October through May) was billed or credited to
customers in subsequent periods. This mechanism reduced the variability of both customers’ bills
and NJNG's earnings due to weather fluctuations. The WNC did not, however, reflect reductions in
customer usage from the assumed level in the WNC., These reductions related to customer usage
have been captured in NJNG's CIP tariff, which became effective in fiscal 2007.

Effective October 1, 2006, the BPU approved the CIP to encourage energy savings while
allowing NJNG to recover the necessary costs of operations. The three-year pilot program
eliminates the disincentive to promote conservation and energy efficiency, since utility gross margin
is no longer directly linked to customer usage. The CIP tariff normalizes NJNG's utility gross margin
recoveries for variances not only in weather but also other factors affecting usage, including
customer conservation. Recovery of utility gross margin for the non-weather variance through the
CIP is limited to the amount of certain gas supply cost savings achieved, and is subject to an
earnings test, which contains a return on equity component of 10.5 percent.

Customers switching between sales service and transportation service affect the components of
utility gross margin from firm customers. NJNG's total utility gross margin is not negatively affected
by customers who use its transportation service and purchase natural gas from another supplier
because its tariff is designed so that no profit is earned on the commeodity portion of sales to firm
customers. All customers who purchase natural gas from another supplier continue to use NJNG
for transportation service.
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Total utility firm gross margin increased $14.0 million, or 6.9 percent, and $1.0 million, or less
than 1 percent, in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively. The changes for fiscal 2007 were due
primarily to:

* the effect of the CIP in the current fiscal year, which captures the impact from both weather
and customer usage, when compared to the same periods in the prior fiscal year when the
WNC, which did not capture the impact of lower usage per degree-day, was in effect;

* commercial transport customer growth of 13.9 percent; and
* residential, commercial and industrial sales customer growth of 1.2 percent.
The change in fiscal 2006 was due primarily to the net effect of:

+ the decrease in natural gas used by customers, as the winter heating season was
11.4 percent warmer compared with fiscal 2005;

* a reduction in customer usage per degree-day over the same period in fiscal 2005; partially
offset by

* an increase in fixed revenue as a result of customer growth; and
* the impact of the WNC.

NJNG added 8,421 and 10,159 new customers and added natural gas heat and other services
to another 770 and 874 existing customers in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively. This customer
growth represents an estimated annual increase of approximately 1.1 billion cubic feet in sales to
firm customers, assuming normal weather and usage.

The weather in fiscal 2007 was 5.6 percent warmer than normal, which resulted in an accrual of
utility gross margin under the CIP of $8.2 million. In fiscal 2008, the weather was 9.9 percent
warmer than normal, therefore NJNG deferred $10.3 million of gross margin for future recovery from
customers under the WNC. The weather in fiscal 2005 was 1.5 percent colder than normal,
therefore NJMG deferred $2.1 million of gross margin for future refunds to customers under the
WNC. On October 3, 2007, the BPU approved the full recovery of $8.1 million of previously deferred
amounts associated with the WNC.

Utility firm gross margin from transportation service increased $6.5 million, or 28.4 percent, and
decreased approximately $359,000, or 1.6 percent, in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively. NJNG
transported 8.6 Bcef for its firm customers in fiscal 2007, compared with 7.4 Bef in fiscal 2006 and
7.6 Bef in fiscal 2005. The increase in utility firm gross margin in fiscal 2007 was due primarily to an
increase in the number of residential and commercial customers switching from firm to
transportation services, combined with the impact of the CIP program. The decrease in fiscal 2006
were due primarily to a reduction in customers utilizing the transportation service as a result of
warmer weather and lower usage per degree-day discussed above.
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The following table shows residential and commercial customers using transportation services
as of the fiscal years ended September 30:

2007 2006 2005

Residential 9,229 8,594 11,723
Commercial 4,875 4,280 3,523
Total 14,104 12,874 15,246

The increase in transportation customers for fiscal 2007 was due primarily to a change in
marketing efforts by third-party natural gas service providers in NJNG's service territory. The
decrease in transportation customers for fiscal 2006 was due primarily to a decline in third-party
marketing efforts in NJNG's service territory.

In fiscal 2008 and 2009, NJNG currently expects to add, in total, approximately 16,000 to
19,000 new customers. In addition, NJNG expects to convert an additional 700 existing customers
per year to natural gas heat and other services. Achieving these expectations would represent an
estimated annual customer growth rate of approximately 1.8 percent and result in an estimated
sales increase of approximately 1.1 Bef to 1.2 Bef, annually.

The Company believes that this growth would increase utility gross margin under present base
rates by approximately $4.0 to $4.3 million annually, as calculated under NJNG's CIP tariff.

These growth expectations are based upon management’s review of local planning board data,
recent market research performed by third parties, builder surveys and studies of population growth
rates in NJNG's service territory. However, future sales will be affected by the weather, actual energy
usage patterns of NJNG's customers, economic conditions in NJMNG's service territory, conversion
and conservation activity, the impact of changing from a regulated to a competitive environment,
changes in state regulation and other marketing efforts, as has been the case in prior years.

Incentive Programs

To reduce the overall cost of its natural gas supply commitments, NJNG has entered into
contracts to sell natural gas to wholesale customers outside its franchise territory when the natural
gas is not needed for system requirements. These off-system sales enable NJNG to spread its fixed
demand costs, which are charged by pipelines to access their supplies year round, over a larger
and more diverse customer base. NJNG also participates in the capacity release market on the
interstate pipeline network when the capacity is not needed for its firm system requirements. NJNG
retains 15 percent of the utility gross margin from these sales, with 85 percent credited to firm
customers through the BGSS.

The Financial Risk Management (FRM) program is designed to provide price stability to
MJMG's natural gas supply portfolio. The FAM program includes an incentive mechanism designed
to encourage the use of financial instruments to hedge NJNG's natural gas costs, enabling NJNG
customers to be credited 80 percent, and NJNG to retain 20 percent, of these costs and results.
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Beginning November 1, 2007, NJNG customers will be credited 85 percent and NJNG will retain
15 percent of the gains or losses.

The storage incentive program shares gains and losses on an 80 percent and 20 percent basis
between customers and NJNG, respectively. This program measures the difference between the
actual cost of natural gas injected into storage and a benchmark applicable to the April-through-
October injection season.

On October 3, 2007, the BPU approved an agreement whereby the existing off-system sales,
capacity release, storage incentive and FRM utility gross margin-sharing programs between
customers and NJNG were extended through October 31, 2008.

NJMG's incentive programs totaled 36.5 Bef and generated $8.1 million of utility gross margin
in fiscal 2007, compared with 38.4 Bef and $7.4 million of utility gross margin in fiscal 2006 and
52.4 Bef and $6.1 million of utility gross margin in fiscal 2005, Utility gross margin from incentive
programs comprised 4 percent of total utility gross margin in fiscal 2007 and 4 percent and
3 percent of total utility gross margin in fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively. The increase in utility
gross margin for fiscal 2007 was due primarily to higher margin from the storage incentive and FRM
programs which was largely offset by lower off-system sales margin from lower volumes sold and
as driven by market opportunities. The increase in utility gross margin in fiscal 2006 was primarily
due to the FRM and the storage incentive programs, which both benefited from additional volatility
in the wholesale energy market.

MNew York Mercantile Exchange (MYMEX) settlement prices for natural gas are a general
indication of the monthly market movements. NYMEX prices have decreased from an average of
$8.830/dth in fiscal year 2006 to $6.758/dth in fiscal year 2007, which represents a 23.5 percent
decrease, while the average off-system price decreased by 20.0 percent from an average of
$8.405/dth in 20086 to $7.513 /dth in 2007.

Interruptible Sales Tariff Revenues

NJNG serves 45 customers through interruptible sales and/or transportation tariffs. Sales made
under the interruptible sales tariff are priced on market-sensitive energy parity rates. Although
therms sold and transported to interruptible customers represented 6.3 percent of total throughput
in fiscal 2007, 7.0 percent of total throughput in fiscal 2006 and 7.8 percent of the total throughput
in fiscal 2005, they accounted for less than 1 percent of the total utility gross margin in each year
due to the sharing formulas that govern these sales. Under these formulas, NJNG retains
10 percent of the utility gross margin from interruptible sales and 5 percent of the utility gross
margin from transportation sales, with 90 percent and 95 percent, respectively, credited to firm
sales customers through the BGSS. Interruptible sales were 1.5 Bef and 2.0 Bef in fiscal 2007 and
2006, respectively. In addition, NJNG transported 5.0 Bef and 5.2 Bef in fiscal 2007 and 2006,
respectively, for its interruptible customers, The agreement with the BPU approved on October 3,
2007, included the termination of the incentive programs related to interruptible sales, on-system
interruptible transportation and sales to the Sayreville and Forked River facilities effective
November 1, 2007,
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Operation and Maintenance Expense

Operation and maintenance expense increased $12.1 million, or 14.2 percent, in fiscal 2007 as
compared with fiscal 2006 due primarily to:

« the BPU settlement related to the Long Branch Mass Tort Litigation, reflecting the pre-tax
litigation and settlernent cost of $4.0 million attributed to personal injury claims that were

previously deferred in Regulatory assets, but were not approved by the BPU as recoverable
costs;

* higher compensation costs of $5.9 million primarily due to an increase in the number of
employees as well as annual wage increases;

* an increase in contractor's expense of $1.4 million due primarily to federally mandated
pipeline integrity efforts in working towards completion of the Transmission Pipeline Integrity
requirements; and

= higher marketing incentives of 1.2 million for special promotional rebates associated with
the conversion of additional customers from other fuels.

Operation and maintenance expense increased $8.3 million, or 10.8 percent, in fiscal 2006,
compared with fiscal year 2005, due primarily to:

= an increase in labor costs in the amount of $4.4 million as a result of an increased number of
employees and annual wage increases;

= the accrual of $1.8 million for the value of customer conservation costs to be incurred over a
three-year period as part of the stipulation agreement for the CIP; and

= an increase in bad debt expense of $350,000 as result of a change in the nature of the
related accounts receivable,

Depreciation Expense

Depreciation expense increased $1.5 million in fiscal 2007 and $1.2 million in fiscal 2008, as
compared with the respective previous fiscal years, due primarily to utility plant additions of
$64.9 million and $53.1 million in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Operating Income

Operating income increased $500,000, or 0.6 percent, in fiscal 2007, compared with fiscal
2008, due primarily to an increase in firm utility gross margin as a result of implementation of the
CIP and firm utility customer growth, offset by an increase in operation and maintenance expense
and depreciation expense as described above. During fiscal 2006, the WNC did not capture
reductions in customer usage, but only the variability experienced by NJNG's utility gross margin as
a result of weather fluctuations. Operating income decreased $9.4 million, or 9.6 percent, in fiscal
2008, compared with fiscal 2005, due primarily to the relatively flat gross margin and higher
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Operation and maintenance expense due to higher regulatory costs, increased labor costs, an
increase in bad debt expense and higher depreciation expense.

Interest Charges

Interest charges increased $4.7 million in fiscal 2007 compared with $2.2 million in fiscal 2006
due primarily to an increase in short-term borrowings and higher interest rates, as well as interest
due to customers on balances associated with overrecovered gas costs. The increase in fiscal 2006
compared with fiscal 2005 was due primarily to higher average interest rates on variable rate
long-term and short-term debt and interest costs payable to customers on overrecovered BGSS
balances.

Net Income

Net income decreased $2.4 million, or 5.1 percent, in fiscal 2007, compared with fiscal 2006,
due primarily to higher Operating and maintenance expense as a result of the BPU settlement and
higher labor expenses described above, as well as higher interest expense, partially offset by the
implementation of the CIP and a reduction in bad debt expense. Net income decreased
$6.5 million, or 12.2 percent, in fiscal 2008, compared with fiscal 2005, due primarily to lower
operating income and higher interest expense as previously discussed.

Energy Services Operations

MNJRES utilizes contractual assets that it controls for natural gas storage and pipeline
transportation to meet its various sale and delivery commitments to its customers. NJRES
purchases natural gas predominantly in the Gulf region of the United States and Canada, and
transports that gas, through the use of pipeline contracts to which it has reserved capacity through
the payment of a fixed demand charge, to either storage facilities that it has reserved, primarily in
the Appalachian, Mid-Continent and Gulf regions of the United States and Canada or directly to
customers in various market areas including the Mortheastern region of the United States and
eastern Canada.

MJRES enters into contracts for delivery of physical natural gas and also enters into derivatives
financial contracts at advantageous prices to establish an initial financial margin for the transaction.
Through the use of its contracts for natural gas storage and pipeline capacity, NJRES is able to
take advantage of pricing differences between geographic locations, commonly referred to as
“locational spreads,” as well as over different time periods, for the delivery of natural gas to its
customers, thereby improving the initially established financial margin result. NJRES utilizes financial
futures, forwards and swap contracts to economically fix and protect the cash flows surrounding
these transactions.

Predominantly all of MJRES' purchases and sales result in the physical delivery of natural gas,
and therefore, MJRES has elected the “normal purchase normal sale” scope exception of SFAS
Mo. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended (SFAS 133),
under which related liabilities incurred and assets acquired under these contracts are recorded
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when title to the underlying commodity passes. The changes in fair value of NJRES® derivative
instruments, which are financial futures, forwards and swap contracts, are recognized in the
Consoclidated Statements of Income, as a component of Gas purchases.

MJRES expenses its demand charges, which represent the right to use natural gas pipeline and
storage capacity assets of a third-party for a fixed period of time, ratably over the term of the
related natural gas pipeline or storage contract.

NJRES' financial results are summarized as follows:

(Thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Operating revenues $1,994,682 32,133,540 $1,973,268
(Gas purchases 1,934,374 1,792,213 2,068,014
Gross margin (loss) 60,308 341,327 (94,748)
Operation and maintenance expense 18,521 16,415 6,916
Depreciation and amortization 214 211 253
Other taxes 660 656 710
Operating income (loss) 40,913 324,045 (102,625)
Other income 555 998 585
Interest -::hargas. net 4,222 7,042 4,137
Income tax provision 15,948 129,629 (43,372)
Met income (loss) § 21,298 5 188,372 $ (62.805)

Management of the Company also uses non-GAAP measures when viewing the results of
MJRES to understand the operational results without the impact of unsettled derivative instruments.
These non-GAAP measures are “financial margin’' and “net financial earnings.”

Financial margin represents Operating revenues from the sale of natural gas sales less Gas
purchases, and excludes the accounting impacts of unrealized gains and losses from derivative
instruments. These accounting impacts represent the change in fair value of these financial
instruments, which represent futures and swaps designed to economically hedge forecasted natural
gas purchases, sales and transportation, and are primarily open positions resulting in unrealized
gains or losses. Net financial earnings represents Net income excluding the accounting impacts of
unrealized gains and losses from these derivative instruments, net of taxes.

As revenues from the sale of natural gas to its customers, on a wholesale basis, are highly
correlated to the wholesale price of natural gas and the economic impact of its derivative
instruments will be substantially the same as the accounting results under GAAP upon transaction
settlement, management of the Company believes that the net financial margin and net financial
earnings measurements better represent the economic results of operations of NJRES. While
significant volatility is measured on a GAAP basis the ultimate impact of the transaction will yield
the same cash flow and economic result upon settlement of the derivative instrument and
completion of the forecasted transaction. In viewing the financial margin and net financial earnings
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of NJRES, management of the Company reviews the results of operations without this volatility to
measure the economic impact that NJRES achieved in relation to established benchmarks and
goals.

The following table is a computation of financial margin of NJRES for the fiscal years ended
September 30:

(Thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Operating revenues $1,994,682 $2,133,540 $1,973.,268
Gas purchases 1,934,374 1,792,213 2,068,014
Add:
Unrealized loss (gain) on derivative
instruments 27,988 (269,590) 127,744

Realized loss (gain) from derivative
instruments related to natural gas
inventory 2,903 (710) 6,300

Financia! margin § 91,199 3 71,027 $ 39,298

A reconciliation of Operating income, the closest GAAP financial measurement, 10 the financial
margin of NJRES is as follows for the years ended September 30:

(Thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Operating income (loss) $40,913 $ 324,045 $(102,625)
Add:
Operation and maintenance expense 18,521 16,415 6,916
Depreciation and amortization 214 21 253
Other taxes 660 656 710
Subtotal-Gross margin (loss) $60,308 $ 341,327 § (94,746)
Add:

Unrealized loss (gain) on derivative instruments 27,988 (269,590) 127,744
Realized loss (gain) from derivative instruments
related to natural gas inventory 2,903 (710) 6,300

Financial margin $91,199 & 71,027 § 39,208
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A reconciliation of Met income to net financial earnings, is as follows for the years ended
September 30:

{Thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Net income (loss) $21,298 5 188,372 3(62,805)
Add:
Unrealized loss (gain) on derivative instruments,
net of taxes 17,079 (159,838) 75,561
Realized loss (gain) from derivative instruments
related to natural gas inventory, net of taxes 1,771 (421) 3,726
Net financial earnings $40,148 5 28113 5 16,482

NJRES' financial margin in fiscal 2007 increased $20.2 million, as compared to fiscal year 2006,
due primarily to storage positions designed to capture additional value from favorable time spreads,
coupled with higher sales volumes related to arbitrage opportunities that also provided additional
margins during the winter season of fiscal 2007, when natural gas market prices experienced higher
volatilities within a short time period in the Appalachian and Northeast regions of the United States,
The volatility in prices, which were primarily due to below-normal temperatures in those regions,
primarily during the second quarter of fiscal 2007, allowed NJRES to maximize its existing natural
gas storage and basis positions to secure the majority of this increase in financial margin in fiscal
2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 as it was able to maximize pricing differences between locations
from where it took delivered gas to where it could best be utilized given the weather conditions.

NJRES' financial margin increased $31.7 million in fiscal 2006, as compared with fiscal 2005,
due primarily to favorable time spreads on larger storage asset positions, as well as securing
positive locational spreads on transportation capacity, and the benefit in market price changes from
certain natural gas basis swaps, which concluded in October 2006.

MJRES' operation and maintenance increased $2.1 million and $9.5 million in fiscal 2007 and
2006, respectively. The increases in both years are due primarily to increased compensation as a
result of operational growth, incentive costs correlated to net financial earnings performance and
increased charitable contributions.

Future results are subject to NJRES' ability to maintain and expand its wholesale marketing
activities and are contingent upon many other factors, including an adequate number of appropriate
counterparties, volatility in the natural gas market, sufficient liquidity in the energy trading market
and continued access to the capital markets,
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Retail and Other Operations
The consolidated financial results of Retail and Other are summarized as follows:

{Thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Operating revenues $21,495 $ (1,085) $73,034
Operation and maintenance expense $21,074 § 20,062 $24,899
Other income $ 2711 § 279 $ 1,085
Equity in eamings, net of tax $ 1662 $ 1,817 § 1,753
Met (loss) income $ (497) $(13,334) $27,964

MNJR Energy has an economic hedge associated with a long-term fixed price contract to sell
gas to a counterparty. The Income statement impact represents unrealized (losses) and gains
associated with these derivative instruments of $(7.2) million, $(28.4) million and $36.3 for the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, which are recorded, pre-tax, as a
component of Operating revenues. On an after-tax basis, these unrealized (losses) gains are
$(4.2) million, $(16.9) milion and $21.5 million for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively.

Operating revenue in fiscal 2007 increased $22.6 million compared with fiscal 2006 due
primarily to greater sales volumes associated with installations of cooling equipment and a greater
volume of service contracts at NJRHS, and lower unrealized losses at NJR Energy as a result of its
economic hedge. Operating revenues in fiscal 2008 decreased $74.1 million compared with fiscal
2005 due primarily to changes in fair value of NJR Energy's economic hedge, resulting in
unrealized losses, as a result of adverse price movements associated with the derivative financial
instruments.

Operation and maintenance expenses in fiscal 2007 increased $1.0 million compared with fiscal
2006 due to higher compensation costs primarily due to an increase in the number of employees
as well as annual wage increases. Operation and maintenance expenses in fiscal 2006 decreased
$4.8 million compared with fiscal 2005 due primarily to impairment charges for undeveloped land
for CR&R in fiscal 2005.

Other income in fiscal 2007 remained constant as compared to fiscal 2006. Other income in
fiscal 2006 decreased $806,000 compared to fiscal 2005 due primarily to a significant gain on the
sale of a commercial office building owned by CR&R in fiscal 2005 that did not recur in fiscal 2006.

Taxes netted in Equity in earnings from Iroguois are $1.1 million, $1.1 million, and $900,000
and are included in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Equity in earnings from Iroquois is driven by the
underlying performance of natural gas transportation through its existing pipeline, which is based
on FERC regulated tariffs,

Net income in fiscal 2007 increased $12.8 million compared to fiscal 2006 due primarily to
operating results at NJRHS offset partially by a reduced gain on the sale of land at CR&R and lower
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continued unrealized losses at NJR Energy. Net income in fiscal 2005, included a $6 million
after-tax gain on the sale of the commercial office building, partially offset by the $2.5 million
after-tax loss on the impairment of 52 acres of undeveloped land and early retirement charges.
Excluding these items fiscal 2005 net income was $24.5 million. In fiscal 2006 net income
decreased by $37.8 million, as compared with adjusted fiscal 2005 net income, due primarily to
unrealized losses associated with the economic hedges at NJR Energy partially offset by improved
operating results at NJRHS and greater earnings from the investment in lrogquois.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

MNJR's objective is to maintain a consolidated capital structure that reflects the different
characteristics of each business segment and provides adequate financial flexibility for accessing
capital markets as required.

NJR's consclidated capital structure at September 30 was as follows:

2007 2006
Common stock equity 50% 50%
Long-term debt 30 27
Short-term debt 20 23
Total 100% 100%

Common stock equity

MNJR satisfies its external common equity requirements, if any, through issuances of its common
stock, including the proceeds from stock issuances under its Automatic Dividend Reinvestment Plan
{DRP) and proceeds from the exercise of options issued under the Company's long-term incentive
program. The DRP allows MJR, at its option, to use shares purchased on the open market or newly
issued shares.

As of September 30, 2007, the Company had a 3.5 million share repurchase plan that has
been approved by its Board of Directors and had repurchased all but 8,147 shares under this plan.
On Movember 14, 2007, the NJR Board of Directors authorized an increase of 1 million shares to
the plan, bringing the total permitted repurchases to 4.5 million shares as of that date.

Debt

MNJR and its unregulated subsidiaries rely on cash flows generated from operating activities and
utilization of committed credit facilities to provide liquidity to meet working capital and external
debt-financing requirements.

As of September 30, 2007, NJR, NJRES and NJNG had committed credit facilities of
$605 million with approximately $306 million available under these facilities (see ltem 8. Financial
Statements and Other Supplemental Data as Restated and Note 8. Short-term debt and credit
facilities).
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NJR

On September 24, 2007, NJR issued $50 million of Unsecured Senior Notes which will be used
for financing its initial investment in Steckman Ridge and general corporate purposes, including
refinancing short-term debt. These notes have a 10-year maturity and an interest rate of
6.05 percent.

As of September 30, 2007, NJR had a $325 million committed credit facility with several banks,
with a 3-year term expiring in December 2007. NJR expects to replace this facility in the first quarter
of fiscal 2008 with a five-year committed credit facility.

Financial covenants contained in NJR's credit facility include a maximum debt-to-total
capitalization of 65 percent and minimum interest coverage ratio of 2.5. At September 30, 2007, the
debt-to-total capitalization was 52 percent after adjustments for the fair value of derivative assets
and liabilities and standby letters of credit, as defined in NJR's credit facility. For the year ended
September 30, 2007, the interest coverage ratio, as defined in the credit facility, was 6.14.

MNJR uses its short term borrowings primarily to finance its share repurchases, to satisfy NJRES'
short term liquidity needs and to finance, on an initial basis, unregulated investments. NJRES' use
of high-injection, high-withdrawal storage facilities and anticipated pipeline park-and-loan
arrangements, combined with related hedging activities in the volatile wholesale natural gas market,
create significant short-term cash reguirements.

NJR's short-term borrowings at September 30, 2007, decreased to $40.2 million from
$129.2 million at September 30, 2006, largely as a result of fewer share repurchases during the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 compared to the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. In addition, in
October 2008, NJRES entered into a 3-year $30 million committed credit facility, guaranteed by
NJR, which provided NJRES with an initial source of funds that MJRES was able to draw upon
during fiscal 2007 to finance its working capital needs. NJR's short-term debt at September 30,
20086, decreased to $129.2 million from $174.1 million at September 30, 2005. The decrease was
due primarily to reduced margin calls, which were a result of increased over-the-counter
transactions and lower natural gas prices.

As of September 30, 2007, NJR had three letters of credit outstanding on behalf of NJRES, one
of which expired on November 30, 2007. A $14.0 million letter of credit was related to margin
requirements for NJRES' natural gas transactions and was not renewed. There are two remaining
letters of credit outstanding on behalf of NJRES that expire on December 31, 2007. These two
letters of credit are comprised of a $4.0 million letter of credit that was renewed on August 1, 2007,
in conjunction with a long-term natural gas storage agreement, and a 3500,000 letter of credit that
was entered into on September 28, 2007 for an additional storage transaction.

MNJR also has a 675,000 letter of credit outstanding on behalf of CR&R, which expired on
December 3, 2007, in conjunction with development activities. This letter of credit will be renewed
during the first guarter of fiscal 2008.
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All of these letters of credit reduce the amount available under NJR's committed credit facility
by the same amount. NJR does not anticipate that these letters of credit will be drawn upon by the
counterparties and they will be renewed as necessary.

NJNG

NJNG satisfies its debt needs by issuing short-and long-term debt based upon its own financial
profile. The seasonal nature of NJNG's operations creates large short-term cash requirements,
primarily to finance natural gas purchases and customer accounts receivable. NJNG obtains
working capital for these requirements, and for the temporary financing of construction and MGP
remediation expenditures and energy tax payments, through the issuance of commercial paper and
short-term bank loans.

In August 2007, the BPU approved NJNG's petition to issue and sell, in one or more series, an
aggregate of $125 million in medium-term notes through July 31, 2010. The notes may be issued
on a secured or unsecured basis and maturities can range from one to 'Ol'ﬂi years. The proceeds
from the issuance of the notes will be used to refinance short-term debt, which has been incurred
to fund capital expenditure requirements and pension and other post-employment benefit programs.
The notes are anticipated to be issued during the second quarter of fiscal 2008.

To support the issuance of commercial paper, NJNG has a $250 million committed credit facility
with several banks, with a 5-year term, expiring in December 2009. NJNG had $175.7 million of
commercial paper borrowings supported by the credit facility as of September 30, 2007, and
$151.5 million commercial paper borrowings as of September 30, 2006,

As of September 30, 2007, NJNG had a $34 million letter of credit outstanding that will expire
on December 31, 2007, in conjunction with a long-term swap agreement. The long-term swap
agreement was entered into as a hedge related to an offsetting physical purchase of natural gas for
the same time period and volume. This letter of credit was replaced on November 30, 2007, by a
stand-alone letter of credit, expiring on December 31, 2007, which does not reduce the amount
available to be borrowed under NJNG's credit facility. NJNG does not anticipate that this letter of
credit will be drawn upon by the counterparty, and it will be renewed as necessary upon its
expiration.

In April 2007, NJNG entered into a 3-year, $30 million uncommitted credit facility with a
multinational financial institution. As of September 30, 2007, NJNG had borrowings of $10.5 million
outstanding under this facility. Borrowings under this facility are in addition to the amount available
under the NJNG bank credit facility mentioned above.

NJRES

In October 2008, NJRES entered into a 3-year $30 million committed credit facility with a
multinational financial institution. Borrowings under this facility are guaranteed by NJR. As of
September 30, 2007, $30 million was borrowed under the facility.
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Consolidated
MNeither NJNG nor its assets are obligated or pledged to support the NJR or NJRES facilities.

NJR believes that as of September 30, 2007, NJR, NJNG and NJRES were, and currently are,
in compliance with all debt covenants.

MJR believes that existing borrowing availability, its current cash balances and its cash flow
from operations will be sufficient to satisfy it and its subsidiaries” working capital, capital
expenditure and dividend requirements for the foreseeable future. NJR, NJNG and NJRES currently
anticipate that its financing requirements in fiscal 2008 and 2009 will be met through the issuance
of short-term and long-term debt and proceeds from the Company’s Automatic Dividend
Reinvestment Plan.

Sale Leaseback

NJNG has received approximately $5.5 million, $4.1 million and $4.9 million in fiscal 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively, related to the sale-leaseback of a portion of its gas meters. NJNG also
plans to continue its meter sale-leaseback program at approximately $5 million annually.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table is a summary of NJR, NJNG and NJRES contractual cash obligations and
financial commitments and their applicable payment due dates as of September 30, 2007.

(Thousands)
Payments Due by Period
Up to 2-3 4-5 After

Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Long-term debt* $ 527944 § 16,104 3 82,156 $ 43,820 $385,864
Capital lease obligations* 83,402 7,994 16,183 17,990 41,235
Operating leases* 8,601 2,870 3,795 1,266 670
Short-term debt 256,479 256,479 === = —
New Jersey Clean Energy

Program* 11,473 8,832 2,641 — —
Construction obligations 5,071 5,071 — — —
Remediation expenditures** 105,340 29,600 17,800 10,600 47,340
Matural gas supply purchase

obligations-NJNG 35,201 30,781 4,008 412 —
Demand fee

commitments-NJNG 436,554 81,409 170,702 112604 71,839
Matural gas supply purchase

obligations-NJRES 867,631 473,941 393,690 — e
Demand fee

commitments-NJRES 227,009 99,130 78,192 36,54 13,148
Total contractual cash

obiigaﬁons $2,564,705 $1,012,211 3769,167 $223,233 $560,094

*  These obligations include an inferest compaoneant.

**  Expenditures are estimafted.

As of September 30, 2007, there were NJR guarantees covering approximately $289 million of
natural gas purchases and demand fee commitments of NJRES and NJNG, included in natural gas
supply purchase obligations above, not yet reflected in Accounts payable on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet.

The Company made a discretionary $10 million tax-deductible contribution to its pension plans
in fiscal 2006. The Company was not required to make minimum pension funding contributions
during fiscal 2007. If market performance is less than anticipated, additional funding may be
required.

In fiscal 2008, $3.7 million of tax-deductible discretionary contributions were made to the Other
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) plans. The Company's funding level to its OPEB plans is expected
to be approximately $685,000 annually over the next five years. Additional contributions to the
pension and OPEB plans may be made based on market conditions and various assumptions.
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The Company is obligated to fund up to $125 million associated with the construction and
development of Steckman Ridge. Currently, NJR anticipates that Steckman Ridge will secure
non-recourse project financing for a portion of its construction activities and therefore reduce NJR's
obligation. There can be no assurances that Steckman Ridge will eventually secure such
non-recourse project financing.

NJNG's total capital expenditures are estimated at $80.9 million and $77.4 million in fiscal 2008
and 2009, respectively, and consist primarily of its construction program to support customer
growth, maintenance of its distribution system and replacement needed under pipeline safety
regulations.

Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangemenis
The Company does not have any off-balance-sheet financing arrangements.

Cash Flow
Operating Activities

As presented in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, cash flow from operations totaled
$122.4 million in fiscal 2007, compared with cash flow used in operations of $23.0 million in fiscal
2006 and cash flow from operations of $204.8 million in fiscal 2005. Operating cash flows are
primarily impacted by variations in working capital, which are a function of the seasonality of NJR's
business and fluctuations in wholesale natural gas prices. In addition to higher net income and
lower MGP expenditures, changes to the following components of working capital contributed to
the increase in operating cash flows during fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006:

= At NJNG, an increase in the change in accounts receivable of $91.5 million, a decrease in
customer credit balances of $71.4 million, and a decrease in overrecovered gas costs
primarily as a result of credits issued to retail customers due to reductions in the wholesale
cost of natural gas;

An increase in gas inventory values at NJNG largely as a result of higher delivered average
inventory prices;

A decrease in gas inventory values at NJRES is a result of lower volumes of gas in starage
and a reduction in park-and-loan transactions, which represents natural gas inventory
borrowed by MJRES to be ultimately returned at a later date, which NJRES utilizes to take
advantage of pricing differentials over time, and

A decrease in gas purchases payable mostly as a result of lower NJRES gas purchases
during September 2007 and reduced park-and-loan activity.

Cash flow used in operations totaled $23.0 million in fiscal 2006, compared with cash flow from
operations of $204.8 million in fiscal 2005. The decrease of approximately $228 million in fiscal
2008, as compared with fiscal 2005, was due primarily to changes in working capital and higher
MGP expenditures, which were partially offset by higher net income and a lower gain on asset sale.
The reduction in cash flow from working capital was due primarily to the increase in gas in storage
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and a decrease in gas purchases payable, which were caused by higher storage volumes and
wholesale gas commaodity costs, partially offset by a decrease in accounts receivable, primarily as
the result of BGSS customer credits in September 2006.

MNJNG's MGP expenditures are currently expected to total $29.6 million in fiscal 2008 (see
Note 13. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities). Operating cash flows for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007 include the receipt of $12.8 million in January 2007 related to the settlement of
certain claims against NJNG's insurance company (see Note 13. Commitments and Contingent
Liabilities-Legal Proceedings-Kemper Insurance Company Litigation).

Financing Activities

Cash flow used in financing activities totaled $3.5 million in fiscal 2007, compared with cash
flows from financing activities of $74.0 million in fiscal 2006 and cash flows used in financing
activities of $157.7 million in fiscal 2005. The change in fiscal 2007, as compared with fiscal 2008,
was due primarily to a reduction in short term borrowings as a result of lower margin requirements
and lower volumes held in gas inventory at NJRES, partially offset by refinancing of short-term
borrowings through a long-term debt issuance of $50 million at NJR, as well as a reduction in the
amount of share repurchases. The change in fiscal 2006, as compared to fiscal 2005, was due
primarily to an increase in the amount of short-term debt utilized, increased issuance of long-term
debt and increased proceeds from the exercise of stock options partially offset by higher common
stock repurchases.

MJRES' use of high-injection, high-withdrawal storage facilities and anticipated pipeline
park-and-loan arrangements, combined with related hedging activities in the volatile wholesale
natural gas market, create significant short-term cash requirements, which are funded by NJR or its
committed credit facility guaranteed by NJR.

In October 2005, under the New Jersey Economic Development Authority (EDA) Act, NJNG
used proceeds from EDA Series 2005A and 2005B bonds to refinance MJNG's $10.3 million,
5.38 percent Series W First Mortgage Bonds and its $10.5 million, 6.25 percent Series Y First
Mortgage Bonds. Also in October 2005, the EDA issued its 4.9 percent (Series 2005C) Matural Gas
Facilities Revenue Bonds. The net proceeds from the 2005C bonds were deposited into a
construction fund. NJNG drew down $6.5 million from the construction fund during fiscal 2006 and
issued its $15 million, 4.9 percent Series KK bonds to the EDA with a maturity date of October 1,
2040. MJNG drew down an additional $4.3 million from the construction fund in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2007.

MJNG received $5.5 million, $4.1 million and $4.8 million for fiscal year 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, in connection with the sale-leaseback of its gas meters. This sale-leaseback program
will continue on an annual basis.

Investing Activities

Cash flows used in investing activities totaled $118.7 million in fiscal 2007, compared with
$71.0 million and $27.2 million in fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively. The increase in fiscal 2007, as
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compared to fiscal 2006, was due primarily to NJR's investment of $55.0 million in the Steckman
Ridge partnership and increased capital expenditures for utility plant additions at NJNG, partially
offset by the absence of the net $8.5 million deposit into a construction fund created under the EDA
financing arrangement in fiscal 2006 described above. The change in fiscal 2006, as compared to
fiscal 2005, was due primarily to the cash proceeds from a commercial office building sale in fiscal
2005, which did not recur in fiscal 2008, and additional deposits in the construction fund associated
with the EDA financing agreement, partialiy offset hy the absence of additional equity investments in
Iroquois.

The Company's capital expenditures for fiscal 2005 through fiscal 2007 and projected capital
requirements for fiscal years 2008 and 2009 are as follows:

(Thousands) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

NJING $77.454 580,889 $67,937 360,559 $59,303
Energy Services 100 50 — 244 774
Retail and Other 380 790 2,777 5,490 823
Total §77.944 581,729 §70,714 366,293 360,900

NJNG's capital expenditures result primarily from the need for services, mains and meters to
support its continued customer growth, mandated pipeline safety rulemaking and general system
improvements. NJNG's capital expenditures are expected to increase in fiscal 2008 and 2009 when
compared to the capital spending in fiscal 2007, due primarily to system integrity and replacements
that NJNG is expecting to be required under pending pipeline safety rulemaking.

Retail and Other capital expenditures each year have been made primarily in connection with
investments made to preserve the value of real estate holdings. At September 30, 2007, CR&R
owned 83 acres of undeveloped land and a 56,400-square-foot building on 5 acres of land. In fiscal
2007 and fiscal 2006, capital expenditures of $2.8 million and $5.5 million, respectively, were
primarily related to CR&R's construction of the 56,400-square-foot office building.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2007, NJR and Spectra Energy Corporation, through their
respective subsidiaries, formed a partnership to develop and operate the Steckman Ridge gas
storage facility. NJR will share 50 percent of the acquisition and development costs of the storage
facility, up to a maximum of $125 million, of which $55.0 million was expended through
September 2007, as noted above.

MJR's investment in Steckman Ridge is a strategic investment to enter the mid-stream natural
gas business. This storage capacity will provide NJR the potential to diversify is revenue stream
through another market-based outlet that has a consistent demand and a regulated tariff structure.
MJR expects a portion of Steckman Ridge to be financed on a non-recourse, or project, basis and
for the majority of its revenue to be secured by long-term contracts; however, there can be no
assurances that this will ocecur.

NJRES does not currently anticipate any significant capital expenditures in fiscal 2008 and
2009.

http://www.shareholder.com/visitors/dynamicdoc/document.cfm?DocumentlD=2078&CompanylD=NJR&PIN=&Page=1&Zoom=1x&PrintWidth=682&prin... ~ 101/175



11/7/2016 2007 Annual Report - Printing All Pages

New Jersey Resources
Part Il

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (Continued)

Credit Ratings

The table below summarizes NJNG's credit ratings issued by two rating entities, Standard and
Poor's (S&F) and Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (Moody's) as of September 30, 2007:

Standard and Poor's Moody's
Corporate Rating A+ NfA
Commercial Paper A-1 P-1
Senior Secured AA- Aa3
Ratings Outlook MNegative Stable

NJNG's S&P and Moody's Senior Secured ratings are investment-grade ratings and represent
the sixth highest rating within the investment grade category. Moody's and S&P give NJNG's
commercial paper the highest rating within the Commercial Paper investment-grade category.

Investment-grade ratings are generally divided into three groups: high, upper medium and
medium. NJNG's senior secured ratings and the commercial paper ratings fall into the high group.
NJR is not a rated entity.

MJNG is not party to any lending agreements that would accelerate the maturity date of any
obligation caused by a failure to maintain any specific credit rating. A rating set forth above is not a
recommendation to buy, sell or hold the Company's or NJNG's securities and may be subject to
revision or withdrawal at any time. Each rating set forth above should be evaluated independently
of any other rating.

The timing and mix of any external financings will target a common equity ratio that is
consistent with maintaining the Company's current short-and long-term credit ratings.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Financial Risk Management
Commodity Market Risks

Matural gas is a nationally traded commodity, and its prices are determined effectively by the
New York Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX) and over-the-counter markets. The prices on the NYMEX
and over-the-counter markets generally reflect the notional balance of natural gas supply and
demand, but are also influenced significantly from time to time by other events.

The regulated and unregulated natural gas businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries are
subject to market risk due to fluctuations, in the price of natural gas. To economically hedge against
such fluctuations, the Company and its subsidiaries have entered into futures contracts, options
agreements and swap agreements. To manage these derivative instruments, the Company has
well-defined risk management policies and procedures that include daily monitoring of volumetric
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limits and monetary guidelines. The Company's natural gas businesses are conducted through
three of its operating subsidiaries. First, NJNG is a regulated utility that uses futures, options and
swaps to economically hedge against price fluctuations and its recovery of natural gas costs is
governed by the BPU. Second, NJRES uses futures, options and swaps to economically hedge
purchases and sales of natural gas. Finally, NJR Energy has entered into two swap transactions
related to an 18-year fixed-price contract to sell remaining volumes of approximately 7.3 Bcf of
natural gas (Gas Sales Contract) to an energy marketing company.

The following table reflects the changes in the fair market value of commadity derivatives from
September 30, 2006, to September 30, 2007:

Balance Increase (Decrease) Less Balance
September 30, in Fair Amounts  September 30,
(Thousards) 2006 Market Value Settled 2007
NJNG 5(82,451) $ 7,348 $(23,242) $(51,861)
NJRES 116,547 120,458 147,559 89,446
NJR Energy 35,423 {?.235] {IEG} 28,353
Total $ 69,519 $120,570 $124,151 § 65,938

There were no changes in methods of valuations during the year ended September 30, 2007.

The following is a summary of fair market value of commodity derivatives at September 30,
2007, by method of valuation and by maturity for each fiscal year period:

After Total
(Thousands) 2008 2009 2010-2012 2012 Fair Value
Price based on NYMEX 536,817 §6,152  5(1,930) &— 541,039
Price based on over-the-counter published
guotations and models 22998 1,485 416 - 24,899
Total £59.815 §7.637 B(1,514) %— 565938

The following is a summary of commodity derivatives by type as of September 30, 2007.

Amounts included

Volume Price per in Derivatives
(Bcf) Mmbtu (Thousands)
NJNG Futures 187 $6.00-5 9.39 § 2,186

Options 7.2 $6.00-511.00 $ (1,884)
Swaps (11.7) $399-5 9.85 $(52,163)
NJRES Futures (8.5) $5.33-511.59 $ 14,154

Options — $B.50-§14.20 § 143

Swaps (71.2) $5.33-$11.98 $ 75,149

NJR Energy Swaps 789 $322-5 441 $ 28,353

Total $ 65,938
65
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The Company uses a value-at-risk (VaR) model to assess the market risk of its net futures,
options and swap positions. VaR represents the potential loss in value of NJRES' trading portfalio
due to adverse market movements over a defined time horizon (MJRES utilizes holding periods of
1 day and 10 days) with a specified confidence level (NJRES utilizes either a 95 percent or
99 percent confidence level). As an example, utilizing a 1 day holding period with a 95 percent
confidence level would indicate that there is a 5 percent chance that the liquidation value of the
NJRES portfolio would fall below the expected trading value by an amount at least as large as the
calculated VaR.

The VaR at September 30, 2007, using the variance-covariance method with a 95 percent
confidence level and a 1-day holding period, was $1.3 million. The VaR with a 99 percent
confidence level and a 10-day holding period was $5.8 million. The calculated VaR represents an
estimate of the potential change in the value of the net positions. These estimates may not be
indicative of actual results because actual market fluctuations may differ from forecasted
fluctuations.

Wholesale Credit Risk

MJNG, NJRES and NJR Energy engage in wholesale marketing activities. MJR monitors and
manages the credit risk of its wholesale marketing operations through credit policies and
procedures that management believes reduce overall credit risk. These policies include a review
and evaluation of prospective counterparties’ financial statements and/or credit ratings, daily
monitoring of counterparties’ credit limits, daily communication with traders regarding credit status
and the use of credit mitigation measures, such as minimum margin requirements, collateral
requirements and netting agreements. Examples of collateral include letters of credit and cash
received for either prepayment or margin deposit.

The Company's Risk Management Committee (RMC) continuously monitors NJR's credit risk
management policies and procedures. The AMC is comprised of individuals from MJR-affiliated
companies that meet twice a month and, among other things, evaluates the effectiveness of existing
credit policies and procedures, reviews material transactions and discusses emerging issues.

The following is a summary of gross and net credit exposures, grouped by investment and
noninvestment grade counterparties, as of September 30, 2007. Gross credit exposure is defined as
the unrealized fair value of derivative and energy trading contracts plus any outstanding receivable
for the value of natural gas delivered for which payment has not yet been received. Net credit
exposure is defined as gross credit exposure reduced by collateral received from counterparties
and/or payables, where netting agreesments exist. The amounts presented below exclude accounts
receivable for retail natural gas sales and services.
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Unregulated counterparty credit exposure as of September 30, 2007, is as follows:

Gross Credit  Net Credit

(Thousands) Exposure Exposure
Investment grade $175,001 153,634
MNoninvestment grade 8,962 —
Internally rated investment grade 25,762 16,331
Internally rated noninvestment grade 1,667 —
Total $211,392  $169,965

NJMG's counterparty credit exposure as of September 30, 2007, is as follows:

Gross Credit  MNet Credit

(Thousands) Exposure Exposure
Investment grade $11,905 $9,630
Moninvestment grade 141 4
Internally rated investment grade 203 94
Internally rated noninvestment grade 70 —
Total $12,319 $9,728

Due to the inherent volatility in the prices of natural gas commodities and derivatives, the
market value of contractual positions with individual counterparties could exceed established credit
lirmits or collateral provided by those counterparties. If a counterparty failed to perform the
obligations under its contract (for example, failed to deliver or pay for natural gas), then the
Company could sustain a loss. This loss would comprise the loss on natural gas delivered but not
paid for and/or the cost of replacing natural gas not delivered at a price higher than the price in the
original contract. Any such loss could have a material impact on the Company's financial condition,
results of operations or cash flows.

Interest Rate Risk—Long-Term Debt
At September 30, 2007, the Company (excluding NJNG) had no variable-rate long-term debt.

At September 30, 2007, NJNG had total variable-rate, tax-exempt long-term debt of
$87.0 million, which is hedged by interest rate caps expiring in July 2008 that limit NJNG's
variable-rate debt exposure on the tax-exempt EDA bonds at 4.5 percent.

Effects of Inflation

Although inflation rates have been relatively low to moderate in recent years, any change in
price levels has an effect on operating results due to the capital-intensive and regulated nature of
the Company's utility subsidiary. The Company attempts to minimize the effects of inflation through
cost control, productivity improverments and regulatory actions where appropriate.

&7
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Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of Mew Jersey Resources Corporation (NJR or the Company) is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in
Rule 13A-15 (f) and 15d-15 {f) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The
Company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance 1o the Company's Management and Board of Directors regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles and includes policies and procedures that:

« pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

= pravide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and

* provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements, errors or fraud. Also, projections of any evaluations of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial
reporting as of September 30, 2007. In making this assessment, management used criteria set forth
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO0) in an Internal
Control integrated Framework. As a result of the restatement of the Company's consolidated
financial statements, management has determined that a material weakness in internal control over
financial reporting existed as of September 30, 2007, and based on the criteria set forth by COSO,
concluded that the Company's internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of
September 30, 2007.

A “material weakness,” as defined by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(PCAOB) is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Company's annual or
interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. In connection with
the Company's preparation of its consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007, the Company reassessed its accounting treatment and disclosures for its
derivative instruments under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 133 “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities' (“SFAS 133"). As a result of this accounting
assessment, the Company determined that certain of its derivative instruments have not qualified as
cash flow hedges under SFAS 133 as they did not meet the definition for “critical-terms-match,” as
defined under paragraph 65 of SFAS 133 and related authoritative accounting literature issued by
various standard setting bodies and their related interpretations for all fiscal periods. As the
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Company has determined the hedging relationships did not meet the “critical-terms-match,” the
related derivative instruments did not qualify as cash flow hedges and the unrealized gains or
losses on the derivative instruments are required to be reflected in the Consolidated Statement of
Income for each period rather than recorded in Comprehensive Income and included as a
component of “accumulated other comprehensive income,” a component of Total Common Stock
Equity in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, until the forecasted transaction is settled. Therefore,
because of this material weakness, the Company has amended and restated certain of its historical
consolidated financial statements and made appropriate changes in the preparation of its
consolidated financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2007.

The Company's independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLR has
issued its report on the Company's assessment of its internal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2007, which appears herein.

December 10, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
New Jersey Resources Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements
of capitalization of New Jersey Resources Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company") as of
September 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, common stock
equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
September 30, 2007. Our audits also included the consolidated financial statement schedule listed
in the index in Item 15. These consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial
statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial statement
schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company HODOUMiI‘Lg
Owersight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
staternent presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of September 30, 2007 and 2008, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2007,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in
our opinion, such consolidated financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the
basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects, the
information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2, the accompanying 2006 and 2005 consolidated financial statements
have been restated.

As discussed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements, as of September 30, 2007,
the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard Mo. 158, Employers’ Accounting
for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postemployment Plans.

As discussed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements, on September 30, 2006, the
Company adopted Financial Acccunting Standards Board Interpretation No., 47, Accounﬁng for
Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations.
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We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of September 30, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and
our report dated December 10, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management's
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and an
adverse opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Parsippany, New Jersey

December 10, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of New Jersey Resources Corporation

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management's
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, that New Jersey Resources Carporation and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Owersight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, the company's principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons
performing similar functions, and effected by the company's board of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstaterment of the annual or interim
financial statements will be prevented or detected. The following material weakness has been
identified and included in management's assessment: The Company did not maintain effective
controls over procedures to designate at inception certain hedging relationships with the required
specificity necessary to meet the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
Mo. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (SFAS 133). Specifically,
controls to ensure that its derivatives gualify as cash flow hedges by meeting the definition for
“critical-terms-match,” as defined by SFAS 133 and related authoritative accounting literature.
Management has determined, for all affected periods that certain of its derivative instruments no
longer qualify as cash flow hedges under SFAS 133 as they do not meet the requirements of
SFAS 133, As a result of this material weakness, the Company restated its previously issued
consolidated financial statements as of September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005 and for the
years ended September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005, and as discussed in Quarterly Financial
Data, the Company restated its previously reported selected quarterly financial information for the
first three quarters in 2007 as well as 2006. This material weakness was considered in determining
the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the financial statements as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2007, of the Company and this report does not affect our
report on such financial statements.

In our opinion, management's assessment that the Company did not maintain effective internal
contral over financial reporting as of September 30, 2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects,
based on the criteria established in Internal Control-integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, because of the
effect of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control
criteria, the Company has not maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of September 30, 2007, based on the criteria established in internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Owersight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated statement of
capitalization of the Company as of September 30, 2007, and the related consolidated statements
of income, common stock equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for the year ended
September 30, 2007 and our report dated December 10, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on
those financial statements and included explanatory paragraphs relating to the adoption of Financial
Accounting Standard Mo. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension, Other Post
Employment Plans, and Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for
Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations, and relating to the 2006 and 2005 consolidated financial
statements restatements.

[s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Parsippany, New Jersey

December 10, 2007
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Thousands, excep! per share data)
Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2007 2006 2005

As Reslated  As Restated
(See Note 2) (See Note 2)

OPERATING REVEMNUES $3,021,765 £3,271,229 $3,184,582
OPERATING EXPENSES

Gas purchases 2,621,575 2639489 2914387

Operation and maintenance 136,601 121,384 108,441

Regulatory rider expenses 37,605 28,587 31,594

Depreciation and amortization 36,235 34,753 33,675

Energy and other taxes 62,499 58,632 58,211
. Total operating expenses 2,894,515 2,882 845 3,144*3(]E!
OPERATING INCOME 127,250 388,384 40,274
Other income 4,294 4,725 4,814
Interest charges, net 27,613 25,669 20,474
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND EQUITY IN

EARNINGS OF AFFILIATES 103,931 367.440 24,614
Income tax provision 40,312 147,349 7,832
Equity in earnings of affiliates, net of tax 1,662 1,817 1,753
NET INCOME $ 65281 5 221808 $ 18535
EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

BASIC % 234 5 796 § 0.67

DILUTED $ 233 3 790 § 0.66
DIVIDENDS PER COMMON SHARE $ 152 3 144 § 1.36
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING

BASIC 27,803 27,862 27,591

DILUTED 28,075 28,081 28,121
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Thousands)
Fiscal Years Ended Septermber 30, 2007 2006 2005
#As Restated A= Restated
(See Mote 2)  (See Note 2)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income 5 85281 5 221,908 § 18535
Adjustments to reconcile net income 1o cash flows from operating activities
Unrealized loss (gain) on devative instruments, nit of tax 22910 (148,324) 60,861
Depreciation and amortization ! 35,054 38227
Impairment change 4,000 - 3,895
Daterred income taxes 17,762 (11,856) (2,406)
Manufactured gas plant remediation costs {20,171) (22,346) (15,330)
Gain on assat sales - {817) [11.818)
Equity in garnings from investments, net of distributions. (556) 1,556 ]
Cost of romoval-assed retirement obligations (880) : ;
Contriputions to employes benefit plans (685) (13,6590) (11,548)
Changes in:
Components of working capital {32,135) (107 204) 120,548
Other noncurrent assets 23,707 (20,721) 1372
Other noncurrent liabdities 6,637 43287 5477
Cash flows from jused in) operating activities 122 406 (22,9593) 204,822
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Procesds from issuance of commaen Stock 18,515 25,346 5918
Tax benefi from siock options exercised 1,761 6,791 2,172
MNet procesds from long-temm dabl 49,850 35,800 -
Proceeds from sale-leaseback transaction 5,482 &, 0680 4,504
Payrmants of long-term dabt {4,031) (24.278) (28,070)
Purchases of treasury stock (9,024) (40,883) (23,835)
Payrnents of common stock dividends (41,869) (39,448 [37,164)
Payments of short-term debt, net of proceeds (24,221) 106, 800 (85, 600)
Cash flows (used in) from financing activities {3.537) 74,022 (167 .675)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Expenditures for
Utility plant (60, 747) (53, 0600 (52,801)
Real estate properties and other {2,777 (5,734) (1,587
Cost of removal {6,310) (7, 499) (6,502)
Invastments in equity investees (54,978) = (8,764)
‘Withdrawal from {investment in) restricted cash construction fund 4,300 (8,500) 7,800
Proceeds from asset sales and available for saby irvestiments 1,792 a74r 34,582
Cash fiows used in invesling activities {118, 720) (71,046) (27,182)
Change in cash and temporary investmants 148 (20,017) 19,965
Cash and tlemporary invesiments at beginning of year 4,991 25,008 5,043
Cash and temporary invesiments at end of year £ 5140 £ 49 £ 25008
CHANGES IN COMPONENTS OF WORKING CAPITAL
Receivables $ 5306 5 96,763 $ (B7,897)
Invantonies 68,727 (250,785 19,620
Cwarrecovered gas costs 7.873 38,759 32,456
Gas purchases payable (79,543) (3,107) 20,118
Prepaid and accrued taxes, nat {16, 160) 6,808 2135
Accounts payable and other 9,152 (3,294) 9,978
Restricted broker margin accounts. 19,411 (18,437) 40,084
Custorners’ credit balances and deposils (33,698) 37,738 1,746
Oiher currant assets {13,203) (11,675) 12,308
Total $ (32,135) S(107,204) $ 120,548
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOWS INFORMATION
Cash paid for
Interest (net of amounts capitalized) £ 26403 & 22188 £ 18085
IO 18583 $ 52,549 5 38,101 $ 47812
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
(Thousands)
September 30, 2007 2006
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Utility plant, at cost $1,299,445 $1,243,586
Real estate properties and other, at cost 28,793 27,136
1,328,238 1,270,722
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (357,367) (335,783)
Property, plant and equipment, net 970,871 934,939
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments 5,140 4,991
Customer accounts receivable
Billed 132,444 133,615
Unbilled revenues 8,895 12,543
Allowance for doubtiul accounts (3,1686) (2,679)
Regulatory assets 24,634 8,105
Gas in storage, at average cost 439,168 512,942
Materials and supplies, at average cost 5,033 3,599
Prepaid state taxes 28,034 26,343
Derivatives, at fair value 138,986 223,559
Broker margin account 12,345 30,833
Other 8,353 11,665
Total current assets 799,866 965,516
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Investments in equity investees 86,743 27,208
Regulatory assets 312,369 322,986
Derivatives, at fair value 44,306 94,638
Prepaid pension —_ 21,045
Restricted cash construction fund 4,200 8,500
Other 12,390 24,096
Total noncurrent assets 460,008 498,473
Total assets $2,230,745 $2,398,928
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CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES

(Thousands)
September 30, 2007 2006
CAPITALIZATION
Common stock equity $ 644,797 $ 621,662
Long-term debt 383,184 332,332
Total capitalization 1,027,981 953,994
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current maturities of long-term debt 4,338 3,739
Short-term debt 256,479 280,700
Gas purchases payable 218,336 297,879
Accounts payable and other 64,366 46,823
Dividends payable 10,633 10,056
Deferred and accrued taxes 9,031 9,267
Regulatory liabilities 9,583 1,710
Mew Jersey clean energy program 8,832 8,244
Derivatives, at fair value 79,243 163,557
Broker margin account 15,143 14,220
Customers' credit balances and deposits 27,262 60,960
Total current liabilities 703,266 897,155
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred income taxes 216,258 227,100
Deferred investment tax credits 7,513 7.835
Deferred revenue 9,806 10,206
Derivatives, at fair value 38,085 85,036
Manufactured gas plant remediation 105,340 105,400
Postemployment employee benefit liability 25,743 4,497
Regulatory liabilities 61,270 64,220
Mew Jersey clean energy and conservation incentive programs 3,992 13,138
Asset retirement obligatian 23,895 23,293
Other 7,596 7,054
Total noncurrent liabilities 499,498 547 779
Total capitalization and liabilities $2,230,745 $2,398,928
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION

(Thousands, except share amounts)

Sapltamber 30,

2007 2006

COMMON STOCK EQUITY
Common stock, $2.50 par value; authorized
50,000,000 shares; outstanding
2007-29,342,626; 2006-29,098,173 §
Premium on common stock
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of
tax
Treasury stock at cost and other; shares
2007-1,601,518; 2006-1,473,023
Retained earnings

As Restated
(See Note 2)

73,356 5 72,745
261,438 253,187

{931) 2,742

(69,948) (65,039)
380,882 358,047

Total Commeon stock equity

644,797 621,662

LONG-TERM DEBT
New Jersey Natural Gas

First mortgage bonds: Maturity date:
6.27% Series X November 1, 2008
Variable Series AA August 1, 2030
Variable Series BB August 1, 2030
6.88% Series CC October 1, 2010
Variable Series DD September 1, 2027
Variable Series EE January 1, 2028
Variable Series FF January 1, 2028
Variable Series GG April 1, 2033
5% Series HH December 1, 2038
4.5% Series I August 1, 2023
4.6% Series JJ August 1, 2024
4.9% Series KK October 1, 2040

4.77% Unsecured senior notes March 15, 2014

Capital lease obligation-Buildings June 1, 2021

Capital lease obligation-Meters October 1, 2012

Less: Current maturities of long-term debt

30,000 30,000
25,000 25,000
16,000 16,000
20,000 20,000
13,500 13,500
9,545 9,545
15,000 15,000
18,000 18,000
12,000 12,000
10,300 10,300
10,500 10,500
15,000 15,000
60,000 60,000
27,063 27,701
30,614 28,525
(4,338) (3,739)

Total New Jersey Natural Gas long-term debt

308,184 307,332

New Jersey Resources

3.75% Unsecured senior notes March 15, 2002 25,000 25,000

6.05% Unsecured senior notes September 24, 2017 50,000 —

Total long-term debt 383,184 332,332

Total capitalization $1,027,981  $953,994
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON STOCK EQUITY

Accumulated
Other
Premium Comprehensive

on Income/{Loss) Treasury Eamings

Retained

Total
d As Restated

MNumber of Common Common  As Restated Stock  As Restate
(Thousands) Shares Stock Stock (See Mote 2) and Other (See Note 2) (See Note 2)
Balance at September 30, 2004 27,741 $69.786 3215006 $(7.536) $ (4683 195254  S467.917
Met income 18,535 18,535
Other comprehensive income
{loss) 314 314
Common stock issued under
stock plans 352 671 6.114 3,292 10,077
Tax benefits from stock plans 2172 2172
Cash dividend declared (37,514) [37,514)
Treasury stock and other (547) (23,449 (23,4493)
Balance at September 30, 2005 27 546 70457 223,382 (7.222) (24,840 178,275 438,052
Net income 221,908 221,908
Other comprehensive income
{loss) 9,964 9,964
Common stock issuad under
stock plans 1,074 2288 22,994 6,277 31,559
Tax benefits from stock plans 6,791 6,791
Cash dividend declared (40,136) (40,136)
Treasury stock and other (995) (46,476) (46,476)
Balance at September 30, 2006 27625 72,745 253,167 2,742 (65,0358) 358,047 621,662
Net income 65,281 65,281
Other comprehensive income
(loss) 491 491
Adjustment to initially adopt
SFAS Mo. 158, net of tax (4,164) (4,164)
Common stock issued under
stock plans 456 611 6,510 11,408 18,529
Tax benefits from stock plans 1,761 1,761
Cash dividend declared {42,446) (42,446)
Treasury stock and other (340) (16.317) (16,317)
Balance at September 30, 2007 27,741 $73,356 $261,438 $ (931) $(69,948) $380,882 $644,797
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Thousands) 2007 2006 2005
September 30, As Restated  As Restated
(See Note 2)  (See Nole 2)
MNet income $65,281 5221908 518,535
Unrealized gain on investments in equily investees, net of tax of $(456),
$(184) and $(320), respectivaly 634 267 463
Met unrealized (loss) gain on derivatives, net of tax of $98, §341 and
%143, respactively (143) (496) (205)
Minimum pension lability adjustment, net of tax of $—, $(7,113) and
$(38), respectivaly - 10,193 56
Other comprehensive income 491 9,964 314
Comprehensive income 365,772 $231,872 318,849
9
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of the Business

MNew Jersey Resources Corporation (NJR or the Company) has two principal subsidiaries and
operates three business segments. New Jersey Natural Gas (MJNG), the Company's principal utility
subsidiary, is a public utility which provides natural gas utility service to approximately 478,000 retail
customers in central and northern New Jersey and comprises the Natural Gas Distribution segment.
NJNG is subject to rate regulation by the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities (BPU).

MNJR Energy Services (MJRES) is the Company's principal non-utility subsidiary that maintains
and trades a portfolio of natural gas storage and transportation positions and provides wholesale
energy and energy management services to customers from states in the Gulf Coast and
Mid-Continent regions to the New England region and Canada. NJRES comprises the Energy
Services segment.

Other subsidiaries of the Company, all of which comprise the Retail and Other segment,
include NJR Home Services (NJRHS), which provides services and installation of heating, ventilation
and cooling (HVAC) systems throughout New Jersey, NJNR Pipeling (NJNR), which holds the
Company's 5.53 percent interest in Iroguois Gas and Transmission System, L.P (lroguois), a
412-mile interstate natural gas pipeline which connects from the northern New York border with
Canada to Long Island, NY; NJR Storage Holdings, which holds the Company’s 50 percent interest
in Steckman Ridge GP and Steckman Ridge LP (collectively, Steckman Ridge), a planned 20 billion
cubic foot (Bcf) natural gas storage facility currently under construction with a partner in western
Pennsylvania; NJR Energy, an investor in energy-related ventures, Commercial Realty and
Resources (CR&R), which holds and develops commercial real estate; and NJR Service, which
provides shared administrative services.

Principles of Consolidation

The Consclidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries that are controlled through a majority voting interest. All intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated.

Other financial investments or contractual interests that lack the characteristics of a voting
interest entity, which are commonly referred to as variable interest entities, are evaluated by NJR to
determine if it can absorb a majority of expected losses or returns and if the consolidation guidance
in Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entilies-an interpretation of ARB No. 51 (FIN 46(R)) applies. NJR does not have any
investments in any variable interest entities.

Entities that are deemed voting interest entities in which NJR does not have a controlling
financial interest but can exercise significant influence are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting.
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Regulatory Assels & Liabilities

Under cost-based regulation, regulated utility enterprises generally are permitted to recover
their operating expenses and earn a reasonable return on their utility investment.

NJNG maintains its accounts in accordance with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
(FERC) Uniform System of Accounts as prescribed by the BPU. In accordance with the ratemaking
process, NJNG is required to follow Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) Mo. 71,
Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation (SFAS 71), and as a result, the accounting
principles applied by NJNG differ in certain respects from those applied by unregulated businesses.

Gas in Storage

Gas in Storage is reflected at average cost in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, and represents
natural gas that will be utilized in the ordinary course of business.

The following table summarizes Gas in storage by company as of September 30, 2007.

2007 2006
(S in thougands) Assets (Bef) Assats (Bef)
NJNG $191,460 23.0 5155874 238
NJRES 247,708 2B.9 357,068 323
Total $439,168 51.9 $512,942 56.1

Demand Fees

For the purpose of securing adequate storage and pipeline capacity, NJRES and NJNG enter
into storage and pipeline capacity contracts, which require the payment of certain demand charges
in order to maintain the ability to access such natural gas storage or pipeline capacity, during a
fixed time period, which generally range from one to five years. Demand charges are based on
established rates as regulated by FERC. These demand charges represent commitments to pay
storage providers or pipeline companies for the right to store and transport natural gas utilizing their
respective assets.

Demand charges are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income as incurred as part
of Gas purchases as follows:

{Millions) 2007 2008 2005

MNJRES $132.9 $109.8 $ 63.0
NJNG 73.9 83.0 79.5
Total $206.8 $192.8 51425

MNJNG recovers its costs associated with demand fees as part of its wholesale gas commodity
component of its Basic Gas Supply Service (BGSS), a component of its tariff.
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Derivative Instruments

Derivative instruments associated with natural gas commodity contracts are recorded in
accordance with SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Aclivities, as
amended (SFAS 133), under which NJAR records the fair value of derivatives held as assets and
liabilities, Certain of the Company's commaodity contracts meet the scope exception of SFAS 133,
while its financial contracts, such as futures, options and swaps, are considered derivative
instruments. NJR's unregulated subsidiaries record changes in the fair value of its derivatives in Gas
purchases or Operating revenues, as appropriate, on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Fair values of exchange-traded instruments, principally futures, swaps and certain options, are
based on actively quoted market prices. Fair values are subject to change in the near term and
reflect management's best estimate based on various factors. In establishing the fair value of
commodity contracts that do not have quoted prices, such as physical contracts, over-the-counter
options and swaps, management uses available market data and pricing models to estimate fair
values. Estimating fair values of instruments that do not have quoted market prices requires
management’s judgment in determining amounts which could reasonably be expected to be
received from, or paid to, a third party in settlement of the instruments. These amounts could be
materially different from amounts that might be realized in an actual sale transaction.

See Note 4. Financial Instruments and Risk Management for additional details regarding natural
gas trading and hedging activities.

NJMG's derivatives used to hedge its natural gas purchasing activities are recoverable through
its Basic Gas Supply Service, a component of its tariff. Accordingly, the offset to the change in fair
value of these derivatives is recorded as a Regulatory asset or liability on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets in accordance with SFAS 71.

MNJR has not designated any derivatives as fair value hedges as of September 30, 2007 and
2008,

Revenues

Revenues from the sale of natural gas to customers of NJNG are recognized in the period that
gas is delivered and consumed by customers, including an estimate for unbilled revenue.

Unbilled revenues are associated solely with NJNG. Matural gas sales to individual customers
are based on their meter readings, which are performed on a systematic basis throughout the
month. At the end of each month, the amount of natural gas delivered to each customer after the
last meter reading is estimated and NJNG recognizes unbilled revenues related to these amounts.
The unbilled revenue estimates are based on monthly send-out amounts, estimated customer
usage by customer type, weather effects, unaccounted-for gas and the most recent rates.

Generally, commaodity contracts for physical delivery of natural gas fall within the “normal
purchase normal sale” scope exception of SFAS 133. The normal purchase normal sale scope
exception reguires, among other things, physical delivery in guantities expected to be used or sold
over a reasonable period in the normal course of business. Contracts that are designated as normal
purchases and normal sales and the related liabilities incurred and assets acquired under these
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contracts are recorded when title to the underlying commodity passes. Certain derivative
instruments at NJRES and NJR Energy (encompassing financial futures, options or swaps), are
designed to economically hedge the cash flows of a forecasted transaction. These derivative
instruments are recorded at fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheet and any change in the
fair value is included as a component of Gas purchases or Operating revenues, as appropriate, on
the Consolidated Statements of Income. Derivative instruments at NJNG are recorded at fair value
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets with corresponding changes in fair value also being recorded
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as regulatory assets or liabilities.

Revenues from all other activities are recorded in the period during which products or services
are delivered and accepted by customers, or over the related contractual term.

Gas Purchases

NJNG's tariff includes a component for Basic Gas Supply Service (BGSS), which is designed to
allow NJNG to recover the commaodity cost of natural gas through rates charged to its customers
and is normally revised on an annual basis. As part of computing its BGSS rate, NJNG projects its
cost of natural gas, net of supplier refunds, the impact of hedging activities and credits from
nonfirm sales and transportation activities, and recovers or refunds the difference, if any, of such
projected costs compared with those included in rates through levelized monthly charges to
customers. Any underrecoveries or overrecoveries are deferred and, subject to BPU approval,
reflected in the BGSS in subsequent years.

NJRES' gas purchases represent the total commodity contract cost, recognized upon
completion of the transaction, for the contracts that qualify under the normal purchase normal sale
scope exception under SFAS 133, as well as realized gains and losses and unrealized gains and
losses on the change in fair value of derivative financial instruments that have not yet settled.

Income Taxes

The Company computes income taxes using the liability method, whereby deferred income
taxes are generally determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax
basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect in the years in which the differences
are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets are recorded net of a valuation allowance when it is
more likely than not such tax benefits will be realized. See Note 12. Income Taxes.

Investment tax credits have been deferred and are being amortized as a reduction to the tax
provision over the average lives of the related properties.
Capitalized and Deferred Interest

The Company's capitalized interest totaled $3.2 million in fiscal 2007, $1.1 million in fiscal 2006
and $594,000 in fiscal 2005 with average interest rates of 5.4 percent, 4.7 percent and 2.6 percent,
respectively. Capitalized interest included in Utility plant, Real estate properties and other and
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Investments in equity investees on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, and reflected in the
Consolidated Statements of Income as a reduction to interest charges, net, are as follows:

September 30,
{$ in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Capitalized interest-Utility plant $1,250 $1,068 $594
Weighted average interest rates 5.36% 4.69% 2.60%
Capitalized interest-Real estate properties and other $ 263 nfa n'a
Weighted average interest rates 5.45% n/a n/a
Capitalized interest-Investments in equity investees $1,687 n/a n/a
Weighted average interest rates 5.41% n/a n/a

Through September 30, 2007, NJNG has not capitalized a cost of equity for its utility plant
construction activities.

MJR, through its subsidiary CR&R, capitalizes interest associated with the development and
construction of its commercial buildings. Interest is also capitalized associated with the acquisition,
development and construction of a natural gas storage facility through NJR's equity investment in
Steckman Ridge (see Note 5. Investments in Equity Investees).

Pursuant to a BPU order, NJNG is permitted to recover carrying costs on uncollected balances
related to SBC program costs, which include NJCEF, RAC and USF expenditures. See Note 3.
Regulation. Accordingly, Other income included $3.1 million, $2.8 million and $2.2 million of
deferred interest related to these SBC program costs in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Sales Tax Accounting

Sales tax and Transitional Energy Facilities Assessment (TEFA) are collected from customers
and presented in both operating revenues and operating expenses on the Consolidated Statements
of Income as follows:

September 30,
{_Tf@msanq‘s,_ll 2007 2006 2005
Sales Tax $48,700 45500  $42,300
TEFA 8,500 8,100 8,900
Total $57,200  $53.600  $51,200

Statements of Cash Flows

For purposes of reporting cash flows, all temporary investments with maturities of three months
or less are considered cash equivalents.
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Utility Plant and Depreciation

Regulated property, plant and equipment is stated at original cost. Costs include direct labaor,
materials and third-party construction contractor costs, allowance for capitalized interest and certain
indirect costs related to equipment and employees engaged in construction. Upon retirement, the
cost of depreciable regulated property, plus removal costs less salvage, is charged to accumulated
depreciation with no gain or loss recorded.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis for financial statement purposes, using rates
based on the estimated average lives of the various classes of depreciable property. The composite
rate of depreciation was 3.02 percent of average depreciable property in fiscal 2007, 3.03 percent in
fiscal 2006 and 3.04 percent in fiscal 2005.

Property classifications and estimated useful lives, as of September 30, 2007 and 2008, are as

follows:
Estimated Useful
Property Classifications Lives
Distribution Facilities 31 to 63 years
Transmission Facilities 42 to 62 years
Storage Facilities 36 to 47 years
All other property 5 to 35 years

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews the carrying amount of an asset for possible impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that such amount may not be recoverable.

In the fourth guarter of fiscal 2007, NJNG signed a stipulation with the BPU and Rate Counsel,
which resulted in the disallowance of certain costs that had previously been deferred as recoverable
pursuant to a regulatory rider associated with the remediation of a former manufactured gas plant
site. The pre-tax charge of $4 million is reflected as a component of Operations and maintenance
expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income. See Note 13 Commitments and Contingent
Liabilities-Legal Proceedings-MGP Remediation.

As part of a change in strategy related to CR&R, included in its Retail and Other segment, the
Company determined in fiscal 2005 that 52 acres of undeveloped land located in Atlantic County,
New Jersey, will no longer be developed by CR&R, but will be sold as undeveloped land. As a
result, the Company estimated the fair value of the land and compared that with its carrying value.
Accordingly, the Company recognized a pre-tax impairment charge of $3.9 million in fiscal 2005,
which is included in Operation and maintenance expense on the Consolidated Statements of
Income. The net book value of the undeveloped land in Atlantic County, which totals $2.1 million, is
included in Property, Plant & Equipment, net, on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

For the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, no other circumstances indicating
impairment were identified.
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Available for Sale Securities

Included in Investments in equity investees on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are certain
investments in equity securities that have a fair value of $7.8 million and $6.7 million as of
September 30, 2007 and 20086, respectively. Unrealized gains associated with these equity
securities, which are included as a part of Accumulated other comprehensive income, a component
of Common stock equity, were approximately $1.1 million ($0.6 million, after tax) and $0.2 million
(20.1 million, after tax) for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

Equity in Earnings

The Company accounts for its investment in Iroquois using the equity method and records its
share of earnings net of tax as Equity in earnings on the Consolidated Statements of Income.
Iroquois is a limited partnership, which owns and operates a 412-mile interstate natural gas
transmission pipeline providing service to local gas distribution companies, electric utilities and
electric power generators, as well as marketers and other end-users, directly or indirectly, by
connecting with pipelines and interconnects throughout the northeastern United States. Taxes
netted in Equity in earnings from Iroguois are $1.1 million, $1.1 million, and $900,000 and are
included in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscal years ending September 30, 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

The fair value of cash and temporary investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable,
commercial paper and borrowings under revolving credit facilities is estimated to equal their
carrying amounts due to the short maturity of those instruments. The estimated fair value of
long-term debt excluding current maturities and capital lease obligations, is based on quoted
market prices for similar issues and is as follows:

September 30,
(Thousands) 2007 2006
Carrying value $329,800 $279,800
Fair market value $336,200 $281,800

Asset Retirement Obligations (ARO)

MJR adopted the provisions of FASB-issued Financial Interpretation Mumber 47, Accounting for
Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations (FIN 47), effective as of September 30, 2006. FIN 47
clarifies the term “conditional asset retirement obligation' as used in SFAS Mo. 143, Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations. A conditional asset retirement obligation refers to a legal obligation to
perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing and/or method of settlement are conditional
on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the company. FIN 47 removes the
conditionality surrounding an ARQ, such that the obligation to perform the asset retirement activity
is unconditional even though uncertainty exists about the timing and/or method of settlement.

FIN 47 requires NJR to recognize a reasonably estimated liability for the fair value of an ARO.
The fair value of a liability for an ARO should be recognized when incurred, which is generally upon

86

http://www.shareholder.com/visitors/dynamicdoc/document.cfm?DocumentlD=2078&CompanylD=NJR&PIN=&Page=1&Zoom=1x&PrintWidth=682&prin...  124/175



11/7/2016 2007 Annual Report - Printing All Pages

New Jersey Resources
Part Il

ITEM B. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (Continued)

acquisition, construction, development and/or through the normal operation of the asset. An asset
retirement cost will be capitalized concurrently by increasing the carrying amount of the related
asset by the same amount as the liability. In periods subsequent to the initial measurement, NJR is
required to recognize changes in the liability resulting from the passage of time (accretion) or due
to revisions to either timing or the amount of the originally estimated cash flows to settle the
conditional asset retirement obligation.

Pension and Postemployment Plans

NJR has two noncontributory defined pension plans covering substantially all employees,
including officers. Benefits are based on each employee's years of service and compensation.
NJR's funding policy is to contribute annually to these plans at least the minimum amount required
under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) of 1974 and not more than can be
deducted for federal income tax purposes. Plan assets consist of equity securities, fixed-income
securities and short-term investments. NJR contributed $10 million and $10.9 million in aggregate to
the plans in fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively. There were no contributions to the pension plans in
fiscal 2007.

NJR also provides two primarily noncontributory medical and life insurance plans for eligible
retirees and dependents. Medical benefits, which make up the largest component of the plans, are
based upon an age and years-of-service vesting schedule and other plan provisions. Funding of
these benefits is made primarily into Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association trust funds. NJR
contributed $685,000, $3.7 million and $638,000 in aggregate to these plans in fiscal 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively.

Stock Based Compensation

In October 2005, the Company adopted SFAS Mo. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment
(SFAS 123R). This statement requires companies to record compensation expense for all share-
based awards granted subsequent to the adoption of SFAS 123R. In addition, SFAS 123R requires
the recording of compensation expense for the unvested portion of previously granted awards that
remain outstanding at the date of adoption. In October 2002, the Company adopted the prospective
method of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (SFAS 123), and as such has
recognized compensation expense for grants issued subsequent to October 1, 2002 at the fair
value of the options at date of grant. See Note 9. Stock Based Compensation. The impact from the
adoption of SFAS 123R was not material to the financial statements.

New Accounting Standards

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes
(FIN 48), which alters the framework for recognizing income tax contingencies. Previously, under
SFAS Mo. 5, Accounting for Contingencies, the focus was on the subsequent liability recognition for
estimated losses from tax contingencies where such losses were probable and the related amounts
could be reasonably estimated. Under this new interpretation, a contingent tax asset (i.e., an
uncertain tax position) may only be recognized if it is more likely than not that it will ultimately be
sustained upon audit. The Company will adopt FIN 48 on October 1, 2007. The Company has
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evaluated its tax positions for all jurisdictions and all years for which the statute of limitations
remains open, and has determined that the adoption will have no material impact on its financial
position, results of operations or cash flows. See Note 12. Income Taxes.

In September 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (SFAS 157).
SFAS 157 defines fair value as the amount that would be exchanged to sell an asset or transfer a
liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants, and establishes a fair value hierarchy
of quotes and unobservable data that should be used to develop pricing assumptions. In addition,
for assets and liabilities that are not actively traded, for example, certain kinds of derivatives,

SFAS 157 requires that a fair value measurement include an adjustment for risks inherent in a
valuation technique and/or inputs, such as those used in pricing models. SFAS 157 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, however, early adoption is permitted. The
Company will adopt the provisions of the statement prospectively and is evaluating the adoption
date and its effect on its financial position and results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postemployment Plans (SFAS 158). The statement requires an employer to
recognize the funded status, measured as the difference between the fair value of plan assets and
the projected benefit obligation, of its benefit plans. SFAS 158 does not change how pensions and
other postemployment benefits are accounted for and reported in the income statement nor does it
change how NJR will measure its assets or liabilities since NJR's measurement date coincides with
its fiscal year end. The Company adopted SFAS 158 on a prospective basis on September 30,
2007, and recognized a net liability of $26.0 million, a regulatory asset of $32.2 million related to
unrecognized service costs that are recoverable in rates and, therefore, allowed to be treated as a
regulatory asset pursuant to SFAS 71, a deferred tax liability of $2.5 million and a gain, net of tax, in
Accumulated other comprehensive income of $4.2 million. For additional information on the effect of
adoption on MJR's Consolidated Balance Sheet, see Note 10. Employee Benefit Plans.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities (SFAS 159). SFAS 159 permits entities to elect to measure eligible items at
fair value as an alternative to hedge accounting and to mitigate volatility in earnings. A company
can either elect the fair value option according to a pre-existing policy, when the asset or liability is
first recognized or when it enters into an eligible firm commitment. Changes in the fair value of
assets and liabilities that the Company chooses to apply the fair value option to, are reported in
earnings at each reporting date. SFAS 159 also provides guidance on disclosures that are intended
to provide comparability to other companies’ assets and liabilities that have different measurement
attributes and to other companies with similar financial assets and liabilities. SFAS 159 is effective
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, however, early adoption is permitted provided
the provisions of SFAS 157 are concurrently applied. The Company is evaluating SFAS 159 to
determine its applicability to its current operations and effect, if any, on its financial position or
results of operations.

In June 2007, the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) reached consensus on EITF lssue
Mo. 06-11, Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards (EITF
06-11). EITF 06-11 applies to share-based payment arrangements that entitle employees to receive
dividends or dividend equivalents and provides that the tax benefit related to dividends on certain
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share based awards be recognized as an increase to additional paid-in capital and should be
included in the pool of excess tax benefits available to absorb future tax deficiencies on share-
based payment awards. EITF 06-11 will be applied prospectively to the income tax benefits of
applicable dividends declared by the Company for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007.
The Company is currently evaluating the effect of adoption on its statement of financial position and
results of operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) used in the United States of America requires NJR to make estimates that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and related disclosure of
contingencies during the reporting period. On a continuous basis, NJR evaluates its estimates,
including those related to the calculation of the fair value of derivative instruments, unbilled
revenues, allowance for doubtful accounts, provisions for depreciation and amortization, regulatory
assets and liabilities, income taxes, pensions and other postemployment benefits and contingencies
related to environmental matters and litigation. NJR bases its estimates on historical experience and
on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

NJR has legal, regulatory and environmental proceedings during the normal course of business
which can result in loss contingencies. When evaluating the potential for a loss, NJR will establish a
reserve if a loss is probable in accordance with SFAS 5, Accounting for Contingencies. Where
available information is sufficient to estimate the amount of the liability, it is NJR's policy to accrue
the full amount of such estimate. Where the information is sufficient only to establish a range of
probable liability, and no point within the range is more likely than any other, it is NJR's policy to
accrue the lower end of the range.

In the normal course of business estimated amounts are subsequently adjusted to actual
results that may differ from estimates.

2. RESTATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As a result of a review of its accounting treatment surrounding certain of the derivative
instruments used by unregulated subsidiaries of the Company in energy transactions during the
process of preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2007,
the Company concluded that it had incorrectly accounted for these derivative instruments as cash
flow hedges. Specifically, the Company concluded that it had incorrectly applied the “critical-terms-
match” criteria of SFAS 133 in designating these derivative instruments as cash flow hedges
primarily because the locational terms did not match exactly. Accordingly, the Company concluded
that the change in fair value of these derivative instruments should be recorded as a component of
Gas purchases, or Operating revenues, as appropriate, in the Consolidated Statements of Income
and not in Other comprehensive income (OCI) where they had been previously recorded. Other
Comprehensive income is accumulated as a component of Common Stock Equity.
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To correct this accounting error, the Company is restating, herein, the consolidated financial
statements as of and for the years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005.

EFFECTS OF RESTATEMENT

Prior to the restatement, changes in the fair value of derivative instruments that were
designated as cash flow hedges of forecasted purchases and sales of natural gas were recorded in
OCI until the forecasted transaction was settled and recognized in earnings. Subsequent to the
restatement, the changes in fair value of these derivative instruments are now recorded in the
Consclidated Statements of Income.

The following table sets forth the effects of the restatement on affected line items within the
Company's previously reported financial statements for fiscal years ended 2006 and 2005, Also
included in the adjustment columns, and as separate line items in the tables below, are certain
immaterial corrections that the Company made to Other income and Equity in earnings of equity
investees, net of tax for 2006 and Operation and maintenance for 2005.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Fiscal years ended September 30,

2006 2005
As As
Prn\rlou:clr As Previously As
Report, Adjustment Restated Reported  Adjustment  Restated
Operating revenue $3,299,608 $ (28,379) $3,271,229 $3,148,262 $§ 36,320 $3,184,582
Gas purchases 52,909,789 $(270,300) $2,639,489 $2,780,343 § 134,044 $2,914,387
Operation and maintenance $ 121,384 MN/A N/A & 108,071 § 370 $ 108,441
Total operating expenses £3,153,145 $(270,300) $2.882.845 £3,009,894 $ 134 414 353,144,308
Operating Income $ 146463 $241,921 $ 388,384 $ 138,368 5 (98,094)5 40,274
Other income 5 7,747 § (3,022) % 4,725 $ 7358 § (2545) % 4,814
Income before income taxes
and equity in earnings of
affiliates § 128541 $238,899 § 367440 § 125253 S$(100,639)F 24,614
Income tax provision $ 50022 % 97327 $ 147349 $§ 48913 § (41,081)% 7,832
Equity in earnings, net of tax 3§ — % 1817 % 1817 % — % 1753 % 1,753
Net Income $ 78519 $143,389 § 221908 $§ 76,340 § (57.805)% 18,535
Basic earnings per share 8 282 % 514 § 796 B 277 % (21008 0.67
Diluted earnings per share g 2.80 % 510 % 7.90 % 271 5 (205 % 0.66
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal years ended September 30,

2006 2005
As As
Previously As Previously As
Reported Adjustment Restated Reported Adjustment Restated
Net Income $78,519 § 143,389 § 221,908 §76,340 $(57,805) $18,535

Unrealized (gain) loss on derivatives  § (4,935) $(143,389) §(148,324) § 3,056 & 57,805 $60,861

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION

Fiscal years ended September 30,
2008 2005

As As
Pmlnu:cli,r As Prevlu:;!jy As
Report Adjustment Restated Repol Adjustment Restated

Accumulated other comprehensive

income/(loss), net of tax $ 93,637 $(90895) § 2,742 $(59,871) $52649 5 (7,222)
Treasury Stock and ather $(65,194) 3 155 $(65,039) § (24,840) MN/A N/A
Retained earnings $267,307 £ 90,740 $358,047 $228,924 §(52649) £176,275

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON STOCK EQUITY

Fiseal years ended September 30,

2006 2005
As As
Previousl As Previous| As
Fleportacr Adjustment Restated Reporu:r Adjustment Restated
Net Income $ 78,519 $ 143,389 $221,908 $ 76,340 $(57,805) $18,535
Met unrealized gain (loss) on
derivatives 143,048 $(143,544)8  (496) $(58,010) & 57,805 § (205)
Treasury stock and other $(48631) % 155 § (46,476) $(23,449) MN/A N/A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Fiscal years ended September 30,

2006 2005
As As
Previously As Previously As
Reported Mju_s_tmnnt Restated Repuned_ft_d_iustmenl Restated
Net Income $ 78,519 $ 143,389 $221,908 $ 76,340 $(57,805) $18,535
Met unrealized gain (loss) on
derivatives $143,048 $(143,544)§  (496) $(58,010) & 57,805 $ (205)
Comprehensive income $232,027 § (155) $231,872 § 18,849 MN/A N/A

1!
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3. REGULATION
Energy Deregulation Legislation

The Electric Discount and Energy Competition Act (EDECA), is the legal framework for New
Jersey's public utility and wholesale energy landscape. NJNG is required, pursuant to a written
order by the BPU under EDECA, to have its residential markets open to competition from third-party
natural gas suppliers. Customers can choose the supplier of their natural gas commodity in NJNG's
service territory.

As required by EDECA, NJNG has restructured its prices to segregate BGSS rates into two
primary components, the commodity portion, which represents the wholesale cost of natural gas,
including the cost for interstate pipeline capacity to bring the gas to NJNG's service territory, and
the delivery portion, which represents the transportation of the commodity portion through NJNG's
gas distribution system to the end-use customer. NJNG earns no utility gross margin on the
commaodity portion of its natural gas sales. NJNG earns utility gross margin through the delivery of
natural gas to its customers, regardless of whether it or a third-party supplier provides the
wholesale natural gas commodity.

Under EDECA, the BPU is required to audit the state's energy utilities every two years. The
primary purpose of the audit is to ensure that utilities and their affiliates offering unregulated retail
services do not have any unfair competitive advantage over nonaffiliated providers of similar retail
services, A combined competitive services and management audit of NJNG began in
Novernber 2006 and is currently pending completion.

Filed Base Rate Review

Based upon increases in NJNG's operating, maintenance and capital costs, NJNG petitioned
the BPU, on November 20, 2007, to increase base rates for delivery service by approximately
$58.4 million, which includes a return on equity component of 11.375 percent. This petition is
consistent with NJNG's objectives of providing safe and reliable service to its customers and
earning a market-based return on its regulated investments. Based upon statutory time frames and
potential regulatory lag, it is unlikely that any modification to its delivery rates would become
effective during fiscal 2008.

Conservation Incentive Program (CIP)

For the reporting periods through September 30, 20086, the impact of weather on NJNG's utility
gross margin had been significantly mitigated due to its Weather Normalization Clause (WNC).
However, lower customer usage per degree-day was not captured by the WNC. NJNG had
experienced lower customer usage per degree-day, which it believed was due primarily to customer
conservation resulting from an increase in wholesale natural gas commeodity costs. In order to
minimize the impact of the reduction in customer usage, MJNG filed a Conservation and Usage
Adjustment (CUA) proposal with the BPU in December 2005. In December 2006, the BPU issued a
Decision and Order and approved the stipulation reached on September 30, 2006, which modified
the CUA proposal into the Conservation Incentive Program (CIP) effective for October 1, 2006.
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The CIP is a three-year pilot program, designed to decouple the link between customer usage
and NJMNG's utility gross margin to allow NJNG to encourage its customers to conserve energy. The
initial term of the CIP is October 1, 2006 through September 30, 2009. Under certain conditions, the
CIP may be extended one additional year beyond the initial term. For the term of the pilot, the WNC
has been suspended and replaced with the CIP tracking mechanism, which addresses utility gross
margin variations related to both weather and customer usage in comparison to established
benchmarks. Recovery of such utility gross margin variations (filed for annually and recovered one
year following the end of the CIP usage year) is subject to additional conditions, including an
earnings test and an evaluation of BGSS-related savings.

As of September 30, 2007 MJNG has $16.5 million accrued to recover from residential and
small commercial customers, which includes $8.2 million related to the weather component of the
CIP and $8.3 million related to the usage component of the CIP

To encourage energy efficiency, NJNG is obligated to initiate and fund programs to further
customer conservation efforts over the term of the pilot. The minimum expected liability for funding
these programs was recorded, at its present value of $1.8 million, as of September 30, 2006. As a
result of the accretion of interest and the payment of obligations for this program, the balance of
this liability is approximately $1.4 million as of September 30, 2007,

The commencement of the CIP does not have any impact on the collection of previously
accrued amounts for utility gross margin recovery under the WNC.

The following are NJNG's BPU filings and results related to CIP:

= June 2007-MNJNG filed its CIP Petition for the Annual Review of its CIP Program for
recoverable CIP amounts for fiscal 2007 and to establish its CIP recovery rates effective
October 1, 2007.

= August 2007-NJNG filed an amendment to its June 2007 CIP filing to update financial
information to include actual data.

« October 2007-the BPU provisionally approved implementation of NJNG's initial CIP rates,
which will add 1.1 percent to the average residential customer's bill.

In addition to approving NJNG’s CIP rates, the BPU acted on various matters relating to other
previously filed petitions and stipulations at the October 2007 meeting. Including the initial CIP rate,
the BPU approved a provisional decrease to NJNG's periodic BGSS rate and an increase to
delivery rates related to WNC, Universal Service Fund and the New Jersey Clean Energy Program,
as discussed below. The net effect of the all approved rate changes is a 0.7 percent decrease to
the average residential sales customer's bill effective October 4, 2007,

Basic Gas Supply Service

NJNG is allowed to recover the commodity cost of its gas purchased for sale to its customers
through the BGSS rate component of its customers’ bills. NJNG is required to make an annual filing
by June 1 of each year for review of its BGSS rate with the BPU. At that time NJNG may also
request a potential rate change to be effective at the beginning of the following fiscal year. NJNG is
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allowed to make two interim filings during the fiscal year peried to subsequently increase residential
and small commercial customer BGSS rates up to 5 percent on a self-implementing and provisional
basis, after proper notice and BPU action on the June filing. Such increases, if any, are subject to
subseqguent BPU review and final approval.

The cost of the wholesale natural gas commodity passed through to customers can fluctuate
significantly based on many factors associated with supply and demand in the marketplace. In
addition to the annual and interim filings to adjust BGSS rates, NJNG is permitted to refund or
credit back a portion of the commaodity cost previously collected from customers when the natural
gas commodity cost decreases in comparison to amounts projected or adjusted as a component of
the BGSS rates. Before implementing a refund or credit, proper notification and supporting
documentation is filed with the BPU. Refundable amounts may also be subject to interest.

The following are NJNG's BGSS filings and related rate adjustments and refunds to its
residential and small commercial customers:

« June 2005-NJNG filed its annual BGSS review and reguested a 4.2 percent rate increase to
be effective October 2005, which was subsequently amended and approved to be effective
September 2005.

Movember 2005-An additional 23.2 percent price increase related to higher wholesale natural
gas commaodity costs was provisionally approved and became effective December 2005.

January and March 2006-NJNG filed notification with the BPU for a bill credit for the period
February 1, 2006 through April 30, 2006, providing a temporary rate reduction of
approximately $28.6 million to its customers, as the natural gas commadity cost recovered in
the BGSS rate was higher than the actual cost to acquire natural gas.

June 2006-NJNG filed for a reduction to the BGSS rate that decreased the average
residential customer’s bill by approximately 6.6 percent as a result of continued decreases in
wholesale natural gas costs, which was approved by the BPU on a provisional basis in
September 2006.

September 2006-In addition to implementing a rate decrease, NJNG refunded approximately
$22.5 million to its customers, as a result of lower natural gas costs.

October 2006-NJNG filed notification for a sel-implementing BGSS price reduction effective
Movermnber 2006, which lowered customers’ bills by approximately an additional 4 percent.

December 2006 and March 2007-Customers received refunds approximately $51.5 million
and $20 million, respectively, as the prices for wholesale natural gas continued to be lower
than the BGSS allowed recovery rate.

June 2007-NJNG filed its annual review and revision of its BGSS for fiscal 2008 (2008 BGSS
filing) and proposed to maintain its periodic BGSS factor at its existing levels as a result of a
pending self-implementing BGSS decrease in conjunction with a stipulation that NJNG
entered into with the BPU in March 2007 (the March 2007 Stipulation) related to the Societal
Benefits Clause (SBC) and Weather Normalization Clause (WNC), both of which are
discussed below under Societal Benefits Clause and Weather Normalization Clause. NIJMNG
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expected to implement the June 1% proposal for the BGSS factor in October 2007. The
self-implementing decrease is designed to offset proposed increases to the SBC and WNC
rates, as discussed below.

= August 2007-NJNG withdrew its notification of its intent to self-implement the BGSS decrease
and filed an amendment to its 2008 BGSS filing to request approval of the BGSS decrease
effective in October 2007.

= October 2007-the BPU provisionally approved a 3.6 percent decrease to NJNG's BGSS rate
gffective October 4, 2007.

* Movember 2007-NJNG announced its intention to notify the BPU that it will provide refunds
totaling approximately $30 million, which will be in the form of a bill credit.

Other Incentive Programs

NJNG is eligible to receive financial incentives for reducing BGSS costs through a series of
utility gross margin-sharing programs that include off-system sales, capacity release, storage
incentive and financial risk management (FRM) programs. The ratio of storage incentive and FRM
pre-tax gains and losses shared by NJNG customers and NJNG was 80 percent and 20 percent,
respectively, during fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005. The sharing percentage for off-system sales
and capacity release is on an 85 percent and 15 percent basis during the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

At the October 2007 meeting, the BPU approved an extension of the utility gross margin-
sharing programs mentioned above through October 31, 2008. Concurrently, the BPU changed
NJNG's FRM sharing percentage to 85 percent to customers and 15 percent to NJNG effective
November 1, 2007.

Societal Benefits Clause (SBC) and Weather Normalization Clause (WNC)

The SBC is comprised of three primary components, a Universal Service Fund rider (USF), a
Manufactured Gas Plant Remediation Adjustment Clause (RAC), and the Mew Jersey Clean Energy
Program (NJCEF). The USF is a permanent statewide program that was approved by the BPU in
March 2003 for all natural gas and electric utilities for the benefit of income eligible customers; the
RAC is a rider approved by the BPU in June 1992 that provides for recovery of actual expenditures
incurred to remediate former gas manufacturing facilities; and the NJCEP is a program approved by
the BPU in March 2001 and is designed to promote energy efficiency and renewable energy.
Recovery of SBC program costs is subject to BPU approval of annual filings that include an
updated report of expenditures incurred each year.

In October 2007, the BPU approved the following:

* $14.7 million in eligible costs to be recovered annually for MGP remediation expenditures
incurred through September 30, 2006, except for $4.0 million of those expenditures
associated with the Mass Tort Litigation related to the Long Branch MGP sites (see Note 13.
Commitments and Contingent Liabilities), which was recorded as a charge to Operations and
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maintenance expense in the Consolidated Income Statement for the twelve months ended
September 30, 2007,

« SBC and WNC increases, which were originally filed in October 2006 and subsequently
agreed to in a stipulation signed by NJNG, the BPU and Rate Counsel in October 2007 as
follows:

+ An increase in the recovery related to the NJCEP from $6.3 million to $13.0 million for
the fiscal year 2008.

+ The WNC portion of its rates were increased by $8.1 million, or 0.9 percent, to recover
the net amount previously deferred gross margin associated with warmer than normal
weather for the 2005 through 2006 winter period and the colder than normal weather for
the 2004 through 2005 winter period; and

+ A decrease to the USF portion as noted below.

Universal Service Fund

Through the USF, eligible customers receive a credit toward their utility bill. The credits applied
to eligible customers are recovered through the USF rider in the SBC. NJNG recovers carrying
costs on deferred USF balances. Regulatory actions related to the USF rider are as follows:

= July 2006-The natural gas utilities filed to increase the statewide USF recovery rate as a
result of higher USF benefits. The request was subsequently approved to be effective
Movember 1, 2006 and resulted in an approximate 0.9 percent increase to the total bill of
residential sales customers.

« June 2007-The natural gas utilities filed to decrease the statewide USF recovery rate. At the
October 2007 meeting, the BPU approved the decrease to the statewide USF recovery rate,
which will have a negligible impact on customers,

New Jersey Clean Energy Program

The BPU has established a statewide NJCEP funding amount, from all New Jersey utilities, for
the period from January 1, 2005 to December 31, 2008. NJNG's obligation to the state of New
Jersey, which is recoverable from customers through the SBC, gradually increases from $4.2 million
in fiscal 2005 to $9.5 million in fiscal 2008, As a result, MJNG has a remaining discounted liability of
$11.5 million and a corresponding Regulatory asset included in SBC at September 30, 2007.
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Regulatory Assets & Liabilities

At September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, the Company had the following regulatory

assets, all related to NJNG, on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

(Thousands) 2007 2008 Recovery Period
HE‘QUHION assets-current
WNC $ 8,105 $ 8,105 Less than one year"
o] 16,529 — Less than one year™
Total current $ 24634 $ B,105

Regulatory assets-noncurrent

Remediation costs (Motes 3 and 13)

Expended, net $ B5,071 % 83746 ©
Liability for future expenditures 105,340 105400 @
Deferred income and other taxes 13,979 13,478 Various
Derivatives (Note 4) 51,861 82451 ©
Postemployment benefit costs 8
(Note 10) 33,988 2117
_SBC 22,130 35796 Various”
Total noncurrent $312,369 $322986

o

@

]

5

L]

7

Racoverable as a resull of BPU approval in October 2007, without infarest. This balance reflects the net results from
winter 2004-2005 and 2005-2006. No new WNC activity is being recorded due lo the existence of the CIR alf previously
deferred amounts with the WNC have been approved for recovery.

Recoverable or refundable, subject fo BPU annual approval, withoul interest. Balance includes approxmately $8.2 million
relating fo the weather component of the calculation and approximately $8.3 million relating fo the customer usage
component of the calculation. Recovery from customers is designed to be one year from date of rate approval by the
arLl.

Recoverable, subject to BPU approval, with interest over rolling 7-year periods. As of Seplember 30, 2007, this amount is
net of actual insurance proceeds received of $12.8 million, as the result of a seflement NING reached with cerain
parties for recovery of such amounis on January 24, 2007 (see Note 13. Commitments and Contingent Liabiities-Legal
Proceedings). As of September 30, 2006 this amourd is net of an estimated 10 million in expected insurance proceeds.

Estimated futwre expenditures, Recovery will be requested when aclual expenditures are incurred (see Nole 13,
Commitments and Contingant Liabilties-Legal Proceedings).

Recoverable, subject to BPU approval, through BGSS, without interest,

Racoverable or refundable, subject fo BPU approval, without interest. The increase in fiscal 2007 is due to the application
of SFAS 7158, as NJNG has determined that unrecognized prior service costs are recoverable in rales charged to
cuslomers (see Note 10. Employee Benelit Plans).

Recoverable with interest, subject to BPU approval.

If there are any changes in regulatory positions that indicate the recovery of regulatory assets

is not probable, the related cost would be charged to income in the period of such determination.
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At September 30, 2007 and 2008, the Company had the following regulatory liabilities, all
related to NJNG, on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

{Thousands) 2007 2006
Regulatory liability—current

Owverrecovered gas costs!” $ 9583 % 1,710
Total current $ 9583 5 1,710
Regulatory liabilities—-noncurrent

Cost of removal obligation $60,094 558,161

Market development fund (MDF)™ 1,176 6,059
Total-noncurrent $61,270 364,220

M Refundable, subject fo BPU approval, through BGSS, with inlerest,

@ NJNG accrues and collects for cost of removal in rates. This liability represents collections in excess of actual
expenditures, Approximately $19.5 million, including accretion of $§1.3 million for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2007, of reguilatory assels relaling to asset refirement obligations have been netted against the cost of removal obligation
as of Seplember 30, 2007 (see Nole 11. Assel Retirement Obligations).

@ The MOF provided financial incentives fo encowrage cusiomers to switch to third pary suppliers and has supported other
unbundling related initiatives. Balance earmed inferest at prevailing SBC rate. The MDF funding obligations terminated as
of October 31, 2006. Approximately 54.9 million of this fund was credited o the NJCEP as a result of the CIP Decision
and Order of the BPU on December 12, 2006, The remaining balance will be credited back to customers through the
BGSS in October 2007.

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to market risk due to fluctuations in the price of
natural gas. To manage the risk of such fluctuations, the Company and its subsidiaries enter into
futures contracts, option agreements and swap agreements to economically hedge future
purchases and sales of natural gas.

Generally, all of the Company’s commaodity contracts for future delivery of natural gas meet the
“normal purchase normal sale” scope exception of SFAS No. 133, and the related liabilities
incurred and assets acquired under these contracts are recorded when title to the underlying
commodity passes. If these commadity contracts do not meet the normal purchase normal sale
scope exception they are recorded at fair value, and any changes to that fair value over time are
recorded as a component of Gas purchases. All of NJRES' and NJR Energy's financial derivative
instruments (financial futures, options or swaps) are accounted for at fair value with all changes
recorded as a component of Gas purchases or Operating revenues, as appropriate, in the
Consolidated Statements of Income. The change in the fair value of NJNG's financial derivative
instruments are recorded as a component of regulatory assets or liabilities in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

In March 1982, NJR Energy entered into a long-term fixed-price contract to sell natural gas
(Gas Sale Contract) to an energy marketing company, which expires in 2010. NJR Energy entered
into a series of purchase contracts to provide additional gas to meet required volumes under the
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Gas Sale Contract that were in excess of the estimated production from natural gas reserves owned
at the time. NJR Energy also entered into swap agreements that cover various periods of time
ranging from November 2006 to October 2010.

The respective obligations of NJR Energy and the counterparties under the swap agreements
are guaranteed, subject to a maximum amount, by the Company and the respective counterparties’
parent corporations. In the event of nonperformance by the counterparties and their parent
corporations, NJR Energy's financial results would be impacted by the difference, if any, between
the fixed price it is receiving under the Gas Sale Contracts and the floating price that it is paying
under the purchase contract. However, the Company does not anticipate nonperformance by the
counterparties, which are major national energy companies.

Generally, exchange-traded futures contracts require a deposit of margin cash, the amount of
which is subject to change based on market movements and in accordance with exchange rules.
The Company maintains broker margin accounts for NJNG and NJRES. The balances as of
September 30, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

(Thousands) 2007 2006
NJNG broker margin depaosit $12,345 3 30,833
NJRES broker margin liability $(15,143) $(14,220)

5. INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INVESTEES

On March 2, 2007, NJR, through NJR Steckman Ridge Storage Company, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of NJR Energy Holdings, entered into a series of joint venture agreements with
subsidiaries of Spectra Energy Corporation (Spectra) and formed the Steckman Ridge partnership.
The purpose of the partnership is to develop and operate an anticipated 20 Bef natural gas storage
facility in western Pennsylvania, which will serve the Northeastern and Mid-Atlantic regions of the
United States. NJR and Spectra each own 50 percent of the equity interests in Steckman Ridge and
are required to fund 50 percent of total acquisition and development costs up to a maximum of
$125 million each. As NJR has the ability to exert significant influence, but not control, it uses the
equity method of accounting for its investment in Steckman Ridge.

MJR's Investments in equity investees as of September 30, 2007 and 2008, respectively, include
the following investments:

(Thousands) 2007 2006

Steckman Ridge $56,726 $ —

Iroquois 22,073 20,414

Other 7,944 6,794

Total $86,743  §27,208
a9
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The following is summarized financial information for Iroquois for the fiscal years ended
September 30:

{Millions) 2007 2006 2005

Operating revenues $118.1 $117.6 %1129
Operating income $ 57.7 %605 &% 5590
Met income $219 %223 % 254
Total assets $814.3 57981 5838.7

Steckman Ridge is currently under development. As such, there are no earnings currently
associated with the investment in Steckman Ridge, and the invested balance to date represents the
Company's share of total acquisition and development costs incurred to acquire the natural gas
storage rights, engineering and site preparation, legal and other third party direct charges and
capitalized interest. Other investments represent investments in equity securities of publicly traded
energy companies, all of which are immaterial on an individual basis, and are accounted for as
available for sale securities, with any change in the value of such investments recorded as
Accumulated other comprehensive income, a component of Common Stock Equity.

6. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table presents the calculation of the Company’s basic and diluted earnings per
share for the fiscal years ended September 30:

(Thousands, excepl per share amounis) 2007 2006 2005
MNet Income, as reported $65,281 $221908 $18,535
Basic earnings per share

Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding-basic 27,903 27,862 27,591
Basic earnings per cormon share $ 234 5 79 § 067
Diluted eamnings per share

Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding-basic 27,903 27,862 27,591

Incremental shares’” 172 219 530

Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding-diluted 28,075 28,081 28121
Diluted earnings per common share $ 233 $§ 790 § 0.66

M Incremental shares consist of sfock options, stock awards and performance units
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT, DIVIDENDS AND RETAINED EARNINGS RESTRICTIONS
Annual long-term debt, excluding capital leases, redemption requirements are as follows (in

millions):

September 30, Redemption
2008 —
2009 $ 55.0
2010 —
2011 $ 20.0
2012 —

Thereafter $254.8

NJNG First Mortgage Bonds

NJMG's mortgage secures its First Mortgage Bonds and represents a lien on substantially all of
its property, including natural gas supply contracts. Certain indentures supplemental to the
mortgage include restrictions as to cash dividends and other distributions on NJNG's common
stock that apply as long as certain series of First Mortgage Bonds are outstanding. Under the most
restrictive provision, approximately $178 million of NJNG's retained earnings were available for such
purposes at September 30, 2007.

NJMG enters into loan agreements with the New Jersey Economic Development Authority (the
EDA) under which the EDA issues tax-exempt bonds and the proceeds are loaned to NJNG to fund
capital expenditures for certain portions of its natural gas service territory. To secure its loans from
the EDA, MJNG issues First Mortgage Bonds to the EDA with interest rates and maturity dates
identical 1o those of the EDA Bonds.

In October 2005, NJNG entered into a loan agreement under which the EDA loaned NJNG the
proceeds from $35.8 million of tax-exempt EDA Bonds consisting of $10.3 million, 4.5 percent
(Series 2005A) and $10.5 million, 4.6 percent (Series 2005B) Revenue Refunding Bonds; and
$15.0 million, 4.9 percent (Series 2005C) Matural Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds. The EDA's
Series 2005A bonds are supported by NJNG's 4.5 percent Series Il bonds with a maturity date of
August 1, 2023. The EDA's Series 2005B bonds are supported by NJNG's 4.6 percent Series JJ
bonds with a maturity date of August 1, 2024. The EDA’s Series 2005C bonds are supported by
NJNG's 4.9 percent Series KK bonds with a maturity date of October 1, 2040.

MNJNG used the proceeds from the Series A and B bonds to refinance NJNG's $10.3 million,
5.38 percent Series W First Mortgage Bonds and its $10.5 million, 6.25 percent Series Y First
Mortgage Bonds, respectively. The proceeds from the Series 2005C bonds were deposited into a
construction fund. NJNG drew down $6.5 million from the construction fund in fiscal 2006 and
$4.3 million in fiscal 2007.

In July 2006, NJNG purchased interest rate caps with several banks to hedge the interest rate
exposure on its $97.0 million of tax-exempt, variable rate long-term debt with varicus maturity dates
ranging from 2027 to 2033. The interest rate caps expire in July 2009 and limit NJNG's variable rate
debt exposure for the tax-exempt EDA Bonds at 4.5 percent. The interest rate caps are treated as
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cash flow hedges, with changes in fair value accounted for in Accumulated other comprehensive
income. At September 30, 2007 and 2006, the weighted average interest rate on NJNG's variable
rate EDA Bonds was 3.9 percent and 3.3 percent, respectively.

NJNG Medium Term Notes

In May 2007, NJNG petitioned the BPU requesting authorization to issue and sell, in one or
more series, an aggregate of $125 million in medium-term notes through July 31, 2010. The notes
may be issued on a secured or unsecured basis and maturities can range from one to forty years.
The proceeds from the issuance of the notes will be used to refinance short-term debt, which has
been incurred to fund capital expenditure requirements and pension and other post-employment
benefit programs. In August 2007, the BPU approved NJNG’s petition and the notes are anticipated
to be issued during the second quarter of fiscal 2008.

NJNG Sale-Leasebacks

NJNG's master lease agreement for its headquarters building has a 25.5-year term with two
S-year renewal options. The present value of the agreement’s minimum lease payments is reflected
as both a capital lease asset and a capital lease obligation, which are included in Utility plant and
Long-term debt, respectively, on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. In accordance with its
ratemaking treatment, NJNG records rent expense as if the lease was an operating lease.

NJNG received $5.5 million, $4.1 million and $4.9 million for fiscal year 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, in connection with the sale-leaseback of its natural gas meters. This sale-leaseback
program is expected to be continued on an annual basis.

Contractual commitments for lease payments, under both sale-leasebacks for the meters and
the building, as of the fiscal year end are as follows (in millions):

Fiscal Year Ended Lease

September 30, Payments

2008 s 8.0

2009 8.0

2010 a2

2011 12.0

2012 6.0
Thereafter 41.2
Subtotal $834

Less: interest component 25.7)
Total § 57.7

NJR Debt
NJR had no long-term variable-rate debt outstanding at September 30, 2007 and 2006.
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On September 24, 2007, NJR issued $50 million of Unsecured Senior Notes which will be used
for financing its initial investment in Steckman Ridge and general corporate purposes including
refinancing short-term debt. These notes have a 10-year maturity and an interest rate of
6.05 percent.

8. SHORT-TERM DEBT AND CREDIT FACILITIES

A summary of NJR's and NJNG's committed credit facilities, which require commitment fees on
the unused amounts, and NJRES' committed facility that does not require a fee, are as follows:

September 30,

{Thousands) 2007 2006
NJR
Bank credit facilities $325,000 5325,000
Amount outstanding at end of period

Motes payable to banks $ 40,250 3129,200
Weighted average interest rate at end of period

Motes payable to banks 6.17% 6.00%
NJING
Bank credit facilities $250,000 250,000
Amount outstanding at end of period

Commercial paper $175,700 35151,500
Weighted average interest rate at end of period

Commercial paper 5.19% 4.70%
NJRES
Bank credit facilities $ 30,000 S —
Amount outstanding at end of period

Motes payable to banks $ 30,000 3 —
Weighted average interest rate at end of period

Motes payable to banks 5.78% —%

N The table includes only committed credit faciiities for short term borrowings. Also included in short term debt on the
consalidated balance sheet as of Seplember 20, 2007, is $10.5 million related lo an uncommitted credit facility.

NJR

As of September 30, 2007, NJR has a $325 million committed credit facility with several banks,
with a 3-year term, expiring in December 2007. These facilities provide liquidity to meet the working
capital and external debt-financing requirements of NJR and its nonregulated companies. NJR
expects to replace this facility in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 with a 5-year committed credit
facility.

As of September 30, 2007, NJR had three letters of credit cutstanding on behalf of NJRES, ane
of which expired on November 30, 2007. A $14.0 million letter of credit was related to margin
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requirements for NJRES' natural gas transactions and was not renewed. There are two remaining
letters of credit outstanding on behalf of MJRES that expire on December 31, 2007. These two
letters of credit are comprised of a $4.0 million letter of credit that was renewed on August 1, 2007,
in conjunction with a long-term natural gas storage agreement, and a $500,000 letter of credit that
was entered into on September 28, 2007 for an additional storage transaction.

MNJR also has a $675,000 letter of credit outstanding on behalf of CR&R, which expired on
December 3, 2007, in conjunction with development activities. This letter of credit will be renewed
during the first quarter of fiscal 2008.

These letters of credit reduce the amount available under MJR's committed credit facility by the
same amount. NJR does not anticipate that these letters of credit will be drawn upon by the
counterparties and they will be renewed as necessary.

NJNG

As of September 30, 2007, NJNG has a $250 million committed facility with several banks, with
a 5-year term expiring in December 2009. This facility is used to support NJNG's commercial paper
program.

As of September 30, 2007, NJNG had a $34 million letter of credit outstanding that will expire
on December 31, 2007, in conjunction with a long-term swap agreement. The long-term swap
agreement was entered into as a hedge related to an offsetting physical purchase of natural gas for
the same time period and volume. This letter of credit was replaced on November 30, 2007, by a
stand alone letter of credit, expiring in December 31, 2007, which does not reduce the amount
available to be borrowed under NJNG's credit facility. NJNG does not anticipate that this letter of
credit will be drawn upon by the counterparty, and it will be renewed as necessary, upon its
expiration.

In April 2007, NJNG entered into a 3-year, $30 million uncommitted credit facility with a
multinational financial institution, of which $10.5 million was outstanding as of September 30, 2007.

NJRES

In October 2008, NJRES entered into a 3-year, $30 million committed credit facility with a
multinational financial institution. Borrowings under this facility, which totaled $30 million at
September 30, 2007, are guaranteed by NJR.

Neither MJNG nor the results of its operations are obligated or pledged to support the NJR ar
NJRES credit facilities.
9. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

Effective January 24, 2007, the shareholders of NJR approved the NJR 2007 Stock Award and
Incentive Plan (2007 Plan), which replaced the 2002 Employee and Qutside Director Long-Term
Incentive Plan (Long-Term Plan). The Long-Term Plan had 591,471 and 87,280 shares, respectively,
reserved for employees and directors, which were rolled into the 2007 Plan. In addition to those
shares, the 2007 Plan reserved an additional 750,000 shares for issuance to employees for a total
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reserve of 1,341,471 and 87,280, respectively, for employees and directors, which provides for a
broader range of equity awards. As of September 30, 2007, 1,327,098 and 79,227 shares,
respectively, remain available for future awards to employees and directors.

The following table summarizes all stock-based compensation expense recognized during the
fiscal years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 respectively:

(Thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Stock-based compensation expense:
Stock options $ 278 $430 5 328
Performance units 292 270 (1,075)
Restricted stock 747 21 —
Compensation expense included in Operation and Maintenance
expense 1,317 721 (747)
Income tax benefit (541) (294) 305
Total, net of tax $ 776 3427 5 (442)

In fiscal 2005, the Company recognized compensation expense for options granted prior to
October 1, 2002, based upon the intrinsic value method as prescribed in Accounting Principles
Board (APB) Opinion Mo. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.

The following table presents the pro-forma impacts on net income and earnings per share in
fiscal 2005 as if fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123R had been applied to options granted
prior to October 1, 2002:

(Thousands) 2005
MNet income, as restated $18,535
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net income, net

of related tax effects 194
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under the fair

value-based method for all awards, net of related tax effects (404)
Pro forma net income 518,325

2005

Basic-earnings per share, as restated $0.67
Basic-earnings per share, pro forma $0.66
Diluted—earnings per share, as restated £0.66
Diluted-earnings per share, pro forma $0.65

Included in operations and maintenance expense is $1.3 million and $0.7 million related to
stock-based compensation for fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively. As of September 30, 2007, there
is approximately $1.7 million of deferred compensation related to unvested shares and options,
which is expected to be recognized over the next three years.
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Stock Options

There were no stock options granted in fiscal 2007. The following table summarizes the
assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the resulting weighted average
fair value of the stock options issued during fiscal years 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005
Dividend yield —% 3.2% 3.0%
Volatility —% 13.2% 12.7%
Expected life (years) — i 7
Risk-free interest rate —% 4.6% 4.3%
Weighted average fair value —  F5.44 %414

The following table summarizes the stock option activity for the past three fiscal years:

Weighted
Average
Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at Septernber 30, 2004 1,687 678 $26.90
Granted 177,500 $45.01
Exercised (269,234) $24.06
Forfeited (50,287) $32.17
Qutstanding at September 30, 2005 1,545 657 $29.29
Granted 28,200 $42.83
Exercised (883,779) $26.23
Forfeited (18,247)  $36.69
Outstanding at Septemnber 30, 2006 671,831 $33.67
Granted —_ -
Exercised (199,527) $29.11
Forfeited (3,750) $28.52
Outstanding at September 30, 2007 468,554 $35.65
Exercisable at September 30, 2007 369,204 $33.30
Exercisable at September 30, 2006 485,806 $30.53
Exercisable at September 30, 2005 1,258,270 $26.88

For the stock options listed above, there are $441,000 in costs related to unvested options that
are expected to be recognized over the next 3 years.
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The following table summarizes stock options outstanding and exercisable as of September 30,

2007
Ouistanding Exercisable
Weighted
HMHF Welghted A ate Weighted ate
emaln 8 r
Number lEhuml'm:lml .hwurlqa nldﬁgsk: Humber Avera Aﬁnst]rmlc
of Siock Term Exercize Value ol Stock Exerc Value
Exercise Price Range Options (in years) Price (in thousands)  Options Price (in thousands)
518.22 - 522.78 7.500 08 $22.75 5 201 7.500 $22.75 5 20
522,78 - $27.33 69,530 2.2 $25.93 1,645 69,530  §25.93 1,845
$27.33 - $31.89 174,124 4.4 $29.95 3.421 173,124 $29.94 3,402
531.80 - 536,44 9,000 56 $33.85 142 9,000 $3385 142
$36.44 - 541.00 19,500 6.4 $38.04 224 14,500 $38.17 185
$41.00 - $45.55 188,900 76 $44.84 Bag 95,550 $44.78 460
Total 468,554 5.4 $35.65 56,531 369,204 $33.30 56,015

Performance Units

The Company has issued performance units, which are market conditions awards, to various
officers. The following table summarizes the Performance Unit activity under the Employee and
Outside Director Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan for the past three fiscal years:

Weighted Average

rant Date

Units™ Fair Value

Mon-vested and outstanding at September 30, 2004 69,475 $30.62
Granted 36,750 $45.55
Vested (14,475) $27.33
Cancelled/forfeited (55,000) $31.49
Mon-vested and outstanding at September 30, 2005 36,750 $45.55
Granted 7,200 $42.80
Vested i —
Cancelled/forfeited (2,250} $45.55
Mon-vested and outstanding at September 30, 2008 41,700 $45.08
Granted e —
Vested (10,425) $45.08

Cancelled/forfeited

(20,850) $45.08

Non-vested and outstanding at September 30, 2007 10,425 $45.08

I The number of common shares issuved related to performance units may range from zero to 150 percent of the number of
units shown in the lable above based on the Company’s achievement of performance goals associated with NJR toial
shareowner refurn relative 1o a selected peer group of companies. Based on the Company's performance as of
September 30, 2007, the number of common shares to be issued is 50 percent. This amount Is reflected in the activity

listed above for fiscal 2007,
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The Company measures compensation expense related to performance units based on the fair
value of these awards at their date of grant. Compensation expense for performance units is
recognized for awards that ultimately vest, and is not adjusted based on actual achievement of the
performance geals. The Company estimated the fair value of the performance units on the date of
grant using a Lattice model.

There are $187,000 in costs related to unvested performance units that are expected to be
recognized over the next two years.

Restricted Stock

In fiscal 2007, the Company issued 36,687 shares of Restricted Stock under the 2007 Plan,
which vest in equal annual installments over three years, subject to certain conditions, and 17,741
restricted shares that vested immediately.

There are $1.1 million in costs related to unvested restricted stock shares that are expected to
be recognized over the next three years.

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Pension and Other Pastemployment Benefit Plans (OPEB)

NJR has two trusteed, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plans covering regular
represented and nonrepresented employees with more than one year of service. All represented
employees of NJRHS hired on or after October 1, 2000, are covered by an enhanced defined
contribution plan instead of the defined benefit plan.

Defined benefit plan benefits are based on years of service and average compensation during
the highest 60 consecutive months of employment.

The Company also maintains an unfunded nonqualified pension equalization plan (PEP) that
was established to provide employees with the full level of benefits as stated in the qualified plan
without reductions due to various limitations imposed by the provisions of federal income tax laws
and regulations. There were no plan assets in the nonqualified plan due to the nature of the plan.

The Company provides postemployment medical and life insurance benefits to employees who
meet certain eligibility requirements.

NJR's funding policy for its pension plans is to contribute at least the minimum amount
required by the Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1874, as amended. In fiscal 2007
and 2006, the Company had no minimum funding reguirements; however, NJR made a
discretionary contribution of $10 million in fiscal 2006 to the pension plans. The Company elected
to make this discretionary tax-deductible contribution to improve the funded status of the pension
plans. The Company currently has no plans to fund the pension plans over the next five years,
however, funding requirements are uncertain and can depend significantly on changes in actuarial
assumptions, returns on plan assets and changes in the demographics of eligible employees and
covered dependents.

108

146/175



11/7/2016 2007 Annual Report - Printing All Pages

New Jersey Resources
Part Il

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (Continued)

NJR made tax-deductible contributions of $685,000 in fiscal 2007 and $3.7 million in fiscal 2006
to the OPEB plans. It is anticipated that the funding level to the OPEB plans will be approximately
$600,000 annually over the next five years.

As of September 30, 2006, NJR adopted SFAS 158, Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postemployment Plans. Under SFAS 158, companies are required to recognize
an asset for its overfunded plans and a liability for any underfunded plans. As a result, at
September 30, 2007, NJR recognized a liability of $26.0 million for its previously unrecognized
pension and OPEEB actuarial losses and prior service costs, as well as its OPEB transition costs,
and a deferred tax liability of $2.5 million. NJR recorded a regulatory asset of $32.2 million for the
portion of the liability that is related to unrecognized prior service costs at NJNG that are
recoverable through allowed rates charged to customers.

The balance of $4.2 million, net of tax, was offset in Accumulated other comprehensive income.
There is no impact from adoption to net periodic benefit costs. Amounts reflected in Accumulated
other comprehensive income will continue to be recognized in net periodic benefit costs in
accordance with SFAS No. 87, Employers Accounting for Pension (SFAS 87) and SFAS No. 108,
Employers' Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions (SFAS 108).

The incremental effect of applying SFAS 158 on NJR's Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
September 30, 2007, is as follows:

SFAS 158

September 30,  Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2007  September 30,

(Thousands) 2006 Activity Sub-totals  Adjustment 2007
Pension Plans:
Prepaid pension asset 321,045 $(2,425) 518,620 $(18,620) —
Postemployment benefit (liability)

Current® — _ — % (217}  § (217)

Mon-current (214" § 54  5(2087) $ (182) $ (2,269)
Regulatory asset

Mon-current — — —  $17.351 $ 17,351
Deferred tax asset (liability) 5 (7,767) $ 975 $(6792) $ GBS $ (6,107)
Accumulated other comprehensive

income, net of tax — — — § 88 $ 983
OPEB:
Postemployment benefit asset

(liability)

Current® — — — % (83 8 (83)

Mon-current 5 245 $(3,580) $(3335) $(20,138) $(23,473)
Regulatory asset

Current — — — % 54 g 54

Mon-current — — —  $14.768 $ 14,768
Deferred tax asset (liability) & (101) $ 1,471 $1370 §% 2218 $ 3,588
Accumulated other comprehensive

income, net of tax — — — $ 3,181 $ 3,181

W Amount included in Other assels as of September 30, 2006
@ Amount included in Accounts payable and other as of September 30, 2007
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The funded status of the plans, including the reconciliation of NJR's fiscal year 2006 funded
status to the amounts recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, is presented below, using a
measurement date of September 30:

Pension! OPEB

(Thousands) 2007 2006 2007 2006
Change in Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $105,746 $101,986 $ 51,375 § 43,602

Service cost 2,932 3,034 1,819 1,582

Interest cost 6,217 5,746 3,028 2,472

Plan participants' contributions 55 57 6 —

Actuarial loss {2,218) (v26)  (1,545) 5,245

Benefits paid, net of retiree subsidies received (4,857) (4,351) {1,652) (1,5286)
Benefit obligation at end of year $107,875 $105746 $ 53,031 § 51,375
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 95,835 § 82596 $ 26,570 22,380

Actual return on plan assets 14,106 7,296 3,946 2,026

Employer contributions 250 10,237 685 3,690

Benefits paid, net of plan participants’ contributions {4,802) (4,294)  (1,726) (1,526)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $105,380 § 95,835 $29475 526570
Reconciliation of funded status at end of year

Plan assets less obligation $ (2,486) $ (8,911) $(23,556) $(24,805)

Unrecognized actuarial loss — 28,325 — 22,095

Urnrecognized transition obligation = S cak 2,527

Unrecognized prior service cost — 480 — 428
Met amount recognized $ (2,486) $ 18904 $(23,556) $§ 245
Amounts recognized on Consolidated Balance

Sheets

Prepaid pension asset — 18,904 — —

Postemployment employee benefit asset/(liability) (2,486) —  (23,556) 245
Net amount recognized'® $ (2,486) § 18904 $(23,556) 5 245

U Includes NJR's Pension Equalization Plan.

@ As of September 30, 2007, NJR had a current and non-current liability of 217,000 and 52.3 milfon, respectively, refated
te itz pension obligations, including its Pension Equalization Pilan, and a current and non-current lability of $83,000 and
£23.5 million, respectively, related to its OPEB obligalions.

The change in unrecognized net gain (loss) is one measure of the degree to which important
assumptions have coincided with actual experience. During fiscal 2007, the unrecognized net loss
decreased by 9.6 percent of the September 30, 2006 projected benefit obligation. The Company
changes important assumptions whenever conditions warrant. The discount rate is typically
changed annually and the expected long-term return on plan assets will typically be revised every
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three to five years. Other material assumptions include the compensation increase rates, rates of
employee termination, and rates of participant mortality.

The accumulated benefit obligation (ABQ) for the pension plans, including the Pension
Equalization Plan, at September 30, 2007 and 2006, was $95.5 million and $92.8 million,
respectively,

Amounts included in Accumulated other comprehensive income as of September 30, 2007, as
well as the amounts e:-cpamad to be remgnized as components of net period benefit cost in fiscal
2008 are as follows:

Pension OPEB
2007 2008 2007 2008
(Thousands) Balance Amortization Balance Amortization
Net actuarial loss $1,578 129 $4,920 5206
Prior service cost 89 16 39 9
Met transition obligation — — 442 71
Total, before tax effects $1.667 145 $5,401 $286

As of September 30, 2008, there were no deferred costs, related to NJR's pension and OFEB
plans, included in Accumulated other comprehensive income.

The components of the net periodic cost for pension benefits, including NJR's Pension
Equalization Plan, and OPEB costs (principally health care and life insurance) for employees and
covered dependents were as follows:

Pension QOFEB

(Thowusands) 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005

Service cost $2,932 33,034 32611 $1,819 51,582 $1,297
Interest cost 6,217 5,748 5437 3,028 2472 2181
Expected return on plan assets (8,208) (7,127) (6,404) (2,161) (1,832) (1,700)
Recognized actuarial loss 1,596 1,731 1,045 1,063 — 682
Recognized net initial obligation —_ {11y (1128 357 357 357
Prior service cost amortization 84 85 118 78 78 78
Special termination benefit — — 1,785 — 834 72
Net periodic cost $2,621 53,458 34,480 $4,184 53,491 52,967
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The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit costs and obligations as of
September 30 are as follows:

Pension OPEB
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005

Benefit costs:

Discount rate 6.00% 575% 6.00% 6.00% 575% 6.00%

Expected asset return 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 8.50% B8.50% 8.50%

Compensation increase 3.75% 3.759% 3.79% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75%
Obligations:

Discount rate 6.25% 6.00% 5.75% 6.25% 6.00% 5.75%

Expected asset return 9.00% B5.00% 9.00% 8.50% 8.50% B8.50%

Compensation increase 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75%

In selecting an assumed discount rate, NJR uses a modeling process that involves selecting a
portfolio of high-quality corporate debt issuances (AA- or better) whose cash flows (via coupons or
maturities) match the timing and amount of NJR's expected future benefit payments. NJR considers
the results of this modeling process, as well as overall rates of return on high-quality corporate
bonds and changes in such rates over time, in determination of its assumed discount rate.

NJR's general approach for determining the overall expected long-term rate of return on assets
considers historical and expected future asset returns, the current and future targeted asset mix of
the plan assets, historical and future expected real rates of return for equities and fixed income
securities, and historical and expected inflation statistics. The expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets to be used to develop net periodic benefit costs for fiscal 2007 is 9.0 percent for
pension costs and 8.5 percent for OPEB costs.

Information relating to the assumed health care cost trend rate (HCCTR) used to determine
expected OPEB benefits as of September 30, and the effect of a 1 percent change in the rate are
as follows:

(8 in thougands) 2007 2006 2005
HCCTR 10.0%  10.0% 9.0%
Ultimate HCCTR 5.0% 5.0% 4.5%
Year ultimate HCCTR reached 2013 2013 2010
Effect of a 1 percentage point increase in the HCCTR on:

Year-end benefit obligation $8,493 $80968 57523

Total service and interest cost $ 959 § 921 § 734
Effect of a 1 percentage point decrease in the HCCTR on:

Year-end benefit obligation $(6,850) $(6,489) $(5,985)

Total service and interest costs $ (752) 3 (721) § (520)

The expected long-term rate of return is based on the asset categories in which the Company
invests and the current expectations and historical performance for these categories.

112

http://www.shareholder.com/visitors/dynamicdoc/document.cfm?DocumentlD=2078&CompanylD=NJR&PIN=&Page=1&Zoom=1x&PrintWidth=682&prin...

150/175



11/7/2016 2007 Annual Report - Printing All Pages

New Jersey Resources
Part Il

ITEM B. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (Continued)

The mix and targeted allocation of the pension and OPEB plans' assets are as follows:

2008 Assels at

Target September 30,
Asset Allocation Allocation 2007 2006
U.S. equity securities 53% 53% 53%
International equity securities 19 19 18
Fixed income 28 28 29
Total 100% 100% 100%

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid during the following years:

(Thousards) Pension OPEB

2008 $ 4863 §$ 2174
2009 & 4805 §$ 2334
2010 3 5118 § 2,394
2011 $ 5330 § 2471
2012 $ 5724 § 2,639
2013-2017 $32,391  $15,596

NJR's OPEB plans provide prescription drug benefits that are actuarially equivalent to those
provided by Medicare Part D, therefore, under the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act of 2003 NJR qualifies for federal subsidies.

The estimated subsidy payments are:

Fiscal Estimated Subsidy Payment
Year (Thousands)

2008 $ 134

2008 $ 150

2010 % 1869

2011 $ 187

2012 $ 207
2013-2017 $1,267

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company offers an Employees’ Retirement Savings Plan (Savings Plan) to eligible
employees. The Company matches 50 percent of participants’ contributions up to 6 percent of base
compensation.

For represented NJRHS employees who are not eligible for participation in the defined benefit
plan, the Company contributes between 2 and 3 percent of base compensation, depending on
years of service, into the Savings Plan on their behalf.
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The amount expensed and contributed for the matching provision of the Savings Plan was
$1.2 million in fiscal 2007 and $1.1 million in fiscal 2006 and 2005.
11. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS (ARQ)

Liability and Estimated Accretion as of September 30, 2007

MNJR recognizes AROs related to the costs associated with cutting and capping its main and
service gas distribution pipelines of NJNG, which is reguired by New Jersey law when taking such
gas distribution pipeline out of service.

The following is an analysis of the change in the ARO liability for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2007, in thousands:

Balance at October 1, 2006 $23,293
Accretion 1,322
Additions 160
Retirements (880)

Balance at September 30, 2007 $23,895

Accretion amounts are not reflected as an expense on NJR's Consolidated Statements of
Income, but rather are deferred as a regulatory asset and netted against NJNG's regulatory
liabilities, for presentation purposes, on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Accretion for the next five years is estimated to be as follows:

(Thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, Estimated Accretion
2008 $1,395
2009 $1,471
2010 $1,580
2011 $1,631
2012 $1,720

Adoption of FIN 47

On September 30, 2006, NJNG recorded liabilities of approximately $5.1 million related to the
present value of ARO and $18.2 million related to accumulated accretion. NJR believes that
ARO-related amounts represent timing differences in the recognition of legal retirement costs that
are currently being recovered in NJNG's rates and, therefore, is deferring such differences as a
regulatory asset under SFAS 71. The $18.2 million related to accumulated accretion, which
represents a regulatory asset, has been netted against MJNG's cost of removal regulatory liability
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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The pro forma amounts of the liabilities for asset retirement obligations for the periods ended
September 30, 2006, and 2005, respectively, are presented in the following table. These amounts
were calculated using information, assumptions and interest rates as of September 30, 2006:

Pro-Forma
September 30,
(Thowsands) 2006 2005
Beginning of period ARO liability $22,029 $20,841
Accretion™ 1,264 1,188
End of period ARO liability $23,293  $22,029

N Accretion is not reflected on NJR's Consolidated Statements of Operations as it is deferred and recovered in rate base.

12. INCOME TAXES

The Company's federal income tax returns through fiscal 2004 have either been reviewed by
survey, examined by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS), or the related statute of limitations has
expired and all matters have been settled. The fiscal 2005 federal income tax return is currently
under audit.

A reconciliation of the United States federal statutory rate of 35 percent to the effective rate
from operations for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

(Thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Statutory income tax expense $37,343 $129662 %9635
Change resulting from
State income taxes 7,109 21,766 1,925
Change in tax rate (221) (216) =
Depreciation and cost of removal (1,774) (1,674) (1,641)
Investment tax credits (322) (322)  (322)
Other (720) (862)  (603)
Income tax provision $41,415 $148,554 $8,994
Effective income tax rate 38.8% 40.1%  32.7%

N Income tax provision includes taxes associated with investments in Equity investees of 1.1 milfion, $1.2 million and
£1.2 million for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. These amouwnts are reported as part of
Equity in earnings of Equily invesiees, net of lax, in the consolidated slatements of income,
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The Income tax provision (benefit) from operations consists of the following:

{Thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Current
Federal $36,846 $ 37,631 $45,142
State 12,282 11,836 14,327
Deferred
Federal {5,758) 78,088 (38,785)
State (1,633) 21,521 (11,368)
Investment tax credits (322) (322) (322)
Income tax provision $41,415 $148,554 $ 8,994
The temporary differences, which give rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities, consist of the
following:
{Thousands) 2007 2006
Current
Underrecovered gas costs $ (3,937) 5 (702)
WMNC/CIP 10,120 3,330
Conservation program 2,766 4,112
Other {2,009) (1,772
Current deferred tax liability, net $ 6940 5 4968
Noncurrent
Property-related items $135,884 3128,835
Customer contributions (1,271)  (1,421)
Capitalized overhead and interest (1,323) (2,677)
Unamaortized investment tax credits (4,046) (4,219)
Remediation costs 28,905 30,919
Deferred service contract revenue (2,452) 2,317)
Deferred gain (1,990) (2,512)
Fair value of derivatives 47,204 63,220
~ Other 15348 17,272
Total non-current deferred tax liabilities, net 216,258 227,100
Total deferred tax liabilities, net $223,198 $232,068

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Cash Commitments

NJNG has entered into long-term contracts, expiring at various dates through 2022, for the
supply, storage and delivery of natural gas. These contracts include current annual fixed charges of
approximately $81.4 million at current contract rates and volumes, which are recovered through the
BGSS.
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As of September 30, 2007, there were NJR guarantees covering approximately $289 million of
natural gas purchases and demand fee commitments of NJRES and NJNG not yet reflected in
Accounts payable on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Commitments as of September 30, 2007 for
natural gas purchases and future demand fees, for the next five fiscal year periods, are as follows:

(Thousands) 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter
NJRES
Natural gas purchases $473,941 $263601 3130088 § —§% — § —
Storage demand fees 34404 17,885 15,093 10,420 6,027 3,023
Pipeline demand fees 64,725 29377 15857 13,228 6866 10,123
Sub-total NJRES $573,070 $310,843 $161,039 $23,649 312,893 513,146
NJMNG
Natural gas purchases £ 30,781 & 967 $ 3042 5 4412 § — 5 —
Storage demand fees 24439 23835 20951 12,198 5390 2737
Pipeline demand fees 56970 70425 55491 51,400 43,616 69,101
Sub-total NJNG 112,190 $ 95,227 $ 79,484 564,010 $49,006 371,838
Total 685,260 $406,070 $240,523 $87,659 $61,899 384,984

NJNG's capital expenditures are estimated at $80.9 million, of which approximately $5.1 million
has been committed and $77.4 million in fiscal 2008 and 2009, respectively, and consist primarily of
its construction program to support customer growth, maintenance of its distribution system and
replacement needed under pipeline safety regulations.

The Company's future minimum lease payments under various operating leases are less than
$3.8 million annually for the next five years and $670,000 in the aggregate for all years thereafter.

Legal Proceedings

Manufactured Gas Plant Remediation

MJNG is responsible for the remedial cleanup plan of three Manufactured Gas Plant (MGP)
sites, dating back to the late 1800s and early 1900s, which contain contaminated residues from
former gas manufacturing operations. NJNG is currently involved in administrative proceeadings with
the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP) with respect to two of the sites,
as well as participating in various studies and investigations by outside consultants to determine the
nature and extent of any such contaminated residues and to develop appropriate programs of
remedial action, where warranted, under Administrative Consent Orders or Memaoranda of
Agreement with the NJDER

NJNG may, subject to BPU approval, recover its remediation expenditures, including carrying
costs, over rolling 7-year periods pursuant to a remediation adjustment clause (RAC) approved by
the BPU. In October 2007, the BPU approved $14.7 million in eligible costs to be recovered
annually for MGP remediation expenditures incurred through September 30, 2006. As of
September 30, 2007, $85.1 million of previously incurred remediation costs, net of recoveries from
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customers and insurance proceeds, are included in Regulatory assets on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet.

In September 2007, with the assistance of an outside consulting firm, NJNG updated an
environmental review of the MGP sites, including a review of potential liability for investigation and
remedial action. Based on this review, NJNG estimated at the time of the review that, exclusive of
any insurance recoveries, total future expenditures to remediate and monitor the three MGP sites
for which it is responsible will range from approximately $105.3 million to $164.8 million. NJNG's
estimate of these liabilities is based upon known facts, existing technology and enacted laws and
regulations in place when the review was completed. However, NJNG expects actual costs to differ
from these estimates. Where it is probable that costs will be incurred, but the information is
sufficient only to establish a range of possible liability, and no point within the range is more likely
than any other, it is MJNG's policy to accrue the lower end of the range. Accordingly, NJNG has
recorded an MGP remediation liability and a corresponding Regulatory asset of $105.3 million on
the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The actual costs to be incurred by NJNG are dependent upon
several factors, including final determination of remedial action, changing technologies and
governmental regulations, the ultimate ability of other responsible parties to pay and any insurance
recoveries.

NJNG is presently investigating the potential settlement of alleged Matural Resource Damage
claims that might be brought by the NJOEP concerning the three MGP sites. NJDEP has not made
any specific demands for compensation for alleged injury to groundwater or other natural
resources. NJMG's evaluation of these potential claims is in the early stages, and it is not yet
possible to quantify the amount of compensation, if any that NJDEP might seek to recover. NJNG
anticipates any costs associated with this matter would be recoverable through the RAC.

NJMNG will continue to seek recovery of MGP-related costs through the RAC. If any future
regulatory position indicates that the recovery of such costs is not probable, the related cost would
be charged to income in the period of such determination. However, because recovery of such
costs is subject to BPU approval, there can be no assurance as to the ultimate recovery through
the RAC or the impact on the Company's results of operations, financial position or cash flows,
which could be material.

BPU Order Regarding Long Branch Mass Tort Litigation-Related Costs

Beginning in July 2003, a series of complaints were filed in the New Jersey Superior Court
against NJNG, the Registrant, Jersey Central Power & Light Company (JCP&L) and FirstEnergy
Corporation (FirstEnergy). The complaints were, as of February 2004, designated as a Mass Tort
Litigation (the Mass Tort Litigation). Among other things, the complaints alleged personal injuries,
wrongful death, survivorship actions, property damage and claims for medical monitoring stemming
from the operation and remediation of the former MGP site in Long Branch, New Jersey.

In December 2005, a confidential settlement between NJNG and the plaintiffs in the Mass Tort
Litigation was finalized and approved by the New Jersey Superior Court. A separate lawsuit (the
Lawsuit) was filed by NJNG for declaratory relief against Kemper Indemnity Insurance Company
(Kemper) arising from Kemper's refusal to honor its obligations related to the Mass Tort Litigation
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under insurance policies procured by the NJMG that were intended to limit NJNG's liability for third
party claims for bodily injury and property damage, legal defense costs and remediation costs
arising from environmental contamination and remediation at the former MGP sites in Long Branch
and Toms River, New Jersey.

The Lawsuit was settled in January 2007, Pursuant to the terms of the settlerment, NJNG
received a payment in the amount of $12.8 million from Kemper and certain of its affiliates (the
Settlement Payment). The Settlement Payment was made in exchange for a general release of all
claims asserted in the Lawsuit; no portion of the Settlement Payment was allocated to any particular
claim.

Pursuant to the RAC, NJNG sought to recover the remaining litigation and settlement costs
related to the Mass Tort Litigation and the Lawsuit. Under a written order by the BPU, dated
QOctober 3, 2007, approving a stipulation among MJNG, the BPU and the State of New Jersey
Department of the Public Advocate, Division of Rate Counsel, NJNG will be allowed to recover
litigation and settlement costs related to the Mass Tort Litigation and the Lawsuit to the extent that
such costs exceed $4.0 million. $4.0 million is the portion of the costs NJNG incurred to litigate and
settle the Mass Tort Litigation and the Lawsuit that is reasonably reflective of and aftributable to
personal injury claims. Personal injury claims are not recoverable under the RAC. The pre-tax
settlement charge of $4.0 million was recognized in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 and is reflected
in Operations and maintenance expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

General

The Company is party to various other claims, legal actions and complaints arising in the
ordinary course of business. In the Company's opinion, other than as disclosed above, the ultimate
disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on its financial condition, results
of operations or cash flows.

14. BUSINESS SEGMENT DATA

Information related to the Company's various business segments, excluding capital
expenditures, which are presented in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, is detailed below.

The Matural Gas Distribution segment consists of regulated energy and off-system, capacity
and storage management operations. The Energy Services segment consists of unregulated
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wholesale energy operations. The Retail and Other segment consists of appliance and installation

services, commercial real estate development, investments and other corporate activities.

(Thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Operating Revenues
Matural Gas Distribution $1,005,588 $1,138,774 $1,138,280
Energy Services 1,994,682 2,133,540 1,973,268
Retail and Other 21,776 (811) 73,220
Subtotal 3,022,046 3,271,503 3,184,768
Intersegment Revenues'" (281) (274) (186)
Total $3,021,765 $3,271,229 $3,184,582
Depreciation and Amortization
Matural Gas Distribution $ 35648 5 34146 § 32,905
Energy Services 214 211 253
Retail and Other 373 396 517
Total $ 36,235 $ 34753 § 33675
Operating Income
Matural Gas Distribution $ B8528 F 88029 § 97408
Energy Services 40,913 324,045 (102,625}
Retail and Other (2,191) (23,650) 45,491
Total $ 127,250 § 388,384 § 40,274
Net Income
Matural Gas Distribution $ 44480 5 46870 § 53,376
Energy Services 21,298 188,372 (62,805)
Retail and Other (497) (13,334) 27,964
Total $ 65281 3 221908 $ 18,535
The Company's assets for the various business segments are detailed below:
(Thousands) 2007 2006
Assets as of September 30,
Matural Gas Distribution $1,565,566 $1,586,934
Energy Services 487,482 714,867
Retail and Other 194,644 107,213
Intersegment Assets’" (16,947) (10,086)
Total $2,230,745 $2,398,928

N Congigts of frangactions between subsidiaries that are eliminated in consolidation,
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15. SELECTED QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

A summary of financial data for each quarter of fiscal 2007 and 2006 follows. Due to the
seasonal nature of the Company's businesses, quarterly amounts vary significantly during the fiscal
year. In the opinion of management, the information furnished reflects all adjustments necessary for
a fair presentation of the results of the interim periods.

Quarter Ended
31-Dec 31-Mar 30-Jun 30-5ep
As hs As s As ha As As

(Thougands, except per Previous| Restated Previpusly Restaled  Previous! Restated  Previous Restated*
share data) Repol (See Mole 2)  Reported  (See Mote 2) Repo (See Nole 2) Repori (See Note 2)
2007

Operating revenues § 741,465 § 737,401 §1,024,636 51,029,043 S$665,358 $662,218 $593,103
Operating income (loss) $ 52,944 § 54830 § 139441 $ 16271 § (5573) $ 46,548 5 961
Met income (loss) § 28124 § 29434 § 80527 § 7,961 § (4,952) § 25377 § 2,509
Earnings per share

Basic 3 1.01 § 1.06 § 289 $ 29 5 (.18) $ a1 5 .08
Diluted H 101 § 1.05 § 287 § 28 §  (18) § 80 5 .09
2006

Operating revenues $1,164,576 $1,162,187 $1,064,422 51,052,762 $536,103 $530,786 $534,507 $525494
Operating income (loss) § 61669 § 177,586 § 103,688 5 155,184 5 (3.570) 35 (32915 $(15324) $ 88519

Met income (loss) F 34264 % 102828 § 60201 5 90667 5 (3975 §(21.321) S(11.971) § 49.734
Earnings per share

Basic § 1.24 % 373 % 216 % 326 & [14) $ (78) & (43 § 177
Diluted 3 1.23 § 368 & 214 5 322 5 [14) % [.75) § (43) § 1.76

*  Restated for 2006 omly.
The sum of quarterly earnings per share may not equal annual eamings per share due to
rounding.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’'s management, including the
principal executive officer and principal financial officer, the Company conducted an evaluation of
the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(g) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) (the
Exchange Act), as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on this evaluation, the
Company's principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of end of the
period covered by this report, the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were not effective
due to a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting described below, to ensure
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that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits
under the Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to the Company's management, including its principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

In connection with the Company's preparation of its consoclidated financial statements for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, the Company reassessed its accounting treatment and
disclosures for its derivative instruments under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 133
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (""SFAS 133"). As a result of this
accounting assessment, the Company determined that certain of its derivative instruments have not
qualified as cash flow hedges under SFAS 133 as they did not meet the definition for “critical-
terms-match,” as defined under paragraph 65 of SFAS 133 and related authoritative accounting
literature issued by various standard setting bodies and their related interpretations for all fiscal
periods. As the Company has determined the hedging relationships did not meet the “critical-terms-
match,” the related derivative instruments did not qualify as cash flow hedges and the unrealized
gains or losses on the derivative instruments are required to be reflected in the Consolidated
Statement of Income for each period rather than recorded in Comprehensive Income and included
as a component of “accumulated other comprehensive income,” a component of Total Common
Stock Equity in the Consclidated Balance Sheets, until the forecasted transaction is settled.
Therefore, because of this material weakness, the Company amended and restated certain of its
historical consolidated financial statements and made appropriate changes in the preparation of its
consolidated financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2007.

The Company continually reviews its disclosure controls and procedures and makes changes,
as necessary, to ensure the quality of its financial reporting. The Company’s independent registered
public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, and management have discussed these issues with
the Company's Audit Committee. As detailed below, the Company has implemented certain
additional controls that it believes will significantly reduce the potential for similar issues to arise in
the future.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The report of management required under this ITEM 9A is contained in ITEM 8 of this
Form 10-K under the caption “Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.”
Attestation Report of Registered Public Accounting Firm

The attestation report required under this ITEM 94 is contained in ITEM 8 of this 10-K under the
caption "“Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm."”
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined
in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f)) that occurred during the guarter ended September 30, 2007, that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, internal control over financial
reporting.
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Remediation of Material Weakness

Management and the Board of Directors are committed to the remediation of the material
weakness set forth above as well as the continued improvement of the Company’s overall system
of internal control over financial reporting. Management is in the process of actively addressing and
remediating the material weakness in internal control over financial reporting described above.
Subsequent to the quarter and fiscal year ended September 30, 2007, in connection with the
material weakness in internal control over financial reporting detailed above, the Company has
implemented or will implement the following controls designed to substantially reduce the risk of a
similar material weakness occurring in the future:

improve ftraining, education and accounting reviews for all relevant personnel involved in the
accounting treatment and disclosures for the Company's derivative instruments to ensure
compliance with generally accepted accounting principles, including SFAS 133 and its
related interpretations;

ensure the Company has the accounting technical expertise requirements necessary for
compliance with SFAS 133;

retest the Company's internal control over financial reporting with respect to the types of
hedging transactions affected by the restatement to ensure compliance with generally
accepted accounting principles, including SFAS 133 and its related interpretations;

initiate a thorough review of the design of the internal contral over financial reporting related
to the accounting of derivative instruments which will incorperate an analysis of the current
staffing levels, job assignments and the design of all internal control processes for the
accounting for derivative instruments and implement new and improved processes and
controls, if warranted; and

increase the level of review and discussion of significant accounting matters and supporting
documentation with senior finance management.

As part of the Company's fiscal 2008 assessment of internal control over financial reporting,
management will conduct sufficient testing and evaluation of the controls to be implemented as part
of this remediation plan to ascertain that they operate effectively. The Company anticipates that
these remediation actions represent ongoing improvement measures. While the Company has taken
steps to remediate the material weakness, these steps may not be adequate to fully remediate the
material weakness, and additional measures may be required. The effectiveness of its remediation
efforts will not be known until the Company can test those controls in connection with the
management tests of internal control over financial reporting that the Company will perform as of
September 30, 2008. The Company believes, however, these measures will fully remediate the
above identified material weakness in its internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 8B. OTHER INFORMATION

None

123

http://www.shareholder.com/visitors/dynamicdoc/document.cfm?DocumentlD=2078&CompanylD=NJR&PIN=&Page=1&Zoom=1x&PrintWidth=682&prin... ~ 161/175



11/7/2016 2007 Annual Report - Printing All Pages

New Jersey Resources
Part Ill

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information required by this item, including information concerning the Board of Directors of the
Company, the members of the Company's Audit Committee, the Company's Audit Committee
Financial Expert, compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and shareholder propasals, is incorporated by reference to the Company's Proxy
Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which will be filed with Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after September 30,
2007. The information regarding executive officers is included in this report following ltem 4, as
Itemn 4A, under the caption “Executive Officers of the Company.”

The Board of Directors has adopted the Principal Executive Officer and Senior Financial
Officers Code of Ethics governing the chief executive officer and senior financial officers, in
compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Sarbanes-Oxley) and SEC regulations and the
Caode of Conduct, a code for all directors, officers and employees as required by the New York
Stock Exchange, or NYSE, rules (collectively, the Codes). Copies of both Codes are available free
of charge on the Company's website at hiip://investornjresources.com under the caption
“Corporate Governance.” A printed copy of each Code is available free of charge to any
shareholder who requests it by contacting the Corporate Secretary at 1415 Wyckoff Road, Wall,
New Jersey 07719. The Company will disclose any amendments to, or waivers from, a provision of
the Codes that applies to the principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal
accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions that relates to any element
of the Codes as defined in Item 406 of Regulation S-K by posting such information on the
Company's website.

Because the Company’'s common stack is listed on the NYSE, the chief executive officer is
required to make, and he has made, an annual certification to the NYSE stating that he was not
aware of any violation by the Company of the corporate governance listing standards of the NYSE.
The chief executive officer made his annual certification to that effect to the NYSE as of
February 23, 2007. In addition, the Company has filed, as exhibits to the Annual Report on
Form 10-K, the certifications of the principal executive officer and principal financial officer required
under Sections 906 and 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley to be filed with the SEC regarding the quality of
our public disclosure.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from the Registrant's Proxy
Statement.

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information required by this ltem is incorporated by reference from the Registrant's Proxy
Statement.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

Information required by this ltem is incorporated by reference from the Registrant's Proxy
Statement,

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information required by this ltem is incorporated by reference from the Registrant’s Proxy
Statement.
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) 1. Financial Statements.

All Financial Statements of the Registrant are filed as part of this report and included in Item 8
of Part Il of this Form 10-K.

{a 2. Financial Statement Schedules-See Index to Financial Statement Schedules in Item 8.
(a) 3. Exhibits—See Exhibit Index on page 130.
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Page

Schedule |I-Valuation and qualifying accounts and reserves for each of the three years in the
period ended September 30, 2007 ... ... ... 0 i i et e 128

Schedules other than those listed above are omitted because they are not required or are not
applicable, or the required information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.
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Schedule lI

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(Thousands)

BALANCE AT  ADDITIONS BALANCE

BEGINNING CHARGED TO AT END OF
CLASSIFICATION OF YEAR EXPENSE OTHER'™ YEAR
2007:
Regulatory asset reserve s 678 $2,025 5§ — $2,703
Allowance for Doubtiul Accounts 52,679 $3,174 (2,687 $3,166
2006:
Regulatory asset reserve $ 290 $ 388 5 — $ 678
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts $5,297 $3.612 $(6,230) $2.679
2005:
Regulatory asset reserve & — $ 290 5 — $ 290
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts $5,304 $6,128 $(6,135) $5,297

(1) Uncollectible accounts written off, less recoveries and changes Io adjust resane to appropriate level.
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/s/ Davip A, TRICE

David A, Trice
Director

/s WiLLiam H. TURNER

William H. Turner
Director

Is/ Georae R. ZoFFNGER
George R. Zoffinger
Director

Gary W. Wolf
Director
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Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, as amended (incorporated by

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.2(a)

4.2(b)

4.2(c)

42(d)

4.2(e)

4.2(f)

4.2(g)

4.2{h)

43

http://www.shareholder.com/visitors/dynamicdoc/document.cfm?DocumentlD=2078&CompanylD=NJR&PIN=&Page=1&Zoom=1x&PrintWidth=682&prin...

reference to Exhibit 3-1 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 1996, as filed on December 30, 1996)

By-Laws of the Company, as amended on November 14, 2007 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, as filed on November 15,
2007)

Specimen Common Stock Certificates (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4-1 to
Registration Statement No. 033-21872)

Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust between NJNG and Harris Trust and
Savings Bank, as Trustee, dated April 1, 1952, as supplemented by twenty-one
Supplemental Indentures (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4{g) to Registration
Statement No. 002-9563)

Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 1, 1993 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.2(V) to the 1993 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended September 30, 1994)

Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 15, 1995 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2(Y) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 1995, as filed on December 29, 1995)

Twenty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 1, 1985 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2(X) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 1995, as filed on December 29, 1995)

Twenty-Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 1, 1997
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2(J) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K as
filed on December 29, 1997)

Twenty-Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1998 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2(K) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 1998, as filed on December 24, 1998)

Twenty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 1, 1998 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2(L) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 1988, as filed on December 24, 1998)

Thirtieth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2003 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2(J) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

September 30, 2003, as filed on December 16, 2003)

Thirty-First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2005 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2(|) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

September 30, 2005, as filed on November 29, 2005)

$225,000,000 Revolving Credit Facility Credit Agreement (the ""$225,000,000
Revolving Credit Facility’') by and among NJNG, PNC Bank, NA as Administrative
Agent, the banks party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, NA and Fleet Mational Bank,
as Syndication Agents, Bank Of Tokyo-Mitsubishi Trust Company and Citicorp North
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4.3(a)

4.3(b)

4.4

4.4(a)

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8*
10.2**
10.3**

10.4**

10.5(a)

http://www.shareholder.com/visitors/dynamicdoc/document.cfm?DocumentlD=2078&CompanylD=NJR&PIN=&Page=1&Zoom=1x&PrintWidth=682&prin...

America, Inc., As Documentation Agents and PNC Capital Markets, Inc., as Lead
Arranger, dated as of December 16, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4-2
to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as filed on February 7, 2005)

First Amendment dated as of August 31, 2005 to the $225,000,000 Revolving Credit
Facility, dated as of December 16, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4-3A to
the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2005, as filed on
November 29, 2005)

Second Amendment and Consent dated as of Movember 15, 2005 to the
$225,000,000 Revolving Credit Facility, dated as of December 16, 2004 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4-3B to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 2005, as filed on November 29, 2005)

$275,000,000 Revolving Credit Facility Credit Agreement (the "$275,000,000
Revolving Credit Facility”") by and among the Company, PNC Bank, NA as
Administrative Agent, the banks party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, NA and Fleet
Mational Bank, as Syndication Agents, Bank Of Tokyo-Mitsubishi Trust Company and
Citicorp North America, Inc., As Documentation Agents and PNC Capital Markets,
Inc., as Lead Arranger, dated as of December 16, 2004 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4-1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as filed on February 7, 2005)

First Amendment dated as of November 15, 2005 to the $275,000,000 Revolving
Credit Facility, dated as of December 16, 2004 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4-4A to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30,
2005, as filed on November 28, 2005)

$30,000,000 Credit Agreement by and among the Company, NJR Energy Services
Company, as the Borrowers, and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Trust Company, as
the Bank, dated as of October 12, 2006

$60,000,000 Mote Purchase Agreement by and among MJNG and J.P Margan
Securities Inc., as Placement Agent, dated March 15, 2004 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4-1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as filed on May 10,
2004)

$25,000,000 Note Purchase Agreement by and among MJR and J.P. Margan
Securities Inc., as Placement Agent, dated March 15, 2004 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4-2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as filed on May 10,
2004)

$50,000,000 Mote Purchase Agreement by and among the Company, MNew York Life
Insurance Company and New York Life Insurance and Annuity Company
Retirement Plan for Represented Employees, as amended on October 1, 1984
(incorporated by reference to Registration Statement Mo. 002-73181)

Retirement Plan for Non-Represented Employees, as amended October 1, 1985
(incorporated by reference to Registration Statement No. 002-73181)

Supplemental Retirement Plans covering each of the Executive Officers (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 1986)

Service Agreement for Rate Schedule FTS-4 by and between NJNG and Texas
Eastern Transmission Company, dated as of June 21, 1995 (incorporated by
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10.5(b)

10.5(c)

10.8**

10.7

10.10**

10_12**

10.12(a)**

1013

10.14

10.15

10.15(a)

10.15(b)
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reference to Exhibit 10-5A to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 1996, as filed on December 30, 1996)

Service Agreement for Rate Schedule S5-1 by and between NJNG and Texas
Eastern Transmission Company, dated as of June 21, 1995 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10-5B to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 1996, as filed on December 30, 1996)

Service Agreement for Rate Schedule CDS by and between NJNG and Texas
Eastern Transmission Company, dated as of November 15, 1995 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10-5C to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 1996, as filed on December 30, 1996)

The Company's Officer Incentive Plan effective as of October 1, 1986 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10-6 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 1996, as filed on December 30, 1996)

Lease Agreement between NJNG, as Lessee and State Street Bank and Trust
Company of Connecticut, National Association, as Lessor for NJNG's Headquarters
Building dated December 21, 1995 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10-7 to the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 1996, as filed on
December 30, 1996)

The Company's Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended, effective as
of October 1, 1995 (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Proxy Statement
for the 1996 Annual Meeting as filed on January 4, 1996)

Employment Continuation Agreement between the Company and Laurence M.
Downes dated February 20, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K, as filed on February 26, 2007)

Schedule of Employee Continuation Agreements (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, as filed on February 26, 2007)

Gas Sales Agreements between NJNG and Alberta Mortheast Gas Limited dated as
of February 7, 1991 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10-13 to the Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 1992)

Gas Transportation Contract for Firm Reserved Service between NJNG and Iroquois
Gas Transmission System, L.P, dated February 7, 1991 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10-14 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30,
1992)

Service Agreement between NJNG and CNG Transmission Corporation dated as of
December 1, 1993 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10-15 to the Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 1996, as filed on December 30,
1996)

Service Agraement between NJNG and CNG Transmission Corporation dated as of
December 1, 1993 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10-15A to the Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 1996, as filed on December 30,
1996)

Service Agreement between NJNG and CNG Transmission Corporation dated
December 1, 1993 and, as amended, as of December 21, 1993 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10-15B to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 1996, as filed on December 30, 1996)
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10_16*1’

10.47**

10.18**

10_19**

10.20**

10.21

10.22

10.23

21.1
23.1
311

3.2

321

322

Summary of Company’s Non-Employee Director Compensation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Current Report on Form 8-K as filed on
November 15, 2007)

The Company's 2007 Stock Award and Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K as filed on January 12, 2007)

2007 Stock Award and Incentive Plan Form of Stock Option Agreement
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K as filed
on January 25, 2007)

2007 Stock Award and Incentive Plan Form of Performance Units Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 102 to the Current Report on Form 8-K as filed
on January 25, 2007)

2007 Stock Award and Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Stock Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K as filed
on January 25, 2007)

Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release dated January 24, 2007 by and between
NJNG and Lumbermens Mutual Casualty Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates,
including but not limited to, American Motorists Insurance Company, American
Manufacturers Mutual Company and Kemper Indemnity Insurance Company
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as
filed on February 7, 2007)

Limited Liability Company Agreement of Steckman Ridge GF. LLC dated as of
March 2, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q, as filed on May 3, 2007)

Limited Partnership Agreement of Steckman Ridge, LP dated as of March 2, 2007
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, as
filed on May 3, 2007).

Subsidiaries of the Registrant*
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm*

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act*

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act*

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act* t

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant 1o section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act* 1

*  Filed herewith

** Denoles compensalory plans or arangements or management comracts

t  This cenificate accompanies this Report pursuant to Section 806 of the Sarbanes-Cxiey Act of 2002 and shall not be
deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 or any other provision of the Securilies Exchange Act of 1934,

as amended.
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HER INFORMATION

AUTOMATIC DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN
The Company offers an Automatic Dividend
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# MIR Code of Conduct

¢ filings made
d Exchange Commission, akso

i through nifiving.com.

with w

15 POSt-ConSL

Wt Qi
inds of soled waste not

ETUs of energy not ¢

http://www.shareholder.com/visitors/dynamicdoc/document.cfm?DocumentID=2078&CompanyID=NJR&PIN=&Page=1&Zoom= 1x&PrintWidtl

6828&prin...

174/175




11/7/2016 2007 Annual Report - Printing All Pages

1415 Wyckoff Road
Paost Office Box 1468
Wall, N 07719
732-938-1480
njliving. com

New Jersey
6 Resources

http://www.shareholder.com/visitors/dynamicdoc/document.cfm?DocumentlD=2078&CompanylD=NJR&PIN=&Page=1&Zoom=1x&PrintWidth=682&prin...  175/175




